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Financial Highlights
MBERE

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=+—HLEE

2018 2017

—T— 5

HK$’million

BEATT

—E-N\E
HK$’million
BERBTT

Operating Results
Revenue

— e-print segment

— e-banner segment

Operating profit before other losses
— net

— e-print segment

— e-banner segment

Other losses — net

— e-print segment

— e-banner segment

Operating profit

— e-print segment

— e-banner segment

Profit for the year attributable to:
— equity holders of company

— non-controlling interests

Net profit margin % (Attributable to
equity holders of company)

Gross profit margin %
Basic earnings per share (HK Cents)

Financial Position
Total assets

Total equity

Cash and cash equivalents

EEHEE
&
—e-print% &
—e-bannerm &

RETAHAMEE 2
LERA R

—e-print% &

—e-banner? &

HibEsE— F58
—e-printo &
—e-banners &

SR

—e-printm &

—e-bannerm &

AT BB F R m A
—AATERFEA

—IEE R A

AR R % (RRBEEF
BAER)

EFE%
SRREARF (B4L)

Bt 3R
BEMRR

R AR RR

RekREFEEAHA
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403.3
308.8
94.5

35.2
32.0
3.2
(4.9)
(4.4)
(0.5)
28.8

26.1
2.7

22.0
1.1
5.5%
36.2%

4.01

311.2
231.7

89.5

390.6
314.4
76.2

4.4%

35.7%

3.15

312.8

207.5

68.2

3.3%
-1.8%
24.0%

58.6%
-12.6%
-122.2%
-37.2%
-42.9%
400.0%
100.0%

-9.7%
-118.6%

27.2%
-113.6%

27.3%

-0.5%

11.7%

31.2%



Operating Results

During the year, the Group encountered various negative factors,
such as increasing operating costs, market deterioration in Hong
Kong and uncertain global economic environment. Nevertheless,
we still delivered a satisfactory performance to the shareholders,
contributed by the sound groundwork we laid and the effective
initiative we took during the year.

The major operation costs incurred by the Group are expenses
paid for raw materials, staff remuneration, rental expenses for the
premises and delivery charges. Yet, to ensure every customer had a
great business experience with us, we did not sacrifice the product
and service qualities for cheaper costs, and hence the management
took different initiative to strive for balance between these two
factors. For examples, not only we outsourced more jobs to the
printing companies in Mainland China where the operating costs
were lower but also utilized the Group’s capital to purchase some
premises in order to minimize the rental expenses.

The performance of the Group’s paper printing business was
slightly stepping back in the past year. It was caused by the
deterioration of the paper advertising market as a result of the
growing popularity of the social media advertising and electronic
marketing, as well as the lower gross margin as we decided to
absorb the increasing operating cost instead of shifting to our
valuable customers. Nevertheless, paper printing business remained
as our major business segment and we will take all measures to
maintain our competitiveness and protect our leading position in the
industry.

For the Group’s banner printing business, it began to breakeven
and made profit during the year. The advancement was mainly
resulted from the increasing market share and this proved that our
services and products successfully gain the recognition from the
customers. By continuously expanding and improving under the
management guidance, we believe the banner printing segment
will play a more important role to the Group’s business in the
foreseeable future.

Chairman’s Statement

EREHRE

LERE

FR-AEEEERSEXAEM- %%m
i’%%%&i\ Tié/gﬁiﬁiﬁTEHEﬂﬁn%
MAZE-BEWUL ﬁ%iWEEW%E
HPELRBeSER BN ARRS
U SEFCE 3

AEBEEANTELERARLREME -
BTIHM DEBSHI RIREERXN
MR- A RERREBREP, HRME
BEBER IS SR A 4
EmhRFEE Rt EEBRNT X
BAORNKEHME F&-H0 HMAS
EINVKE 2 THET ZERAEUE Y F E
AIENRI AR TR AEBERNKES
TYOENEZEREHEHAX -

BE—FBE AEBERGHRIERBHRE
BETE - LWHHERN T EEBREEFHEE
BaEETRERESETHEX AR
RTE B B AR B KRR 0 I G H
BETEENTPSEMNKBREMB-&
B MEEHRIEBDARMNTER
Bl ZATERR A RESE S
BN RARFFEA BTN

FA AR EEE RS 6 E B
FERAN WIEERDIEEHN TSN
BRIE DO AT - Utk Ih AR A R PI 0 BR A5 K EE A
KOmETEPRA - BARERRIE
LEETTE RABEES DR EBHR
ARRKREASEXRBHDEENER
WAES-

2017/18%F#H eprint EEER AT 5



Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Prospects

Looking ahead, our business is going to face challenges from
different areas, including operating cost which is expected to be
increasing continuously, keen competition within the industries
and growth of the social media and electronic marketing. We
also understand the customers are looking for more convenient
shopping experience and better product and service qualities
from us. Therefore, the Group will take the following approaches
to maintain our market share and leading position in the printing
industry.

- Adopting the product diversification strategy by expanding the
product lines of the existing printing business.

- Developing the new business line of gift products to meet the
increasing demand of the market.

- Continuously effort to improve the value added services,
including but not limited to the e-print app, self-service
platform, phone quotation system, self checkout and
collecting counters and the storage and delivery system.

- Regularly monitoring cost and pricing strategy to ensure the
Group’s competitiveness.

Because of the profitable business and effective cashflow
management, the Group maintained a healthy cash balance which
can be used for further investment activities. We are ready to
spend the capital, for example, when it comes to the situation that
an advanced printing machine or premise are needed to improve
our operating efficiency, or when we found that there are suitable
financial products that can bring us a favourable return.

Apart from the principal printing business in Hong Kong, we
are also proactively looking for different business opportunities
to increase the Group’s value. The investment in Sakura Japan
Property (Hong Kong) Limited in 2017 is one of the example to
prove that we are willing to diversify our business when we believe
that it can create value to our shareholders. Besides, we are now
planning some investment projects in Hong Kong and overseas and
we believe that these investments can bring long terms interest to
the Group and the shareholders.
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Appreciation

On behalf of the board of directors of the Company, | would like
to extend our sincere gratitude to our shareholder, customers and
business partners for their persistent support throughout the year.
In addition, | would like to take this opportunity to thank all the
hardworking and talented management and staff for their persistent
contribution to the Group.

On behalf of the Board

She Siu Kee William
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2018

Chairman’s Statement
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWmR D

Business Review

The Board presents to its shareholders the results of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2018. The Group’s revenue amounted to
HK$403.3 million, representing an increase of 3.3% as compared
with that of the year ended 31 March 2017. Gross profit margin
increased to 36.2% (2017: 35.7%). The Group’s audited profit
attributable to equity holders for the year ended 31 March 2018
was HK$22.0 million, representing an increase of 27.2% as
compared with that of the year ended 31 March 2017. The increase
in net profit was the result of the improving performance of banner
printing segment, effective cost management and profitable
investment in associate.

For the Group’s paper printing segment, there was a decrease
of revenue of HK$5.6 million or 1.8% from HK$314.4 million to
HK$308.8 million and it was the result of the continued deterioration
of Hong Kong market during the year. The gross profit was also
affected by the increasing material cost and hence the margin
slightly decreased from 36.7% to 35.2% for the current year.
Nevertheless, the operating profit of the segment only decreased by
HK$2.8 million because of the lower other net loss incurred during
the year, which was contributed by the decrease in the net loss on
disposal of property, plant and equipment by HK$1.4 million.

For the Group’s banner printing segment, there was a significant
growth in revenue of 24.0% from HK$76.2 million to HK$94.5
million. The increase in revenue was the result of the expansion of
its market shares in Hong Kong during the year. The segment also
benefited from the improving operating efficiencies and economies
of scale, which increased the gross profit margin by 8.5%. The
operating profit of the segment is HK$2.7 million for the year ended
31 March 2018 while it incurred the operating loss of HK$14.5
million for the year ended 31 March 2017. The improvement was
contributed by the improving performance of the banner printing
business in Hong Kong and Malaysia, which became profitable for
the year ended 31 March 2018.

On 28 March 2017, E-Boss Co. Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group, invested in Sakura Japan Property (Hong Kong)
Limited (“Sakura”) with two independent investors. Sakura is
principally engaged in providing Japanese real estate agency
service in Hong Kong. It has commenced operation in April 2017
and was making profit for the year ended 31 March 2018. The
Board considers that this investment enables the Group to diversify
its business by utilising its reputation and system technology.
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Outlook

The Board expects the operating environment in Hong Kong
will remain challenging in the foreseeable future. Nevertheless,
the Group will continue to strive for Strengthening its business,
including but not limited to expanding banner business in Hong
Kong and Malaysia, reinforcing internal controls and streamlining
factory operation, production outsourcing in order to achieve stable
revenue growth for the Group. Meanwhile, the Group will proactively
look for new business opportunities from time to time to strengthen
its market share.

Under the leadership of the Board, the management of the Group
has formed a broad consensus in response to the key improvement
areas in the existing business operation and market expansion in
order to further enhance the Group’s overall competitiveness. The
Group will continue to strengthen its market position and increase
its market share by adopting the following approaches:

° Adopting the product diversification strategy by expanding the
product line of the existing printing business.

o Developing the new business line of gift products to meet the
increasing demand of the market.

° Continuously effort to improve the value added services,
including but not limited to the e-print app, self — service
platform, phone ordering system, self checkout and collecting
counters and the storage and delivery system.

Management Discussion and Analysis
EIRE kAT
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EIRE i R DT

Financial Review

Revenue

Revenue from the provision of printing and other services increased
by HK$12.7 million or 3.3% from HK$390.6 million for the year
ended 31 March 2017 to HK$403.3 milion for the year ended
31 March 2018. The growth was mainly contributed by the
increasing demands on the banner printing services provided by the
Group. The following table sets forth a breakdown of the revenue
by service category and their respective percentage of the total
revenue for the years indicated.

Bt %5 O R

&

AR & E b Bk 75 BT 18 A9 UK &5 B AR
E_E—+HE=A=1+—HBILtEEH
390,600,0007% JT 1 hn12,700,00078 7T sk
33%EHE-_ZFT—N\F=ZA=+—81t
F £ #9403,300,0007 7T - A B Wz E F
FERRAEBRMEREESEDR ARG A
ERTEN TR . TR RSB R
oMK EPRARESELHRAIIFEE
MBI E DL -

Advertising printing &% BNl 127,123 31.5% 131,854 33.8%
Bound book printing T E & E R 83,209 20.7% 84,581 21.6%
Stationery printing S E BN 85,148 21.1% 85,015 21.8%
Banner printing & = E il 82,370 20.4% 68,646 17.6%
Other services H b AR5 25,453 6.3% 20,542 5.2%
Total st 403,303 100 % 390,638 100%

The contribution to the sales mix by the banner printing increased
from 17.6% for the year ended 31 March 2017 to 20.4% for the
year ended 31 March 2018, while the advertising printing remained
as the major sources of revenue which accounted for 31.5% and
33.8% of our total revenue for year ended 31 March 2018 and
2017, respectively.

Sales Channels

BENRHHEAG 2 ARMARE T
—tF=ZA=1+—HILLFEN17.6%E
REBE-_FT - \F=ZA=1T—HLHF
JE#20.4% - & & ENRIAD A /% £ 2 e as
RE - BE_F-\FR-_F-—LF=HA
=t HIEFE 9B AKEERS1.5%
%33.8% °

HEREB

Stores &) 96,482 23.9% 96,517 24.7%
Websites 49k 164,055 40.7% 169,930 43.6%
Others (Note) Eb (FzE) 142,766 35.4% 124,191 31.8%
Total “as 403,303 100 % 390,638 100%

Note: “Others” refers to revenue derived from orders received over the telephone,
through e-mail, e-print mobile application and “Photobook” program.
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Financial Review continveq)

Revenue (continued)

Websites remained as the major sales channel of the Group and
it contributed 40.7% of total revenue for the year ended 31 March
2018, which is slightly lower when compared with that of the year
ended 31 March 2017. The sales contribution from other channels
increased from 31.8% for the year ended 31 March 2017 to 35.4%
for the year ended 31 March 2018. The change was attributable to
the increasing proportion of the revenue contributed by the banner
printing, in which the majority of sales orders were received through
phone call and e-mail.

Other income

Other income primarily comprised the interest income from
held-to-maturity investments and sales of scrap materials and sales
of software to the Group’s joint venture. There was an increase of
HK$1.0 million for the year ended 31 March 2018 when compared
to that of the year ended 31 March 2017, and it was mainly
contributed by the one-off sales of software of HK$3.4 million
received during the year, partly offsetting by the decrease in interest
income from held-to-maturity investment of HK$1.9 million.

Details of the held-to-maturity investments (the “HTM”) are as
follows:

As at 31 March 2017

Details of the HTM
BEZ2HF S

Investment date

RERM

Management Discussion and Analysis
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REINHRE((HEIBPRE]FBER
T

R-B—tH&E=ZHA=+—H

19 May 2015

Subscribed for unsecured notes issued by Grand Peace

HK$10,000,000

Group Holdings Limited (Stock code: 8108)

—ZE-hFAATNA
HEIER R

20 October 2016

RBEESREERBR LA (B 8108) #1T

Subscribed for bonds issued by National Arts Entertainment

10,000,000/ 7T

HK$5,000,000

and Culture Group Limited (stock code: 8228)

—F—xE+A=+A
%

11 November 2016
Ltd. (stock code: 913)

—2-AEt-At—B  RHA-REARBERAR (RHOR®: 1) EITHES

—=

REEBRECEBAR D F (MK 8228) #1T

Subscribed for bonds issued by Unity Investment Holdings

5,000,000/ 7T

HK$10,000,000

10,000,000/ 7T
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EIRE i R DT

Financial Review continueo)
Other income (continued)
As at 31 March 2018

Details of the HTM
BEZRHFS

Investment date

RERM

20 October 2016

Subscribed for bonds issued by National Arts Entertainment

B ¥ [E B8 o«
HWA 2
R-ZE—-NFE=ZA=+—H

Amount

|

HK$5,000,000

and Culture Group Limited (stock code: 8228)

—E-RF+A=-+H
H & 5

11 November 2016
Ltd. (stock code: 913)
—E-X"FT-A+—H

Details of the movements of the HTM during the year ended
31 March 2018 are set out in Note 22 to the financial information.
In view of the sufficiency of the Group’s liquidity, the Group had
diversified to invest in notes/bonds issued by the companies
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) for the purpose of capital preservation and a relative
high interest return accruing when compared with the bank interest
income. During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group had not
recorded any default nor interests delinquency. The Group’s future
investment options will depend on the Group’s liquidity position and
other cash planning.

Other losses — net

Other losses — net primarily comprised net loss incurred by the
disposal of plant, disposal of financial assets and equipment and
net foreign exchange gain or loss. The amount decreased by
HK$2.9 million when compared to that of the year ended 31 March
2017. It was the combined result of the decrease in the net loss on
disposal of plant and equipment by HK$1.7 million, the absence of
the loss on a one-off disposal of financial assets of HK$1.8 million
which incurred in the prior year, offsetting by the increase in net
foreign exchange loss for the year ended 31 March 2018.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses mainly consisted of staff costs,
distribution costs, handling charges for electronic payments, and
store rentals. Selling and distribution expenses represented 10.9%
and 11.0% of the revenue for the year ended 31 March 2018 and
2017 respectively. The increase of the expenses was mainly due to
the additional staff costs spent by the banner printing segment for
the purpose of expanding its operation and market shares during
the year.

12 eprint Group Limited Annual Report 2017/18

RBEBRECREBR D F (5 8228) #1T

Subscribed for bonds issued by Unity Investment Holdings

REA —REEBRARRAR (AR5 913) BITHESR

5,000,000/ 7T

HK$10,000,000

10,000,000/ 7T
BE_Z-\F=ZA=+—HLFEH
EAHZEYFRANTHEERM &

22 FERAEENRBECER R AFE
BREZENEEHARIMER AT
(TBERFT)) EHRAFFEITHRE
&5 AR E R RO HR P 2 A 9 A EUER
THNERASNANEL®R - RBEE-F
—NFZA=1T—HLFE AEHETE
BEERR SR MEL AEBE KRR
BREEREBIARANAKEENRBE SN
AR EMR S HE

Hib 18 — 5

HMEBE-FRIEARELERE K
ELMEEARBEENEBEERFEAL
ELEZFE - 28R _ZT—+F
—A=Z+—H1FER42,900,000%
T TR ERE KRB EBFERLD
1,700,000 T AR E F—FEMESE
B — X & 2 B & E B 181,800,00008
THEEREMB #EE-_ZE—N\F=
EE+—E¢$§E%%E%@%M%
8 o

HERDHEAX

HERDHEFEIETEREE TN D
KA - WREFNROFEBREHA
- HE_T—"NER_ZT—+F=AH
—t+—HIEFE - HEADHEBA XD RML
U B10.9% K%11.0% - B &+ & A
REZHRDBRAFEAEBRELE
MMM EMERNEIINE TR -



Financial Review continveq)

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses primarily comprised directors’
remunerations, staff costs and outsourced customer support
expenses. Administrative expenses represent 18.7% and 20.6%
of the total revenue for the year ended 31 March 2018 and 2017
respectively. The amount decreased by HK$5.0 million from
HK$80.5 million for the year ended 31 March 2017 to HK$75.5
million for the year ended 31 March 2018. The decrease in
expenses was the result of staff reassignment to sales team of
banner printing segment in the current year.

Finance income

Finance income represented the interest income generated from
bank deposits.

Finance costs

Finance costs primarily consisted of interest expenses on bank
borrowings and finance charges on obligations under finance lease.

Share of profit of a joint venture

Share of profit of a joint venture represented the share of result of
the Group’s joint venture. As at 31 March 2018, the Group had one
joint venture in Malaysia.

Share of losses of associates

Share of losses of associates represented the share of results of the
Group’s associates. As at 31 March 2018, the Company had two
associates operating in the PRC and Hong Kong respectively.

Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of
the Company

Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company
increased by HK$4.7 million or 27.2%, from HK$17.3 million for the
year ended 31 March 2017 to HK$22.0 million for the year ended
31 March 2018. Net profit margin also increased from 4.4% for the
year ended 31 March 2017 to 5.5% for the year ended 31 March
2018. The increase in the profit for the year attributable to equity
holders of the Company was mainly due to banner printing segment
was profitable for the year ended 31 March 2018.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Financial Review continveq)

Liquidity and Financial Information

As at 31 March 2018, the total amount of cash and cash
equivalents of the Group was HK$89.5 million, an increase of
HK$21.3 million as compared with that as at 31 March 2017. The
increase was mainly arising from the cash inflow generated in the
operating activities as well as the redemption of held-to-maturity
investments during the year. As at 31 March 2018, the financial
ratios of the Group were as follows:

Bt 7% [B] B8 ()

RBETRMBER

RZE—-—N\F=ZA=+—H A&EER
e MHEFEMEIBEAE MR ABS89,500,000
B BR_ZE-—+tF=ZA=+—B#EMN
21,300,000/ T ZEMEF B HNK S
éiﬁ%iﬂ’ﬁﬁ@mi\b&&ﬁ‘zﬁirﬁ“
REINMREMB-R_TE—-NF=A
=+—H XEEMBLEERAT:

As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
R=B-NFE R-FT—LF
=A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FHET
Current ratio ME) e RO 2.3 1.2
Gearing ratio @ BEAGEL X 13.7% 25.3%
Notes: B 5 -
(1) Current ratio is calculated based on total current assets divided by total current (1)  REHL R NIRARBEER NE RS EETE -
liabilities.

2) Gearing ratio is calculated based on total bank overdraft, borrowings and
obligation under finance leases divided by total equity and multiplied by 100%

Borrowings

The Group’ bank borrowings as at 31 March 2018 and 31 March
2017 were HK$24.6 million and HK$38.3 million respectively. All
bank borrowings were made from banks in Hong Kong and were
repayable within three years, except a mortgage loan of HK$21.9
million that was repayable within twenty years. No financial
instruments were used for hedging purposes, nor were there any
foreign currency net investments hedged by current borrowings
and/or other hedging instruments. The weighted average interest
rates (per annum) were 2.3% and 3.1% for the year ended 31
March 2018 and 31 March 2017 respectively.
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Financial Review continveq)

Treasury Policies

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity
position throughout the year. The Board closely monitors the
Group’s liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity structure of
the Group’s assets, liabilities and other commitments can meet its
funding requirements from time to time.

Capital Structure

The capital of the Company comprises ordinary shares and other
reserves. The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange since 3 December 2013. As at 31 March
2018, the total number of issued ordinary shares of the Company
was 550,000,000 shares.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2018 and 2017, the Group respectively had
capital commitments totaling HK$5.7 million and HK$4.5 million for
investment in an associate and purchase of computer equipment,
respectively.

Significant Investments Held

Except for the investments in subsidiaries, joint venture and
associates, the Group did not hold any significant investment in
equity interest in any other company during the year.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Financial Review continveq)

Future Plans for Material Investments and Capital
Assets

Except for the aforesaid capital commitment to the investment
in an associate, the Group did not have other plans for material
investments and capital assets.

Material Acquisitions

The Group did not have any material acquisition or disposal of
associates, joint ventures or subsidiaries for the year ended 31
March 2018.

Exposure to Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group operates principally in Hong Kong and its business is
supported by an information technology support services centre
located in the PRC. The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk
mainly arising from the exposure of Renminbi against Hong Kong
dollars. The Group does not hedge its foreign exchange risk as its
exposure to foreign exchange risk is low as the Group’s cash flows
mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

Charge of Assets

At 31 March 2018 and 2017, the Group pledged the plant and
machinery with a carrying value of HK$9.7 million and HK$23.8
million respectively, as collaterals to secure the Group’s obligation
under finance leases. As at 31 March 2018 and 2017, the Group
pledged two properties with the total carrying value of HK$64.7
million and HK$66.9 million respectively, as collaterals to secure the
Group’s mortgage loan.

Capital Expenditure
During the year, the Group invested HK$1.7 million in property,

plant and equipment, represented a reduction of 97.8% in capital
expenditure of last year.
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Employees and Emolument Policies

At 31 March 2018, the Group had 342 full time employees. There
is no significant change in the Group’s emolument policies. On top
of basic salaries, bonuses may be paid by reference to the Group’s
performance as well as individual’s performance. Other staff
benefits include housing allowances, contributions to Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme in Hong Kong, the
provision of pension funds, medical insurance, unemployment
insurance and other relevant insurance for employees who are
employed by the Group pursuant to the PRC rules and regulations
and the prevailing regulatory requirements of the PRC, and the
Employees Provident Fund and contributions to Social Security
Organization for employees who are employed by the Group
pursuant to the Malaysian rules and regulations and the prevailing
regulatory requirements of Malaysia.

Dividends

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2018 of HK2.40 cents per ordinary
share, totaling HK$13,200,000 to the shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on Tuesday,
21 August 2018 (2017: HK1.60 cents per ordinary share, totaling
HK$8,800,000).
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Corporate Governance Report
EEREE

The Company is committed to maintaining good corporate
governance standard and procedures to ensure the integrity,
transparency and quality of disclosure in order to enhance the
shareholders’ value.

Corporate Governance Practice

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (‘CG Code”) in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”) as its own code of corporate governance.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company was in
compliance with the code provisions set out in the CG Code except
for the deviation as explained below.

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the roles of
the chairman and chief executive officer should be separated and
should not be performed by the same individual. The Company
does not at present separate the roles of the chairman and chief
executive officer. Mr. She Siu Kee William is the chairman and chief
executive officer of the Company. The Board believes that vesting
the roles of both chairman and chief executive officer in the same
person has the benefit of ensuring consistent leadership within the
Group and enables more effective and efficient overall strategic
planning for the Group. The Board further believes that the balance
of power and authority for the present arrangement will not be
impaired and is adequately ensured by the current Board which
comprises experienced and high calibre individuals with sufficient
number thereof being non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors.

Save as the aforesaid and in the opinion of the Directors, the
Company had met all code provisions set out in the CG Code
during the year ended 31 March 2018.

The Board will continue to review and further improve the
Company’s corporate governance practices and standards, so as
to ensure its business activities and decision-making processes are
regulated in a proper and prudent manner.
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions as set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, the Company confirmed that all Directors
had complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 March 2018.

Board of Directors

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company, and is responsible for setting up the overall strategy as
well as reviewing the operation and financial performance of the
Group. The Board reserved for its decision or consideration matters
covering overall Group strategy, major acquisitions and disposals,
annual budgets, annual and interim results, recommendations on
Directors’ appointment or re-appointment, approval of major capital
transactions and other significant operational and financial matters.
The management was delegated the authority and responsibility
by the Board for the daily management of the Group. In addition,
the Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the Board
committees. Further details of these committees are set out in this
report.

The Board currently consists of eight Directors including two

executive Directors, three non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. She Siu Kee William (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lam Shing Kai

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chong Cheuk Ki
Mr. Leung Wai Ming
Mr. Deng Xiaen

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Poon Chun Wai
Mr. Fu Chung
Mr. Ma Siu Kit
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Board of Directors continueq)

A deed of confirmation was entered into, among others, Mr. She
Siu Kee William, Mr. Lam Shing Kai, Mr. Leung Wai Ming and
Mr. Chong Cheuk Ki on 2 July 2013 confirming the existence of
their acting in concert arrangement to jointly control their respective
interest in the Company held through eprint Limited. Save as
aforesaid, the Board members have no financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships with each other. Such balanced
board composition is formed to ensure strong independence
exists across the Board. The composition of the Board reflects
the balanced skills and experience for effective leadership. The
biographical information of the Directors are set out on pages 72 to
74 under the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” in this annual report.

The Board decides on corporate strategies, approves overall
business plans and evaluates the Group’s financial performance
and management. Specific tasks that the Board delegates to the
Group’s management include the implementation of strategies
approved by the Board, the monitoring of operating budgets, the
implementation of internal control procedures, and the ensuring of
compliance with relevant statutory requirements and other rules and
regulations.

Board Meetings

During the year ended 31 March 2018, 4 Board meetings were
held. All Directors were given an opportunity to include any matters
in the agenda for regular Board meetings, and were also given
sufficient time to review documents and information relating to
matters to be discussed in Board meetings in advance.

Name of Director
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Number of
attendance

R B

Mr. She Siu Kee William RAELE
Mr. Lam Shing Kai MRAEE S A
Mr. Chong Cheuk Ki ATEHAEA
Mr. Leung Wai Ming REREE
Mr. Deng Xiaen HEBREAE
Mr. Poon Chun Wai 7 R B 5 A
Mr. Fu Chung HREE

Mr. Ma Siu Kit BN ZE
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Board Meetings (continueq)

Board minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for
inspection by the Directors. Every Board member is entitled to have
access to Board papers and related materials, and has unrestricted
access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary, and
has the liberty to seek external professional advice if so required.

General Meeting

During the year ended 31 March 2018, 1 general meeting was held,
being the 2017 annual general meeting of the Company held on
8 August 2017.

Corporate Governance Report
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Number of
attendance

Name of Director

Mr. She Siu Kee William RBERE
Mr. Lam Shing Kai MRAEESL &
Mr. Chong Cheuk Ki HEIELE
Mr. Leung Wai Ming RRERALE
Mr. Deng Xiaen HEREL
Mr. Poon Chun Wai & R B 5T A
Mr. Fu Chung BRLEE

Mr. Ma Siu Kit BIRAREE

The Board is responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue with
shareholders and in particular, uses annual general meetings or
other general meetings to communicate with them and encourage
their participation. The Board notes that the Chairman of the Board
and the chairmen or, in their absence, other members of the audit
committee (“Audit Committee”), nomination committee (“Nomination
Committee”) and remuneration committee (“Remuneration
Committee”) of the Company should attend the annual general
meeting to answer questions and collect views of shareholders.

Directors’ Training

According to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the board remains informed and relevant.

All Directors have participated in continuous professional
development by way of attending seminars relating to their role as a
Director of the Company.
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Directors’ Training (continueq)

The individual training record of each Director received for the year
ended 31 March 2018 is set out below:

Name of Director

Mr. She Siu Kee William RIBERE
Mr. Lam Shing Kai MEERE
Mr. Chong Cheuk Ki HEHEE
Mr. Leung Wai Ming ZERKE
Mr. Deng Xiaen HEREL
Mr. Poon Chun Wai 8 PR B 5T A
Mr. Fu Chung HEREE

Mr. Ma Siu Kit BFIRAREE

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. She Siu Kee William, the Chairman of the Company, was also
appointed as the chief executive officer of the Company. The Board
believes that vesting the roles of both chairman and chief executive
officer in the same person has the benefit of ensuring consistent
leadership within the Group and enables more effective and efficient
overall strategic planning for the Group. The Board further believes
that the balance of power and authority for the present arrangement
will not be impaired and is adequately ensured by current Board
which comprises experienced and high calibre individuals with
sufficient number thereof being non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors.
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Independent non-executive Directors and
non-executive Directors

The three independent non-executive Directors are persons of
high calibre, with working experience, academic and professional
qualifications in the fields of accounting, company secretaryship,
printing or management. With their experience gained from
various sectors, they provide strong support towards the effective
discharge of the duties and responsibilities of the Board. Each
independent non-executive Director gives an annual confirmation
of his independence to the Company, and the Company considers
each of them to be independent under Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

All non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors are appointed for a specific term and are subject to
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Articles of Association
of the Company (the “Articles”).

Nomination Committee

In considering the nomination of new Directors, the Board will
take into account the qualification, ability, working experience,
leadership and professional ethics of the candidates, especially their
experience in the printing business and/or other professional area.

The Company established the Nomination Committee on
13 November 2013 with written terms of reference, which was
aligned with the CG Code. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee is currently made available on the Stock Exchange'’s
website and the Company’s website.

The Nomination Committee consists of two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Fu Chung (as chairman) and
Mr. Poon Chun Wai, and an executive Director, namely Mr. She
Siu Kee William. The functions of the Nomination Committee are
to review the structure, size, composition and diversity of the
Board and make recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Group’s strategy; to identify
qualified individuals to become members of the Board; to assess
the independence of independent non-executive Directors; and
to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors,
in particular the Chairman and the chief executive officer. The
Board adopted on 13 November 2013 the board diversity policy
(the “Policy”) and delegated certain duties under the Policy to the
Nomination Committee. The Company seeks to achieve Board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factors, including
but not limited to age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service. The Company will also take into consideration its own
business model and specific needs from time to time in determining
the optimum composition of the Board.
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Nomination Committee continvea)

The Nomination Committee will review the necessity for setting
measurable objectives for implementing the Policy from time to
time.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Nomination Committee
held 1 meeting for (1) reviewing the Board composition, (2)
reviewing the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors and (3) assessing the necessity to set measurable
objectives for implementing the Policy.

REZEESw
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Number of
attendance

Nomination Committee member

Mr. Fu Chung HREE
Mr. Poon Chun Wai EIRE A&
Mr. She Siu Kee William SAESLE

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on
13 November 2013 with written terms of reference, which
was aligned with the CG Code. The terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee is currently made available on the Stock
Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.

The Remuneration Committee consists of two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Poon Chun Wai (as chairman)
and Mr. Fu Chung and one executive Director, namely Mr. She Siu
Kee William.

The functions of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure on the remuneration packages for all Directors’ and
senior management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy. The
model of Remuneration Committee described in code provision
B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code has been adopted by the Remuneration
Committee, which is to make recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration packages of individual executive directors and
senior management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable for
loss or termination of their office or appointment.
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Remuneration Committee (continueq)

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Remuneration
Committee held 2 meetings for (1) reviewing the remuneration
structure for the executive Directors and senior management
and the remuneration proposals for the year 2017/2018 and (2)
reviewing the remuneration structure for the executive Directors and
senior management and the remuneration proposals for the year
2018/2019.

Remuneration Committee member

Corporate Governance Report
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Mr. Poon Chun Wai EIR BT AE
Mr. She Siu Kee William REBELE
Mr. Fu Chung BREE

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on
13 November 2013. The purpose of the share option scheme is
to recognize and acknowledge the contributions of the eligible
participants to motivate them and to optimize their performance
and efficiency for the benefit of the Group and to attract or retain or
otherwise maintain on-going business relationships with the eligible
participants whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the
long-term growth of the Group. Details of the share option scheme
are set out in the Directors’ Report.

The emolument payable to Directors will depend on their respective
contractual terms under employment contracts or service contracts,
if any, and will be fixed by the Board based on the recommendation
of the Remuneration Committee, the performance of the Group and
the prevailing marketing conditions. Details of the Directors and
senior management’s emoluments for the year ended 31 March
2018 are set out in Note 37 to the financial statements.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee with written terms
of reference on 13 November 2013, which was aligned with the
code provisions under the CG Code. The terms of reference of
the Audit Committee is currently made available on the Stock
Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Ma Siu Kit (as chairman), Mr. Poon Chun Wai
and Mr. Fu Chung.
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Audit Committee continveq)

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the external auditor and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions
of resignation or dismissal of such auditor; reviewing the interim
and annual reports and accounts of the Group; and overseeing
the Company’s financial reporting system (including the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff in charge
of the Company’s financial reporting function and their training
arrangement and budget) and supervising the risk management and
the internal control systems.

The Audit Committee meets the external auditor regularly to discuss
any area of concern during the audit. The Audit Committee reviews
the interim and annual reports before submission to the Board. The
Audit Committee focuses not only on the impact of the changes in
accounting policies and practices but also on the compliance with
accounting standards, the Listing Rules and the legal requirements
in the review of the Company’s interim and annual reports.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Audit Committee held 3
meetings.
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Name of Director

Mr. Ma Siu Kit BIRMNEE
Mr. Poon Chun Wai EIRE A&
Mr. Fu Chung BREE

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Audit Committee
reviewed, among others, the annual and interim results of the
Group, which were in the opinion of the Audit Committee that the
preparation of such consolidated financial statements and results
complied with the applicable accounting standards and the Listing
Rules.

The Audit Committee noted the existing risk management and

internal control systems of the Group and also noted that review of
the same shall be carried out annually.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Company’s corporate governance functions are carried out
by the Board pursuant to the code provisions as set out in the CG
code.

The corporate governance functions currently performed by
the Board are to develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance to comply with the CG
Code and other legal or regulatory requirements; to oversee the
Company’s orientation program for new Directors; to review and
monitor the training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management; to develop, review and monitor
the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and Directors; and to review the Company’s disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Board had reviewed the
training and continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management, reviewed the Company’s compliance with the
CG Code and reviewed the Company’s disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.

Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year ended to 31 March 2018, the remuneration payable or
paid to the Company’s auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”),
is as follows:
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Services rendered MR
— Audit services — B RS 1,566
— Non-audit services (Note) —FERET RS (PIE) 111

Note: The non-audit services provided by PwC include tax services and other
related services.

Company Secretary

Mr. Mok Chun Wa (“Mr. Mok”) was appointed as the company
secretary on 30 September 2016. The biographical details of
Mr. Mok are set out under the section headed “Biographical Details
of Directors and Senior Management”.

According to the requirements of Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules,
Mr. Mok had taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training for the year ended 31 March 2018.
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Shareholders’ Rights

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communication between the shareholders and the Board. An
annual general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year
and at the place as may be determined by the Board. Each general
meeting, other than an annual general meeting, shall be called an
extraordinary general meeting.

Shareholders to convene an extraordinary general
meeting

According to the Articles of the Company, extraordinary general
meetings shall be convened on the requisition of one or more
Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not
less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having
the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be
made in writing to the Board or the company secretary for the
purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. Such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of
the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

Putting enquiries by shareholders to the Board

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for the
attention of the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong. The relevant address is as follows:

Flat A3, 1st Floor, Phase 3
Kwun Tong Industrial Centre
448-458 Kwun Tong Road
Kwun Tong, Kowloon

Hong Kong

Procedures for putting forward proposals by
shareholders at shareholders’ meetings

Shareholders should follow the procedures set out in the
sub-section headed “Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting” above for putting forward proposals for discussion
at general meetings.
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Shareholders’ Rights (continue)

Voting by Poll

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of
shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll except
where the chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a resolution
which relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter to be
voted on by a show of hands. As such, all the resolutions to be set
out in the notice of 2018 annual general meeting will be voted by
poll.

Investor Relations

The Company is committed to a policy of open and regular
communication and reasonable disclosure of information to its
shareholders.

Information of the Company is disseminated to the shareholders in
the following manner:

° Delivery of annual and interim results and reports to all
shareholders;

° Publication of announcements on the annual and interim
results on the Stock Exchange’s website, and issue of other
announcements and shareholders’ circulars in accordance
with the continuing disclosure obligations under the Listing
Rules; and

o General meeting of the Company is also an effective
communication channel between the Board and shareholders.

Corporate Governance Report
hERERWE

IR SRR a0

RERR

RIE LR BIE13.39(4) % lRR N EER K
LN ERMRALDEARERRET B
FETFREBOREAFMAEFRIEFHITHE
HHEBARBEABFRELETROR -HILL
—E- N\FERRBFREBEMENDE
RBRERBARERR

REEMR

RN m) B BRER B A B RE - E B BRI R
AR TRAREFEHSBOERE-

R B R ERHA T FIZ = 1 A R 2

BREFE2FRTHEER

# B
D by
B

s

VXM B2 FRPHES
REREBELTRANBERESR
T A MRS RABCRE K &

N

.

s ARFHMERAENT/EFEHR
RzENABEBRE-

2017/18F % eprint EMERAT 29



Corporate Governance Report
PERERWME

Directors’ Responsibilities for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the
Company’s consolidated financial statements for each financial year
which give a true and fair view of financial position of the Group and
the Group’s financial performance and cash flows for that period. In
preparing the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2018, the Board has selected suitable accounting policies
and applied them consistently; made judgments and estimates that
are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the accounts on a
going concern basis.

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and
necessary steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and to
prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the consolidated
financial statements.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for monitoring the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group on
an ongoing basis and review their effectiveness. Such systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, conducted an annual
review of both design and implementation effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2018, covering all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls, with a view to
ensuring that resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal audit
and financial reporting functions are adequate. In this respect, the
Audit Committee communicates any material issues to the Board.

30 eprint Group Limited Annual Report 2017/18

EENEGHUYBRRNEE

EEeRAEYRUEARAEVWREFER
MEHTHERERNEE GHMBERRE
BB R MRS B ) BE A RO A
EASERZHENPBERALRER
E-RREBE_ZT-/\F=A=1+—H
IFFEEAHVBRRE EFSEERE
Ve TR B U A 1 R HI BT e
AREE - QATREE URFELEER
EREEAE -

EERERN—UEEMFNTEY AR
EAREBNEE W RERKBITAR
K EAMEERITR -

EENFLAEETHRRARAEE AR
RAERAN R B R 208 RN
HEHVBBRREBEARAFEEE-

[\ B B3R K BB EE 4%

EEeAREFEIRBERERAER
ERAEERRBREEMNAMEZERRLE
BIEMRM - ZERBE EEEMIEHERRK
REEXEHBENER BERIRERKX
B EBRIEL S EMIEBEMRE -

BHE_ZT-N\F=ZA=+—-HILFE"
ES2BERZBESHAKERRE
I Ko B BR PR R AT RO AR AT M B e B AU
TEERN REMBEENZEH B
BoREMARES FEBRASERE
SR AREZLYBERBETE2E
B-BITEENEE B LERE
BErE-Bltms ELZEEREFNE
AREHEREEEER-



Risk Management and Internal Control
(Continued)

The Directors have reviewed the need for an internal audit function
and are of the view that in light of the size, nature and complexity
of the business of the Group, it would be more cost effective to
appoint external independent professionals to perform internal audit
function for the Group in order to meet its needs.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group appointed Baker
Tilly Hong Kong Risk Assurance Limited (“Baker Tilly”) to:

o assist in identifying and assessing the risks of the Group
through a series of workshops and interviews; and

° independently perform internal control review and assess
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems.

The results of the independent review and assessment were
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board. Moreover,
improvements in internal control and risk management measures
as recommended by Baker Tilly to enhance the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group and mitigate risks of
the Group were adopted by the Board. Based on the findings and
recommendations of Baker Tilly as well as the comments of the
Audit Committee, the Board considered the internal control and risk
management systems effective and adequate.

Enterprise Risk Management Framework

The Group established its enterprise risk management framework
in the year. While the Board has the overall responsibility to
ensure that sound and effective internal controls are maintained,
management is responsible for designing and implementing an
internal control system to manage all kinds of risks faced by the
Group.

Through the risk identification and assessment processes, risks
are identified, assessed, prioritized and allocated treatments. The
Group’s risk management framework follows the COSO Enterprise
Risk Management — Integrated Framework, which allows the Board
and management to manage the risks of the Group effectively. The
Board receives regular reports through the Audit Committee that
oversees risk management and internal audit functions.
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Enterprise Risk Management Framework
(Continued)

Principal Risks

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the following principal risks
of the Group were identified and classified into strategic risks,
operational risks, financial risks and compliance risks.

Risk Areas Principal Risks
[ B A 5 FERR

Strategic Risks
R R b
Operational Risks
EERR
Financial Risks

No significant risk identified

RERERAR
RREABH L 2 IRE

No significant risk identified

B 75 [ Bz REEIRE K@
Compliance Risks
& AR T EBBRIBREBRD

Risk Control Mechanism

The Group adopts a “three-layer” corporate governance structure
with operational management and controls performed by operations
management, coupled with risk management monitoring carried out
by the finance team and independent internal audit outsourced to
and conducted by Baker Tilly. The Group maintains a risk register to
keep track of all identified major risks of the Group. The risk register
provides the Board, the Audit Committee, and management with a
profile of its major risks and records management’s actions taken
to mitigate the relevant risks. Each risk is evaluated at least annually
based on its likelihood of occurrence and potential impact upon
the Group. The risk register is updated by management as the risk
owners with addition of new risks and/or removal of existing risks,
if applicable, at least annually, after the annual risk evaluation has
been performed. This review process can ensure that the Group
proactively manages the risks faced by it in the sense that all risk
owners have access to the risk register and are aware of and alert
to those risks in their area of responsibility so that they can take
followup actions in an efficient manner.
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Risk Control Mechanism (continueq)

The Group’s risk management activities are performed by
management on an ongoing process. The Company has adopted
risk management policy and procedures (the “Risk Management
Policy”). The effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
framework will be evaluated at least annually, and periodic
management meeting is held to update the progress of risk
monitoring efforts. Management is committed to ensure that risk
management forms part of the daily business operation processes
in order to align risk management with corporate goals in an
effective manner.

The Company will continue to engage external independent
professionals to review the Group’s system of internal controls and
risk management annually to further enhance the Group’s internal
control and risk management systems as appropriate.

Handling and Dissemination of Inside
Information

The Company regulates the handling and dissemination of inside
information according to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information” published by the Securities and Future Commission
in June 2012 to ensure inside information remains confidential
until the disclosure of such information is appropriately approved,
and the dissemination of such information is efficiently and
consistently made. The Company regularly reminds the Directors
and employees about due compliance with all policies regarding
the inside information. Also, the Company keeps Directors, senior
management and employees appraised of the latest regulatory
updates. The Company shall prepare or update appropriate
guidelines or policies to ensure the compliance with regulatory
requirements.

Constitutional Documents

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year ended 31 March 2018.
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RS dHERERHRE

Approach

eprint Group Limited (hereafter called the “Company”) is committed
to promoting transparency of the Company’s operations and
its impact on the environment and society in which it operates,
and also communicating with its stakeholders. The results of the
Environmental, Social and Governance (‘ESG”) review shown in this
report demonstrate the importance of environmental protection we
place on top of our business development target, and explain how
we seek to continually improve our ESG strategy in line with global
standards. This report also illustrates the focus of our resources
utilized for our core operations in order for the Company to become
the leading printing company for creating a highly efficient and
balanced business profile.

With both integrity and determination, we look at issues that
may have a reputational impact on, or that may pose a risk to,
the Company and its subsidiaries (hereafter called the “Group”)
in the short-, medium- or long-term. Issues that are important to
our stakeholders, including but not limited to, our customers and
employees, as well as non-governmental organizations (‘“NGOs”),
are also crucial to us. We are positive in developing opportunities
with a focus on work ethics to ensure that the Group’s success in
business development is sustainable with the benefits to be passed
on to our employees, customers and the environment.

We see the integration of sustainability into our business strategy as
well as daily operations as a must to pursue our business model.
To deal with the ESG issues effectively, understanding of, and
interaction with, our employees, customers and other stakeholders
are of the highest priority. We believe that effective management
of ESG issues is important to our long-term success in a rapidly
changing world. With thorough understanding of the ESG risks
and opportunities, the Group will be better positioned in allocating
its resources to reduce and recycle different kinds of waste, and
responding to the increasing demand for higher standards of waste
treatment by regulators. Thus, with all the aforementioned factors,
the Group expects itself to face greater challenges. In addition,
we believe that our expertise, capabilities, and ownership model
can form part of the solutions to some of the challenges that
organizations around the world are already facing. We are confident
that as part of the business decision-making process, by involving
all relevant stakeholders in the ESG management process, we
will be able to better monitor the ESG issues, and the long-term
success of the Group will be assured.
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Approach continueq)

Finally, our sustainability strategy in the following aspects applies to
all the work streams:

1. To promote environmental sustainability;
2. To attract, retain and support employees;
3. To engage with stakeholders;

4.  To sustain local communities;

5. To strengthen community relations;

6. To grow suppliers’ commitment.

About this report

Report Profile

This ESG report (“Report”) focuses on the Group’s main operations
in Hong Kong, PRC and Malaysia, for the financial year ended
31 March 2018 (“Reporting Period”). It describes the Group’s
progress on its way towards creating sustainable value for its
shareholders and other stakeholders. During the process of
preparing this Report, we have conducted thorough review and
evaluation of the existing ESG practices of the Group with the aim
of achieving better performance results in the future.

Report Scope and Boundary

This Report contains information that is material to understand the
Group’s ESG practices and performance in its daily operations in
Hong Kong, PRC and Malaysia.

In addition to the internal factors such as our core values, strategy
and competency that contribute to our sustainable development,
we have communicated with our stakeholders and considered the
ESG challenges as reported by other market players, to decide and
prioritize material topics in this Report.
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About this report (continueq

Report Scope and Boundary (continuea)

The material ESG issues are considered as those which have or
may have a significant impact on:

° the various branches of the Group in Hong Kong, PRC and
Malaysia;

° current and future environment and/or society;
° our financial and/or operational performance; and
° our stakeholders’ assessments, decisions and actions.

This Report is prepared in accordance with the Stock Exchange’s
ESG Reporting Guide as set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules
Governing the Listing Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

Should you wish to provide comments or recommend
improvements on our ESG reporting, please reach us through our
feedback hotline (telephone no. at (852) 2319 7121). Although
there were no specific programs to engage stakeholders outside
the Group when this Report was being prepared, we have included
the key issues which are of different stakeholder groups’ concerns,
based on our continual communication with them. Alternatively,
you are also welcome to send your comments and suggestions
regarding our ESG performance to our Company Secretary and
Chief Financial Officer, Mr. Mok Chun Wa, by mail.
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Our Stakeholders B0 &

The Group is actively looking for every opportunity to understand ANEBREGES kT —EAEMENFTHEL
and engage our stakeholders to ensure that improvement of our HEH# & EREXERMNE R KR
products and services can be implemented. We strongly believe 5 © #{f1 B2 (= 55 {0 & £ (R £ R PIMS X

that our stakeholders play a crucial role in sustaining the success of

our business.

Stakeholders

K&

Possible points of concern
HREEEER

Communication and responses

BERERE

HKEXx Compliance with listing rules, timely and Meetings, training, workshops, programs,
accurate announcements. website updates and announcements.

BERRXFM BT EHRAD REEREL AL %E%%%Jl%ﬁﬁ%ﬁé*%%%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ&@

= o

Government Compliance with laws and regulations, Interaction and visits, government
preventing tax evasion, and social welfare.  inspections, tax returns and other

information.

B BPRERER B RA R GRA - EFHLRR BFRE WK REMER -

Suppliers Payment schedule, stable supply. Site visits.

HER N REHIE - WIS HE -

Investors Corporate governance system, business Seminars, interviews, shareholders’ meetings,
strategies and performance, investment financial reports or operation reports for
returns. investors, media and analysts.

REE EEEABR XBREERR REEE RERDMERKOMTE 5h
KE B - HBRRERAE MBEREHLLEME -

Media & Public Corporate governance, environmental Newsletters on the Company’s web site.
protection, human right.

REEAR REER RRER A AR BRI B Mma) T E e

Customers Product quality, service delivery schedule,  Site visits, after-sales services.
reasonable prices, service value, personal
data protection

BF EmE R RFEXH:E 5 RER RIGAE  E@IRG -

R EME  HAEEHRE-

Employees Rights and benefits, employee Team building activities, training, interviews
compensation, training and development, with employees, internal memos, employees’
work hours, working environment, labour suggestion boxes.
protection and work safety

== A RAER 28] 55 KR EHEREY 5 REEEA REN
ITERR  ITERR BIRER MEENETERME-

ITEEZ-

Community Community environment, employment and ~ Community activities, employee voluntary
community development, social welfare. activities and community welfare subsidies

and donations.

HE HERE ERRTEER HEEF - HEREH EEEREBREEBNER R

B/
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Environmental

Overview

We understand that a healthy environment is the foundation for
economic progress and well-being of the society. Thus, our priority
is to protect the environment and minimize adverse impact on the
environment.

The Group has established a set of management policies and
measures regarding environmental protection to help ensure
sustainable development and efficient operations of the Group. The
Group strives to enhance the efficiency in the use of energy, water
and materials, and also to comply with relevant local environmental
regulations and international general practices, with an aim to
reduce the use of natural resources and protect the environment.

We aim at striking a balance between sustainable corporate
development and environmental protection, and thus, we closely
monitor greenhouses gas emissions and resources consumption
rates to minimize our impact on the environment and natural
resources.

Compliance and Grievance

As far as the Group is concerned, there was no reported
non-compliance incidents or grievances noted by the Group in
relation to environmental aspects during the Reporting Period.

Emissions

The Group has established the “Environmental Protection and Use
of Resources Policy & Procedures” by which we pay full attention
to environmental protection standards and guidelines to help fulffill
our commitment to environmental protection and efficient use of
resources.

The Group has implemented a number of internal environmental
protection measures, with appropriate equipment installed to help
reduce the adverse impact brought to the environment. At the
same time, we are committed to achieving environmental protection
and energy conservation by cooperating with other environmental
protection units and by promoting them to the public.
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Environmental (continueq)

Emissions (continuea)

In order to achieve the above objectives, we have adopted the
following working principles:

° To comply with the regulations.

The Group ensures that internal guidelines and procedures
are in place for all its business operations to follow in order to
comply with the relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong,
PRC and Malaysia.

o To prevent pollution.

The Group does its best to avoid, reduce and control
environmental pollution caused by its daily operations.

° To reduce the wastes.

While there is no wastewater discharge from its operations in
the PRC and Malaysia, the Group has installed an automatic
wastewater treatment system to ensure that any effluent
discharged to the drainage complies with the relevant
regulatory requirements in Hong Kong. The Group also
engages external agencies to perform waste discharge testing
annually to ensure that the pH value of the discharge fulfils the
environmental protection standard set by the government.

In addition, the Group closely cooperates with qualified
environmental recyclers to recycle solid wastes produced
during the production process in Hong Kong (including,
but not limited to, waste paper, waste zinc, waste plastic
materials, etc.).

o To reduce consumption of resources.

The Group aims at implementing convenient and
cost-effective waste management; and upholding sustainable
development by reducing consumption of resources, reducing
manufacturing waste, as well as reusing and recycling of
reusable wastes.
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Environmental (continueq)

Emissions (continued)

° To improve the Group’s performance.

Based on the changes in internal and external factors,
management reviews the objectives relating to environmental
protection, use of resources, and sustainable development
and operations of the Group in order to continuously improve
the Group’s performance.

Besides, the Group has obtained a Discharge Licence (Licence No.
WT00016373-2013) which is valid until 30 June 2018 in relation
to the Water Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 358). The Group
has also been granted with the Registration of Waste Producer
(Producer No.: 3422-295-12807-01) under the Waste Disposal
(Chemical Waste) (General) Regulation (Cap. 354C).

For details regarding emissions during the Reporting Period,
please refer to the section of “Key Performance Indicators — A.
Environmental — Emission Indicators KPI A1.1 & KPI A1.2”,

Total Hazardous Wastes and Non-Hazardous Wastes
& Results Achieved by Mitigating Emissions

Hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are generated during the
course of our production and daily operations.

Hazardous wastes include, but are not limited to, chemical
wastewater, cloths stained with chemicals, wasted zinc, photograph
potions, Isopropyl alcohol (IPA) and Polyvinyl Chloride (PVC).
Non-hazardous wastes include, but are not limited to, paper, foam
board, synthesized paper, lightbox film, canvas and sticker.

During the Reporting Period, we complied with all relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on our business, including,
but not limited to, Waste Disposal Ordinance in Hong Kong, Solid
Waste and Public Cleansing Management Act 2007 in Malaysia,
and the Law of China on Prevention and Control of Environmental
Pollution by Solid Waste in China.
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Environmental (continueq)

Total Hazardous Wastes and Non-Hazardous Wastes
& Results Achieved by Mitigating Emissions (continued)

In order to mitigate the emission of wastes, the Group has
configured the wastewater recycling system and has engaged
qualified recyclers to recycle wastes. Wastes being recycled include
chemical wastewater, wasted zinc, photograph potions and paper.

For details regarding the production of wastes during the Reporting
Period, please refer to the section of “Key Performance Indicators
— A. Environmental — Hazardous Waste Indicators KPI A1.3 &
Non-hazardous Waste Indicators KPI A1.4”,

Use of resources

The Group has established the “Environmental Protection and Use
of Resources Policy & Procedures” to ensure that the concept of
environmental sustainability is integrated into every part of our daily
business operations by complying with all environmental protection
policies, practices and initiatives.

The Group complies with the policies in the efficient use of
resources, including energy, water and raw materials.

It is very important for the Group to monitor water quality and air
quality, and strengthen the investigation, assessment and reporting
processes and procedures as for the impact of our production on
the ecosystem in order to prevent any environmental accidents from
happening.
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Environmental (continueq)

Direct/indirect usage of electricity/water and raw
materials

The practices that reduce the use of resources include:

Electricity:

I

B /BERE KREHH

B BERE BB R IE:

= 45
F.l

le|

Support the “Indoor Temperature Savings Charter” program
to maintain the average indoor temperature from 24 to 26
degrees Celsius.

Use compact fluorescent lamps, T5, T8 light tubes or LED
lights.

Turn off the electrical appliances e.g. air conditioners, lights,
and computers, etc., when they are not in use e.g. during
non-office hours, and lunch time.

Turn off lights and air conditioners in the office/production
plant when members of staff are not in the office/production
plant e.g. Saturday afternoon.

Ensure that all lights, air conditioners and electrical appliances
that are not in use are turned off properly when the last
colleague leaves the office/production plant.

Water:

42

Report matters related to water dripping to the Administration
Department for follow-up.

Turn off the water source after use.

Use recycled water instead of running water for rinsing zinc
plates.

Install filters in printing machines to recycle water.

Configure a wastewater treatment system which helps to
dilute the wastewater produced during the pre-press stage
of production to ensure that the pH value of the wastewater
meets the required standard before the wastewater is
discharged.
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Environmental (continueq)

Direct/indirect usage of electricity/water and raw
materials (continued)

Raw materials:
o Use non-alcoholic printing to reduce air pollution.

° Use environmental-friendly paper during each production
process.

° Provide FSC (Forest Certification) paper as one of the choices
which the customers can choose from.

o Clean regularly the parts of the production machine
contaminated with color ink to reduce cases of reprint.

° If some parts can still be reused after they have been taken
out from the machine, they will be reserved as spare parts.

o Use kraft paper instead of carton packaging for some of the
packaging.

° Encourage customers to bring their own shopping bags
(BYOB).

° Use the printing ink in the production process that is made of
soybeans.

° Hand over most of the wastes produced in the production
process to the qualified recyclers for recycling.

For details regarding the consumption of energy and water
during the Reporting Period, please refer to the section of “Key
Performance Indicators — A. Environment — Energy and Water
Consumption Indicators KPI A2.1 & KPI A2.2”

Packaging materials used for finished products

To reduce the carbon footprint and contribute to saving the planet,
the Group encourages our customers to minimize the use of plastic
bags. We suggest our customers to bring their own shopping bags.
Besides, the majority of the packaging materials used by the Group
are recyclable and biodegradable.

For details regarding the consumption of packaging materials
during the Reporting Period, please refer to the section of “Key
Performance Indicators — A. Environment — Packaging Materials
Indicators KPI A2.5”.
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Social

Workplace

The key to our success depends on the well-organized team of
qualified and experienced talents. We focus on assisting our staff
to achieve their career goals and self-development. We provide
training through seminars and forums, and encourage our staff to
grow with the Group together.

The Group’s team profile

As at 31 March 2018, we had 342 employees in total. For the
statistics related to our employment structure and employee
turnover rate as at the year ended March 2018 and March 2017,
please refer to the section of “Key Performance Indicators — B.
Social — Employment Indicators — KPI B1.1 & KPI B1.2”.

The Group maintains an Employees’ Handbook which stipulates
the policies of recruitment, dismissal, promotion, remuneration
and benefits of employees. Every employee gets a copy of the
Employees’ Handbook to make sure that they aware of their rights
and responsibilities. All new employees have an employment
contract signed with the Group, setting out the rights and
responsibilities of both parties in order to safeguard the interests of
both parties.

Besides, “Human Resources Operation Procedures” has been
established by the Human Resources Department as the guidelines
in relation to monitoring of human resources of the Group. The
“Human Resources Operation Procedures” helps management
to comply with labour laws and relevant regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group’s internal procedures relating to
recruitment and promotion, working hours, and holidays, etc. For
example, employees should normally work for 8-9 hours per day
and they can apply for overtime claims or compensation leave,
subject to the approval of department supervisors.

Moreover, employees are entitled to have annual leave according
to their grades and the departments which they belong to. For
instance, staff at officer grade and managerial grade are entitled
to have 11 days and 14 days of annual leave respectively in their
first year of employment. Furthermore, all our employees are
entitled to 5 days of marriage leave and 2 days of compassionate
leave for their close family members i.e. parents/children/spouse/
grandparents.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Social (Continued)

The Group’s team profile (continved)

In addition, the Group strictly complies with all relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on its business, including
but not limited to the following:

1. The Group is in compliance with the local laws and
regulations, such as enforcing the terms of employment under
the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57) as for recruitment,
and provision of reasonable working conditions.

2. The Group provides MPF benefits to our staff in accordance
with the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.

3. In determining the remuneration of employees, the Group

complies with the “Minimum Wage Ordinance” (Chapter 608).

4.  For both recruitment and dismissal, the Group prohibits
practice of discrimination by complying with the Sex
Discrimination Ordinance (Chapter 480), the Disability
Discrimination Ordinance (Chapter 481) and Race
Discrimination Ordinance (Chapter 602).

5.  The Group follows the “Employees’ Compensation Ordinance”
(Chapter 282) in regard to the work injury of employees.

Protecting Health and Safety

We focus on providing a safe and enjoyable working environment
for all of our employees.

During the Reporting Period, we complied with all relevant laws
and regulations regarding industrial health and safety, such as
Factories and Industrial Undertaking Ordinance (Chapter 59) and
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Chapter 509) in Hong
Kong. In the case that an employee encounters an industrial
accident, the Group will take all necessary measures to ensure that
adequate compensation is granted to the employee concerned
in accordance with the requirements stipulated in the Employees’
Compensation Ordinance.
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Social (Continued)

Protecting Health and Safety (continueq)

We signed a “Health and Safety Policy” statement in 2013 to
emphasize that occupational safety is the first priority of our Group.
In this respect, we encourage our employees to attend relevant
training and we provide sufficient guidance and supervision to
the employees. For instance, we arranged for occupational safety
training in August 2017, with the aim of arousing awareness of the
prevention of manual handling injuries in the workplace.

The Group has also established “Internal Safety Rules” and “Safety
and Health Management Policies and Procedures” to standardize
the occupational safety procedures of various departments of
the Group, with an aim to protect employees from occupational
hazards.

Furthermore, a Safety Committee has been established to
meet regularly and supervise the occupational safety of various
departments, as well as coordinate and implement training on
occupational safety for the employees.

For the number of work-related fatalities and lost days due to
work injury during the Reporting Period, please refer to the section
of “Key Performance Indicators — B. Social — Health and Safety
Indicators — KPI B2.1 & KPI B2.2”.

Development and Training

We believe that our staff members are the valuable assets of the
organization. By investing in our employees, we improve the service
quality of the Group. We also believe that by organizing training
through seminars and forums for our employees, job satisfaction
would be promoted and staff motivation would be increased,
thereby lowering staff turnover rate.

Training is arranged for new employees during the probation with
regard to the skills required for that particular position. For example,
the Customer Service Department conveys the knowledge about
the product specifications, technology for production, work flows
of order placement, and customer service technique, etc. to the
responsible staff. Before the end of the probation, management
assess the performance of the new employees in order to ensure
that the new employees are equipped with the required job
knowledge and skills. The assessment criteria include, but not
limited to, sense of responsibility, interpersonal skills and work
attitude, etc.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Social (Continued)

Development and Training (continued)

We also encourage our employees to enhance their knowledge and
skills through pursuing continual education. Employees who have
been employed over one year are entitled to “Continuing Education
Assistance” if they enrol on courses which are relevant to their
jobs. In order to increase flexibility, there is no pre-defined list for
restricting the courses to be chosen, and so, our employees can
select the most suitable courses by themselves.

For the percentage of employees trained and average training
hours completed per employee during the Reporting Period, please
refer to the section of “Key Performance Indicators — B. Social —
Development and Training Indicators — KPI B3.1 & KPI B3.2”.

Zero Tolerance

The Group has established an “Anti-discrimination Policy” to
ensure that all our employees understand that harassment and
discrimination are not tolerated. The Group is committed to
providing a fair working environment where all employees are
treated equally. All employees are assessed based on their ability,
performance and contribution, irrespective of their nationality, race,
religion, gender, age or family status.

The Group has adopted the following three measures to
avoid recruiting child labour and forced labour during the
recruitment process:

A.  During the recruitment process, the recruitment
advertisements set out the job responsibilities for candidates’
reference in order to avoid potential misunderstanding and
disputes arising from the requirements of the job duties. In
addition, the Group generally does not select any persons
aged 16 or below during the stage of shortlisting candidates.

B. Candidates are required to fill in a job application form before
the interview and provide identity documents to ensure that
the candidates can be legally employed in Hong Kong.

C. At the time of appointment, the Group enters into an
employment contract with the new employee, prescribing
the terms of the employment, including basic salary, working
hours, days of annual leave, overtime allowance, meal
allowance, etc., for preventing future disputes over the
employment terms.
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Social (Continued)

Zero Tolerance (continued)

According to the Employees’ Handbook issued by the Group,
employees who are in breach of rules, or commit serious dereliction
of duty, malpractice or criminal offence would be immediately
dismissed. In addition, according to the “Human Resources
Operations Procedures” issued by the Human Resources
Department, the following steps would be taken against the
employees who are dismissed:

A. The department manager or the Human Resources
Department informs the employee directly of the dismissal,
explains the reasons for the dismissal, and completes the
“Employee Termination Form”;

B. Before an employee leaves the Group, the Human Resources
Department collects the items which are the Group’s assets,
such as mobile phone, laptop, business cards, chops, and
locker key, etc.;

C. Arrangement of the last salary payment to the employee within
one week after termination of the employment.

Complaints

The “Human Resources Operations Procedures” issued by the
Human Resources Department of the Group stipulates that the
Group provides employees with a number of channels of lodging
complaints. For example, when a staff member encounters any
unreasonable treatment, he/she can report it to the department
head and Human Resources Department of the Group.

Cultural activities

In order to promote work-life balance for our staff, various kinds of
recreational activities are provided.

For example, the Group has formed a basketball team and a

football team. Sports training sessions are provided every month to
increase the bonding among employees.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Social (Continued)

Cultural activities (continuea)

Education

The Group is in good relationship with the Hong Kong Design
Institute (“HKDI”), Pro-Act Training and Development Centre of
Vocational Training Council, CO1 School of Visual Arts and other
tertiary institutions, and invites their students to visit our printing
production line from time to time to pass on the basic knowledge of
the printing industry to them.

In addition, the Group awards scholarships to students with
outstanding performance every year, and also organizes different
competitions to promote the development of local talents.

On 8 March 2018, we attended “Student Awards Presentation
Ceremony 2017/18” for HKDI and Hong Kong Institute of Vocational
Education (Lee Wai Lee). At the ceremony, the Group awarded
certificates of “e-print Hong Kong Stories Design Competition
Scholarship”, “e-print Wedding Cards Design Competition
Scholarship” and “e-print Scholarship”, with an aim to encourage
students to develop and leverage their innovative talent.

Environment

As of 2018, the Group has been awarded with “BOCHK Corporate
Environmental Leadership Awards” for three consecutive years.
During the Reporting Period, the Group was also certified with
“Green Office” under Green Office Awards Labelling Scheme
organized by the World Green Organization.

In addition to the environmental certifications, the Group is also
actively involved in various types of environmental protection
activities, such as the “Paper Towel Reduction Scheme” organized
by the World Green Organization, “Earth Hours 2018” organized
by WWEF, “Mooncake Box Recycling Program” and “Red Packets
Recycling Program 2018” organized by the Greeners Action.
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Social (Continued)

Cultural activities (continuea)

Labour demand

We promote harmony and equality in the society. Staff with
disabilities are hired, and assigned with jobs based on their talents
and abilities. During the Reporting Period, the Group was awarded
“18 Districts Caring Employers 2017 Award” and “Partner Employer
Award” for our continuous support to the disabled community.

Moreover, the Group maintains close contacts and co-operation
with the Employees Retraining Board (“ERB”), providing different
kinds of training to staff, as well as offering job opportunities to
ERB students, and has won the “ERB Manpower Developer Award
Scheme”.

Aiming for more suppliers complying with our Code
of Conduct

We stress the importance of minimizing the environmental
impact caused by our production. For instance, we adopt
green procurement practices by using printing ink that is made
of soybeans in our production. As compared to the traditional
petroleum-based ink, soy-based ink is more environmentally friendly
and makes paper easier for recycle.

Moreover, we continuously monitor the performance of our supply
chain so as to ensure the quality of products provided to our
customers. We have set criteria for assessing suppliers such
as price, quality, relationship, stability on goods supply, delivery
time, and payment terms, etc. For the number of our suppliers by
geographical region during the Reporting Period, please refer to the
section “Key Performance Indicators — B. Social — Supply Chain
Management Indicators — KPI B5.1”.

Every year, the Purchasing Department assesses the primary
suppliers of raw materials by filing in an evaluation report. The
assessment criteria include, but not limited to, incidents of goods
return, price fluctuation, delivery time, company background, and
stability of goods supply, etc. Besides, the Group maintains an
approved vendor list to include all qualified suppliers. For each
procurement, the Group selects the suppliers from the approved
vendor list and requests two to three suppliers for price quotations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Social (Continued)

Aiming for more suppliers complying with our Code
of Conduct (continuea)

In addition, the Group requires the suppliers to declare if there
is any close personal or business relationship with the Group’s
directors, employees or agents. If any suppliers and contractors
are found guilty in breaching any legal requirements, the Group has
the right to terminate all outstanding contracts with the relevant
suppliers or contractors immediately, while the relevant supplier
or contractor is not able to recover any compensation or claim for
loss.

Product Responsibility

During the Reporting Period, the Group strictly complied with laws
and regulations in regard to product responsibility in Hong Kong,
Malaysia and PRC that have a significant impact on our business,
including, but not limited to, Copyright Ordinance (Chapter 528)
in Hong Kong; Trademark Law of the PRC, the Copyright Law
of the PRC and the Rules of Protection on Information Network
Dissemination Rights in the PRC; and the Consumer Protection Act
1999 in Malaysia.

We have established procedures in relation to monitoring and
protection of intellectual property rights.

For the orders placed by the customers at the retail shops or the
self-service platform or through the customer service hotline, the
Customer Service Department is responsible for checking the files
against infringement of intellectual property rights or any other
issues.

If the file to be printed is suspected of possible infringement of
intellectual property rights, the Group would not start printing unless
the customer can provide the authorization proof of the intellectual
property for verification. In case the customer fails to provide such
authorization/proof, the Group has the right to reject the order.
Moreover, the Group reserves the rights to any claims or litigation
in respect of infringement of intellectual property rights arising from
printing of documents provided by the customers.
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Social (Continued)

Product Responsibility (continueq)

In order to safeguard product safety, the printing ink used in the
production process is made of non-hazardous substance such
as soybean, and vegetable oil, and therefore, is free from toxic
chemicals like lead. Test reports which list out the composition
of the ingredients of printing ink are obtained from the ink
manufacturers for our reference. The test reports show that no
hazardous components are contained in the printing ink.

If customers are not satisfied with the quality of the products
delivered, the staff of the retail shops have to conduct preliminary
assessment, and will pass the products to the Quality Control
Department for further checking, if necessary.

If reprinting, discount or refund arises due to quality issue, the
retail shops would recall part of the products and send them to
the Quality Control Department for quality checking. A report
will then be prepared with information such as checking results,
the responsible department involved, and recommendations for
rectification, etc. clearly listed.

For the percentage of total products sold subject to recalls and
the number of products and service related complaints received
during the Reporting Period, please refer to the section of “Key
Performance Indicators — B. Social — Product Responsibility
Indicators — KPI B6.1 & KPI B6.2”.

Privacy Matters

Due to the business nature, the Group has to collect personal
information from customers such as customers’ names, addresses,
telephone numbers, etc.

Nevertheless, all the personal information collected by the Group
is strictly used in accordance with relevant data privacy laws and
regulations.

The Group has also implemented several controls and measures for
protecting the personal data collected. For example, staff members
are required to sign a non-disclosure agreement upon employment
to state that they are not allowed to disclose any information
to unauthorized third parties. Besides, when the Group collects
personal data via the Group’s website, e.g. when customers
place orders through self-service platform, encryption technology
is adopted to protect the personal data from potential leakage.
Firewall has also been set up in the Group’s website to prevent
unauthorized access and abuse by third parties.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Social (Continued)

Anti-corruption

During the Reporting Period, the Group complied with all relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on us, including,
but not limited to, Criminal Law of China, Anti-Money Laundering
Law of China, the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance in Hong Kong
and the Malaysian Anti-Corruption Commission Act 2009.

As stated in our “Anti-fraud Policy”, employees should promptly
report any suspected fraud cases, whether they are aware of any
suspected persons or events. Employees may report the suspected
fraud cases to their immediate supervisor or the department
manager. The reports can be made verbally, e.g. telephone, or
formally in written form, e.g. letter/email. Full support from the
senior management will be given to the employees reporting
fraudulent cases.

After the potential fraudulent cases have been reported,
investigation will be conducted with due care and the investigation
process will be kept confidential. For the proven fraud, management
will take corrective action immediately.

Furthermore, the Group has implemented a guideline on gift receipt
to make it clear for employees to prevent corruption and bribery.
Upon receipt of gift, an employee has to make declaration to the
Group within 3 working days.

During the Reporting Period, no corruption case was noted and/or
reported.

Whistle-blowing policy

The Group has set up whistle-blowing policy to provide guidance for
employees to report their concerns of any suspected misconduct,
malpractice or irregularity within the Group.

In our workplace, in order to maintain a high standard of integrity
and impartiality, we encourage our employees to whistle-blow any
suspected corruption incidents and the whistle-blowers will remain
anonymous after the investigation report is issued.
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Social (Continued)

Communication channel

The Group has established internal staff complaint procedures to
ensure that proper channels are in place for employees to file their
complaints. If an employee would like to lodge a complaint, he/
she can report it directly to his/her department head. If he/she is
dissatisfied with the results, he/she can file complaints further to the
Human Resources Department.

Customer Service Department

The Group has established “Complaint Handling Procedures”
which stipulates the procedures for handling complaints received
from customers. Complaints received must be recorded in the
internal system and passed to senior staff or the Customer Service
Department for follow-up.

Under normal circumstances, the Group should reply to the
complainant within 3 working days. If more than 3 days of
investigation is required, the Group should at least make an interim
reply to the complainant. Furthermore, a final reply should be
made to the complainant within 7 days after the first interim reply.
However, in exceptional cases, if the investigation is still in progress,
the Group, should update the complainant about the investigation
status once a week.

In order to enhance the service quality of various departments, the
Customer Service Department reports the details of the complaint
to relevant departments for follow-up during the business review
meeting with the Marketing and Production Department.
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Social (Continued)

Community Contribution

Our goal is to establish long-term relationships with organizations
that share with us the same philosophy, and are willing to bring
social development to the community based on their mutual
assistance, respect and integrity.

Through cooperating with different organizations in the community,
employee voluntary service and donation, the Group is committed
to establishing positive impact in the following four areas:

Environmental education:

We work together with different agencies in order to reduce the
damage to the environment caused by our business operations.
We are also committed to raising the awareness of employees
about carbon reduction in the environment, and supporting
and sponsoring relevant institutions and initiatives to promote
environmental education.

On 24 March 2018, the Group participated in “Earth Hour”
organized by WWEF, where non-essential lighting at our retail shops
were turned off for an hour. The event helped to arouse awareness
of environmental issues among our employees.

Assistance to the disadvantaged groups:

We believe that everyone is equal. The spirit of mutual help and
mutual love is to make the society harmonious and help the
economy develop. We collect donations from employees and
business partners through various activities to help meet the
needs of the disadvantaged groups and improve the life quality
of the communities to which they belong. We also provide job
opportunities to the underprivileged groups.

On 21 September 2017, the Group made home visits to the elderly
living alone in Pak Tin Estate. Festive gifts for Mid-Autumn Festival
were delivered on the occasion, with an aim of sharing happiness
and festive joy with the elderly.

On 3 December 2017, the Group was awarded with “18 Districts
Caring Employers 2017 Award” for its continuous support towards
the disadvantaged community. The Group is committed to offering
equal opportunities to disabled employees. We aspire to create
a harmonious society through allocating tasks to disabled staff
based on their abilities and providing them with supporting facilities,
training and guidance to enable them to unleash their full potentials
in the workplace.
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Social (Continued)

Community Contribution continued)

Cultivation of cultural creation:

Culture is an important milestone in the heritage of mankind and a
key part of historical testimony. Creation can inspire us to learn from
each other, leading to a more innovative thinking environment. With
respect to this, we support employees to organize different design
contests in order to widen the contestants’ creative horizons.

During the Reporting Period, we gave out awards to students
who won the prize in the two competitions “Post Card Design”
and “Notebook Cover Design”, to recognize their design talents.
The awards were granted with an aim to encourage and promote
creativity of students.

Furthermore, we have cooperated with NGOs and tertiary
institutions to organize various activities such as blood donation,
red packets recycling, mooncake box recycling, and paper towel
reduction scheme etc. in order to raise awareness of social
responsibility in the community.

For details of the resources we have contributed to the community
during the Reporting Period, please refer to the section of “Key
Performance Indicators — B. Social — Community Contribution
Indicators — KPI B8.2”.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE g RERME

FERERER

E—H5 BE

Key Performance Indicators
Part A. Environmental

Emission Indicators
- KPI A1.1 Source Emission Type

238 Fidl

FHRES-BRAXESRA KR

Emission Data from Vehicles

ERNFERBE

Kilometres travelled 167,879.3 km Nitrogen Oxides

BITRAE 167,879.32 8  &ft&
Particulate Matter
TR ) B

Units of fuel

consumed

Fir RE MR} B8 i1

Diesel 3,558.2 L

E 3,558.2F+

Petrol 11,6255 L  Sulphur Oxides

U 11,625.57 WHEILEY

Emission Indicators
- KPI A1.2 Source Emission Type

235 ¢ kicl

BFRER-BRAZEZRA2 TR

(in grams)
(AR EH)
123,411.6

11,450.5

228.2

Total Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions

BEREHFR(BEEREAE

Scope 1: Direct Emissions or Removals from Sources

EE1  BEEHK T E R EER
Scope 1b - GHG Emissions Units of fuel

from Mobile Combustion consumed
Sources T FE MR} B8 L
EE1b —KEEBNFH
BEREHK
Diesel 3,5658.2 L
E 3,558.2F+
Petrol 11,625.5 L  Carbon Dioxide
B 11,625.57 &bk
Scope 2 - Energy Indirect Emissions
B E2- R R

Unit of Electricity 3,196,925.0 kWh Carbon Dioxide

Consumed 3,196,925.0F B =&k
FrREEREBE L

Total Amount of Carbon Dioxide Produced during the Reporting Period:
RBEPHEEN —FLREE:

(in kilograms)

(AT AN

41,4481

2,018,853.4

2,060,301.5
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Key Performance Indicators continveq) FAEEMNIEE
Part A. Environmental (continueq) F—ED RE @)

Hazardous Waste Indicators — KPI A1.3 Source

EERERYER -BAEENEEALS IR

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes)

EENEERRYEAE (LAMERT)
Chemical Wastewater 1,272.000
£ T35K
Cloths stained with chemicals 9.000
BELBRNBRIR
Wasted Zinc 108.810
Photograph Potions 19.688
MR EEK
Isopropyl alcohol (IPA) 6.822
ES]
Polyvinyl Chloride (PVC) 5.025
REE

Hazardous waste produced per tonne of product produced (in tonnes/ tonne produced)

BHEMMEENEEEEY (LAPTEE A RIMESIET)
Chemical Wastewater 0.430
fET357K
Cloths stained with chemicals 0.003
EEBmMNEREME
Wasted Zinc 0.037
Photograph Potions 0.007
MR BEK
Isopropyl alcohol (IPA) 0.002
ES]
Polyvinyl Chloride (PVC) 0.001
REE
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Key Performance Indicators continues
Part A. Environmental (continued)

Non-hazardous Waste Indicators — KPI A1.4

BERRVES -BREXEFTA14

Total non-hazardous waste produced

EENEERRVAE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE g RERME

FEREEWNIEE

E—HD BRE )

Paper
AR o

Foam board
SRR
Synthesized Paper
a A

Lightbox Film

BREE R

Canvas

A

Sticker
Bh 4%

Non-hazardous waste produced per tonne of product produced

BHMERMEENESERY

Paper
AR o

Foam board
SRR
Synthesized Paper
A

Lightbox Film

BREE R

Canvas

A

Sticker
Bh 4%

(in tonnes)
(LAWEET)
533.036
39.993
34.915
7.523

5.397

40.801

(in tonnes/tonne produced)
(APTEE £ ROWEELET)
0.180

0.580

0.596

0.119

1.638

0.753
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B B REARE

Key Performance Indicators continueq

Part A. Environmental (continued)

Energy and Water Consumption
- KPI A2.1 & KPI A2.2

BER R K B R OH # —
BRENIERA21 SBRENIEEA2.2

Source

HIR

FERERER

E—Ha:

BRIE (@)

Total Consumption

HERE

Consumption per unit produced

BEUMELENEEER

Packaging Material Indicators
- KPI A2.5

Electricity

Water
KEIR

Electricity

W:;}ter
KER

3,196,925 kWh
3,196,925F I i

3,373 cubic metres
3,373 75 K

925.15 KWh per tonne
92515 KL B &7 A

0.98 cubic metres per tonne
0.9837 75 K 5 18

BEMBESR -BREREFRA25

Carton
W]

Plastic Box
BEE
Kraft Paper
42K

Paper Box
w2

Transparent Wrap
FEIEIR
Sealing Tape

BH
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Total Packaging Material
used for Finished Products

SEmTAEREM AR

(in tonnes)
(LAMEET)
1.10

6.55
10.19
32.87

5.05

1.72

Packaging material
per tonne of
product produced

BHMERMEENEEME

(in tonnes/tonne produced)
(LAFTE R MEEET)
0.0004

0.0022

0.0034

0.0111

0.0017

0.0006



Key Performance Indicators continues

Part B. Social

Employment Indicators — KPI B1.1

ERER-BAREXERBI1

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE e REARE

FEREEWNIEE

Eo®owE

As at 31 March 2018
R-ZZE—N\F=A=+—H

As at 31 March 2017

R=Z2—tHF=A=+—H

Employment
&=

Total number of employees

STHAR

By gender
715 7

Male

Sk

Female

g

By age group
BERS
Below 18
1858 A T~

18 to 25
18%E25)%

26 to 35
26E 353

36 to 45
36E455%

46 to 55
46E555%

56 to 65
56E655%

By region
ZEES

Hong Kong
BB
PRC
a3

Malaysia
R E

By Employment Type
HIEREE S

Permanent Staff

KAHRBIN B

Contract Staff
AFREER

Part-Time Staff
FBAEB

342

215

127

61

132

63

69

17

285

33

24

315

21

343

219

124

64

129

71

61

17

279

36

28

316

20
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B B REARE

Key Performance Indicators continueq

Part B. Social (Continued)

Employment Indicators - KPI B1.2

BREER-BEENERBL2

FARENIEEw
-t B S - )

For the Year Ended
31 March 2018

BE-Z—N\&F
=A=+—HLEE

Employee turnover

BERKLL R

Aggregate employee turnover rate
aHEERKLE
By gender
7155

Male

Hit

Female

7

By age group
F2E

Below 18

18 AT

18 to 25

18ZE255%

26 to 35
26%355%

36 to 45
36E45/%

46 to 55
46555

56 to 65
56%65/5%

By region
REF D

Hong Kong
A
PRC
h

Malaysia
S itk
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RE g RERME

Key Performance Indicators (coniinueq BRENER«

Part B. Social «continuea) EZED ?i% (%)
Health and Safety Indicators For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
- KPI B2.1& KPI B2.2 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
BERZZER BE-Z-N\&F BE-Z—tF
—BFRENIEEB21&ARENIEEB2.2 ZA=+—HLEFE ZA=+—BHLEE
Fatality number 0 0
BT AE
Number of reportable injuries 17 13
BEFREIEHEE
Number of day lost 94.5 128
ATHERYRE

For the Year Ended
Development and Training Indicators — KPI B3.1 31 March 2018

BE-—Z—N\F
BRERIEIEE -BRENISEBSA =A=1+—RHLEE

Percentage of employees trained
EIETEDL

By gender
7Z1E 5

Male 72.8%
S

Female 27.2%
%

By employee category
BETEF %

Entry level 79.4%
INBL

Middle level 18.3%
T

Management level 2.3%
ERE
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Key Performance Indicators (coniineq BRENER=

Part B. Social (continueq) E-ED HE 2

For the Year Ended
Development and Training Indicators — KPI B3.2 31 March 2018

BE-_Z—N\HF
BRERIEINEE -BRENIEEBI.2 =A=1+—HLEE

Total number of hours of internal training received by employees 175.50

B T A s A ERsE ol AR A B

Average hours of training per employee

BEE T FIEIEE

Average hours of training per employee by gender

BRI 2B EE T FEIIRE

Male 1.47
B4
Female 1.50
2%

Average hours of training per employee by employment category

ZERER D SEE T F19EIRH

Entry level 1.47
AFI#R
Middle level 1.50
i E
Management level 1.50
EEE

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Supply Chain Indicators — KPI B5.1 31 March 2018 31 March 2017

BE-E-N\F BE-Z—tF

HEEEE -FARENIEEBS ZA=+—BLEE ZA=+—-RHLFE
Supplier management
HEFERE
Total number of suppliers 154 146
HERAY
By region
ZESS
Hong Kong 118 109
N
PRC 27 29
&
Taiwan 1 1
Malaysia 8 7
BRAE
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FEREEWNIEE

F-HD = m)

Key Performance Indicators continues

Part B. Social (Continued)

Product Responsibility Indicators
- KPI B6.1& KPI B6.2

EmEEES-
B 58 4B W15 15 B6.1& B §2 A 5152 B6.2

For the Year Ended
31 March 2018
BE-Z—N\&

ZSA=t+—HLEE

For the Year Ended
31 March 2017
BE-Z—+tF

ZA=+—BHLEE

Total No. of Products sold or shipped 737,176 608,452

CERCEXEMBHY

Total number of products subject to recalls 0 0
for safety and health reason

Az2RkRERAACENERER

Total number of complaints received 1 0

B IR R AR

Community Investment Indicators
- KPI B8.2

HEREER -BEREARIEEBS.2

Resources contributed to education,
environmental concerns, labour needs,
health, culture, sport (Amount in HK$)

HAE RREE SHER -BFE Xt
BEEMNER (RBFE)

Hours spent on corporate charitable activities

TERBEEHMARH

Number of employee volunteer
BIXEEEAH

For the Year Ended
31 Mar 2018
BE-Z2-N\#F
ZA=+—-BLEFEE

96,359.00

18

For the Year Ended
31 Mar 2017
BE—-Z—tF
ZA=+—HLEE

166,110.50

1,088

208
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ESG Reporting Guide & Reference

A. Environmental
A BIE

A1. Emissions

A1BERY

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
BHEBERIOAZTREBY N HKkR IO BAERBEZEEYH
EXEENBERETHRETARERTYENBBERLERNER -

KPI' A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emission data.

FRRAE R IRAL I R LA S A

KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emission in total (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

FRAEBURITEAM2 REREBANE (UM E) & (ER) BE (IS

EEHBM-
GERIEHE) o

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

BREVEEAMIMELASTEEYHEE (UBEAE) R (MER)BE
(MABEEEN FHERMETE) -

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of produotion volume, per facility).
FRERERAMAMELEETEZYHEE (NEAE) L (MER)BE

(WA BEEEN GERETE) -

KPI A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results
achieved.

FA B 4B RUIRIRA1.5 R URE PR IR E BB i PTG AR

KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes
are handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved

MREMEBAM O HAREAENEEREEZEYN L REELENEE

K FriSRCR
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Related Section

M EE

Environmental — Overview,
Compliance and Grievance,
Emissions

RIE-HE
PEm )

AR RER

Key Performance Indicators
— Part A. Environmental
BREBIEE-F—H9 RE

Key Performance Indicators
— Part A. Environmental

FRRERIRE % 80 KRR

Key Performance Indicators
— Part A. Environmental

FRERIERE-F 80 RER

Key Performance Indicators
— Part A. Environmental

FRESIRE - —8n R E

Environmental — Overview,
Emissions

RIE-E Y

Total Hazardous Wastes and
Non-Hazardous Wastes &
Results Achieved by
Mitigating Emissions
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Environmental,

ESG Reporting Guide & Reference (continueq)

A2. Use of Resources

A2. ER{EMH

Social and Governance Report
RE g MERRE

ERBERESIR

Related Section

HEEH

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy,
water and other raw materials.

BRERER (BHEEIR K REMRME)HBEK -

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type. (e.g. electricity,
gas or oil) in total (kWh in ‘000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

BREVIERAARAREDNEE R SEEER (NE - msioh)
BREE (ATRETERAZE) REE (MASEEEM BERME) °

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
BRERIEEA2RFKEREE (MABEEEN BERMETE

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficienoy initiatives and results achieved.

BB B RUEIRA2 ST B RE AR A E R ISR

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that
is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

AR B BUIE R A2 A ISR BGE A KR LRI B AR MRE - A RREAAKS &
D—’_ &ﬁﬁ' }ﬂZ% ©

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and,
if applicable, with reference to per unit produced.
BB IR IRA2 5B m P A B M VB E (LANEE

BE )R (i@
SBEESEMNhE-

aM)

A3. The Environment and Natural Resources

ABRERRAAREIR

Use of Resources

BIRE A

Key Performance Indicators
— Part A. Environmental
BRERIEE-F 85 R’ER

Key Performance Indicators
— Part A. Environmental
BARERIEE-F -5 RR

Direct/Indirect Usage of
Electricity/Water and
Raw Materials

B MEFEREE 7K
JR ¥

Direct/Indirect Usage of
Electricity/Water and
Raw Materials

B SR
JR ¥

Packaging materials used
for finished products, Key
Performance Indicators
— Part A. Environmental

RIRK m FT A B RM A — B RAEN
R -F 55 W

EaekEE

Related Section

HEEE

Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact on the environment and

natural resources.

BWEZETAHRERRAEREREATE

=

Y BRER ©

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment
and natural resources and the actions taken to manage them.

RS AR IRAS I R RS IRBE R RRERNERTE R
EXREEABTENTE-

2017/185% % eprint EEAR AT
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ESG Reporting Guide & Reference (continueo) RE - HERERBREREIIR
82E
B. Social Related Section
B. & HEAEH
B1. Employment
Bi. {E1&
Information on the policies and compliance with laws and regulations Workplace, The Group’s Team
that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to compensation and Profile

dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal TEST AEEEKRE N
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
EREWL R BEREA TIENS - BH L5 Zlk-
RBEAR A R B Ab 538 RAE N B BUR B FHEITABERTEN
HEERERERNER -

KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and Key Performance Indicators
geographical region. — Part B. Social
FRABIEEBIARMA  BERE  FiRAH i EE S ES R - BARESESE - FE Mo 1

KPI B1.2 Employment turnover rate by gender, age group and Key Performance Indicators
geographical region. — Part B. Social

FRAEBIEEBI. 2R MR FRARN R ERE S EB MK X BAREMER-F Mo e

B2. Health and Safety Related Section

B2.f2EEZ 2 HEAEH

Information on the policies and compliance with laws and regulations that Protecting Health and Safety
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to providing a safe REREREZE

working environment and protecting employees from occupational hazards.
FRRHLZE2TFEREAREEREBEBEEEENEERL
BTHETABERZENEBERLARDNER -

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities. Key Performance Indicators
BB ERIEEB2 1A TEREMIL TR AB ML R - — Part B. Social
BREMER - o 1
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Key Performance Indicators
BRBEMIEEB22EA T HBIBRTIER - — Part B. Social
BRERESE-F_Ho - 1HE
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, Protecting Health and Safety
how they are implemented and monitored. RERELRZ S

BB AERURIEB2 3 T IR A B R 2 R B 2 245 B - A S ABRERATT I

ERTA
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ESG Reporting Guide & Reference (continveq RE - HERERBEREIIR
82E
B3. Development and training Related Section
B3. & K IF HEEH
Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging Development and Training
duties at work. Description of training activities. RIS

BRARATREET TERENMNZ M RENER - Ml iFlES -

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee Key Performance Indicators
category (e.g. senior management, middle management). — Part B. Social

BREMIEEBIIRUERNREERS (NEREEE FREEES) BRENER - o g
o XlEERA L -

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender Key Performance Indicators
and employee category. — Part B. Social

AR ERIEIEBI 2R ERI R EEEAE D  BREEEAZIN TR - BREJXEE-F_FOo4E

B4. Labour standards Related Section

B4. %5 T %8| HEEH

Information on the policies and compliance with laws and regulations Zero Tolerance
that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing child TRR

and forced labour.
AR E T RB S THORERETHETABEAY BN
HEERRERNER -

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to Zero Tolerance
avoid child and forced labour. TRA

BB A U IEBA M iR RIS E BIRFE TE AR R B T Mo 45 T o

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to resolve such practices Zero Tolerance, Complaints
when discovered. TR

FRRAARIEIRBA MM A RN ERB RS FRBRABRMRIN SR -
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ESG Reporting Guide & Reference (continueq)

B5. Supply chain management

B5. ffEEEE

RE HE8RERBEESIR
82E

Related Section

MRS

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.
EIRHEBENIRE Rt g RRBK -

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region.
KPI B5. 11zt [ &) 5 Hy e 208 -

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,
number of suppliers where the practices are being implemented,
how they are implemented and monitored.

KPI B5.2f 3t A BE IS Rt IE R 1B B M E AT AREL M HERARE

ARBBEFNNITRERT A

B6. Product responsibility

B6. EmEE

Aiming for More Suppliers
Complying with Our Code
of Conduct
EESEZHNHERETHMEN
=Rl

Key Performance Indicators
— Part B. Social
BAREMETE - _Ho4g

Aiming for More Suppliers
Complying with Our Code of
Conduct

EETESHHERETRMN
=zl

Related Section

MHEEE

Information on the policies and compliance with laws and regulations

that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to health and safety,

advertising, labeling and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided and method of redress.

FRMEHREMMRBHNBREELE BES RELLBEEUAR

AR ENBR N B THRTABERZENEBERLEONER -

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls
for safety and health reasons.

KPIB1IEE X EEBXERBHFTRLZHEREAMARLNKNBE DL -

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received
and how they are dealt with.

KPI B6.21% & BA I B i S IR TS OAR AR 81 B A S JE R 77 0% ©

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting
intellectual property rights.
KPI B6.3% it B2 4 & I AR B ERE S ARE D -

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.

KPI B6.4HH il & £ F B2 M E mE R EZ K -

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies,
how they are implemented and monitored.

KPI B6.5% 3 K B & & RHMRE MALREGR - A RABB#MIT RER X
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Product Responsibility
EmEE

Product Responsibility
EmEE

Privacy Matters
BiALEE



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE g RERME

ESG Reporting Guide & Reference (continveq RE - HERERBEREIIR
82E
B7. Anti-corruption Related Section
B7. RE’5 HEREEm
Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws and Anti-corruption
regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery, k&S

extortion, fraud and money laundering.
BABR DR BEFRARBOBRRRETHETAGEAZED
MEER MBI E L

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices Anti-corruption
brought against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period R&ESF
and the outcomes of the cases.

KPI B7 1R E A BT AR EERE TS BENETHARMED

BB RFRER-
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, Whistle-blowing Poalicy,
how they are implemented and monitored. Communication Channel,
KPI B7. 24 il by #8 18 fe & SRRAZ R - A RAABEIT REER 5% - Customer Service Department
BRYE BBERE BFPRY
=il
B8. Community investment Related Section
B8. Ht BR & HEEH
Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of Cultural Activities,
the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure that Community Contribution
its activities take into consideration the communities’ interests. XALEE (@B R

BN R2ERTRETACEMEALEFTENRREXE DS
Z LR A S ABUR -

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, Community Contribution
environmental concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport). A=)

KPIBS1E T EREE (N#E REME LHF L -BE X -85)-

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area. Key Performance Indicators
KPI B8.2TEE )+ &I FTEN A B R (e B RHE) o ~ Part B. Social
BAREREE - _HH44g
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEE 2BE

Executive Directors

Mr. She Siu Kee William (R#B &), aged 55, is the Chairman,
executive Director and chief executive officer. He is the founder of
the Group and has participated in the management of the Group
since October 2001. Mr. She is a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Group and a member of each of the remuneration committee
and nomination committee of the Company. Mr. She is primarily
responsible for the overall management, development and planning
of the Group and has more than 20 years of experience in the
printing industry.

Mr. Lam Shing Kai (M {£) , aged 45, is an executive Director.
He joined the Group in 2008. He is a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Group. Mr. Lam has approximately 20 years of experience in
the printing industry.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chong Cheuk Ki (=), aged 53, is a non-executive
Director. He joined the Group in 2005. He has approximately 10
years of experience in corporate management.

Mr. Chong was awarded a diploma in marketing from the Chartered
Institute of Marketing for fulfilling the requirements of the institute’s
examiners at the diploma examination held in June 1991. He also
obtained a certificate in marketing from Vocational Training Council
in June 1989 and a higher certificate in electronic engineering
from Hong Kong Polytechnic (currently known as the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University) in November 1987.

Mr. Leung Wai Ming (R#8), aged 46, is a non-executive
Director. He joined the Group in 2008. Mr. WM Leung has
approximately 10 years of experience in the marketing field.

Mr. Deng Xiaen (B8E &) , aged 41, is a non-executive Director.
He joined the Group in 2014. He holds a postgraduate degree
of master in law awarded by Fudan University. He served in the
legal affair department of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Shantou branch from 1999 to 2002. He was the practicing lawyer
in the legal aid centre of Jinyuan District Shantou City from 2002 to
2003. He was the practicing lawyer and deputy chief of Guangdong
Zhongda Lawyer Office from 2003 to 2010. He is currently the vice
president of Tung Fung Investment Group Holdings Limited.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Poon Chun Wai (GE#REL) , aged 60, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 15 August 2016. He is also
the chairman of the remuneration committee and a member of each
of the audit committee and nomination committee of the Company.
Mr. Poon has over 30 years of experience in printing. He has served
several large-scale companies in printing solutions industry.

Mr. Fu Chung (&) , aged 49, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 8 March 2017. He is also the chairman
of the nomination committee and a member of each of the audit
committee and remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Fu
has more than 25 years of experience in the printing industry. He
was an executive committee member of the Chamber of Commerce
for The Hong Kong Printers Association from 2009 to 2016. Mr. Fu
was a sales manager of Kodak (China) Limited from 2000 to 2003,
and in which he was also a sales director from 2003 to 2016.

Mr. Ma Siu Kit (FJ &), aged 48, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 30 December 2016. He is
also the chairman of the audit committee of the Company. Mr. Ma
had obtained a bachelor’'s degree in business (accountancy) from
Queensland University of Technology, Australia in 1993. He is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Ma is currently the company secretary of China Flavors and
Fragrances Company Limited (“China Flavors and Fragrances”), a
company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange. He is a
seasoned professional in accounting with over 20 years of relevant
experience.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
EENEREEEHE

Senior Management

Mr. Mok Chun Wa (B %) , aged 32, is the company secretary
and chief financial officer. Mr. Mok joined the Group in 2012.
Mr. Mok has over 8 years of experience in accounting, audit and
corporate finance and is responsible for the financial planning,
management, internal control and company secretarial matters
of the Group. He had obtained a bachelor’s degree in business
(accountancy) from Hong Kong Baptist University in 2010, and now
he is a student of master of corporate governance programme in
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Mok is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Chan Wai Keung (BR{£3&) , aged 50, is the general manager.
Mr. Chan joined the Group in December 2011. Mr. Chan is primarily
responsible for formulating the corporate strategies and planning
the business development of the Group. Mr. Chan has over 10
years of experience in the printing industry. Mr. Chan served as a
sales manager in Wilson Printing Equipment Limited from August
2001 to July 2009.

Mr. Tsui Pak Wai (#&#1&) , aged 50, is the chief administrative
Officer. He joined the Group in 2006. Mr. Tsui is primarily responsible
for the internal control, formulating the corporate policy and
workflow, monitoring the daily operation of the human resources
department and administrative department and participating in
brand building activities of the Group. Mr. Tsui has over 10 years
of experience in the corporate administration and management.
He has been a member of the Industry & Technology Committee
of Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce since July 2015, a
member of Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute since
January 2015. Mr. Tsui was awarded the graduate executive
diploma in Finance and Corporate Accounting from the University
of Hong Kong School of Professional and Continuing Education
in March 2016 and the graduate executive diploma in PRC
corporate governance from the University of Hong Kong School
of Professional and Continuing Education in November 2014 and
bachelor of arts from Fu Jen Catholic University in June 1997.

Mr. Cheang Ngai Wang (¥ %% ) , aged 55, is the information
technology director. Mr. Cheang joined the Group in December
2004. Mr. Cheang has over 10 years of experience in the printing
industry.

74  eprint Group Limited Annual Report 2017/18

EBREEE

BERELRLE Q2 ARIMENEFYS
BE- KN T —FMAKRER B
EREE B RCEMBK HE %S B8
FERBLEBEASEMKRE - EE R
MEERANRAWEEF - FR_E—ZF
ESAEBEZEREmE (HHE)ELE
i EEREAESEIRELETARS
BMELE -BEERBESHNAEE

= o

BRIERTE S0 BB -RIuEERZ
E——F+_ANMAREB - REEETE
BEFNEAEERNRIKEE LIRS XK
RBoMRIEERERITER B BI0F L -
BEER BT —FNAE_ZEZNF
tAEEBEDRREBRAREEL
I o

WHRELEE 505 THARE -BRN_-F
EREMAREE -HRELETEHER
EE-HEASERRERIERE BEE
ANERBARTHAMBANBARESE N
DEMBARES HREENEETHE
EESTEHBEABIOCFER - KB T -1
FLABRBEEBEIXNMNREZSR
S8 BZE—LF—AREBES
ERESEEB HALANR T —RF=
ABRTERARBEXRECER BB
REXEEFAEERRERERRNZ
E-NE+ AR THELEXELRN
RERENEBER-—NANLEFNAER
WLEAEXBEL B

BB RLE 555 BB AE - H L
ERZZZEMF+_AMAREER £
EREIRIITRBERBI0OFER -



The Board is pleased to submit their report together with the
audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2018.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment company and its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the provision of printing services and
solutions on advertisement, bound books and stationeries, to a
diversified customer base in Hong Kong.

Business Review

The business review, analysis using financial key performance
indicators and future development in the Company’s business of
the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018 are discussed under
the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis”. Such discussion forms an integrate part
of this report.

Environmental Policy and Performance

The environmental policies and performance of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2018 is set out in the section headed
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages 34 to 71
of this annual report.

Report of the Directors
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Business Review (continueq)

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

¥ IEOEE
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Risk Description

Potential non-compliance with the Occupational Safety
& Health Ordinance and the Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance

Due to the nature of the business operations, production workers
are involved in the use of manufacturing facilities and may get
injured at work easily. However, the Group may be penalized or
asked for claims in any of the following cases:

1)

76

If the Group fails to provide and maintain a safe working
environment and the employee suffers from a workplace
accident, the Group will be liable on conviction to a fine of
HK$200,000 and to imprisonment for 6 months. (Cap 509,
s6)

If the Group purchases a policy of insurance less than the
applicable amount, the Group will be liable on conviction
upon indictment to a fine at level 6 (HK$100,000) and to
imprisonment for 2 years; and on summary conviction to a
fine at level 6 (HK$100,000) and to imprisonment for 1 year,
according to the Employee’s Compensation Ordinance. (Cap
282, s40)

In the case of a workplace accident, the Group would be
subject to, but not limited to, the employees’ compensation
claims, the common law personal injury claims and the
lawsuit brought by the employees. Currently, there is a
lawsuit for the work injuries happened in a shop branch
when the shop staff member was being instructed to load
and unload heavy goods most of the time.

eprint Group Limited Annual Report 2017/18
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Business Review (continueq)

Principal Risks and Uncertainties (continueqd)
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Risk Response

The Group has established an internal health and safety policy
which provides guidelines on work safety for the employees (e.g.
workplace environment and machine operations).

The Group has also set up a Safety Committee which conducts
a quarterly review on the existing controls on the occupational
safety of workplace and makes recommendations, if applicable.
In general, the improvement actions will be taken shortly. We also
analyse the reported incidents of employee’s work injury and
provides training sessions to the respective workers regarding the
occupation safety and health.

In addition, the safety protection materials (e.g. ear plugs for ear
protection) have been provided by us for the production workers,
according to the advice from the Labor Department of Hong
Kong.

During the year, no work injuries have been recorded.

AEEEHENLRERZE2RE SR
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Risk Description [ B 38

Foreign Exchange Rate Risk

Currently, even though the Group operates principally in Hong
Kong which its business transactions are primarily denominated in
Hong Kong Dollars (‘HKD”), the Group is expanding its business
to overseas markets (e.g. Malaysia) and China (“PRC”) at the
same time. As such, the Group’s business transactions (e.g.
receipts for provision of services, operating fund transfer) are
denominated in foreign currencies e.g. the United States Dollars
(“USD”), Malaysian Ringgit (“MYR”) and Renminbi (“RMB”).

In addition, the IT/Accounting support services centre is located
in PRC. Therefore, the Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising from the exposure of RMB against HKD.

In this respect, the volatility of the exchange rates between
foreign currencies and HKD (the Group’s functional currency) may
create substantial foreign exchange risk due to the fluctuations of
exchange rates of foreign currencies.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties (continueq)
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Risk Response 2B FE

The financial department keeps close monitoring of the fluctuations
of foreign currencies.

Under the accounting matching principle, the Group adopted
natural hedge to mitigate the foreign exchange risk, for example,
settling payments denominated in MYR by the revenue earned in
MYR, while settling payments denominated in RMB through RMB
bank accounts and cash maintained by the Group.

P FRR I ) SR AR SN R B o
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Risk Description

Increase in labour cost

According to the statistics reported by the National Bureau of
Statistics of China, the average wage of an employee in the
manufacturing sector in China had increased from RMB64,931
p.a. in 2015 to RMB71,130 p.a. in 2016. Therefore, the increase
in labor cost may indirectly upsurge the subcontracting cost of
the Group since the call centre service and over 50% printing
production have been outsourced to the enterprises in China.

At Hong Kong side, labor cost increases when more headcount is
needed for the expanding business and giving high pay to attract
competent youngsters who are generally less willing to enter into
the manufacturing/production/printing industries.

As a result, the potential risk of an increase in labor cost in both
China and Hong Kong regions cannot be minimized.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties (continueqd)
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Risk Response

Management monitors the labor cost of the Group regularly and
also forecasts that the rise in labour cost can be compensated by
the depreciation of RMB and the automated production in both
Hong Kong production base and the subcontracted factory.

With the inception of the advanced printing technologies, the
Group’s manufacturing process has already highly automated. The
Group has also recruited over 25 T talents to ensure its printing
technology can be developed in an ongoing manner.

Therefore, the Group considers the risk of labor shortage and
rising costs do not have a significant impact on the normal
operations.

Risk Description

Reduction of market demand

Other than traditional media used by businesses, for example
newspapers advertising, radio advertising, television advertising
and telemarketing, the Web becomes a must-use daily medium
today.

Various inexpensive advertising media have grown rapidly,
including pay-per-click advertising; online banner advertising
that entails the display of a graphical advertising unit, etc., and
social media advertising such as Youtube, Twitter, Facebook,
LinkedIn that are the other kind of media to promote customer
relationships.

There is also a trend of having paperless offices and online
paperless portals.

In this regard, the output of printing industry in Hong Kong and
overseas market (e.g. Malaysia) has been declining in recent
years and the Group might face the risk of unfavorable sales
performance.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties (continueq)

¥OE
FERBRTEERZE )

Risk Response

Although the market demand on traditional printing has been
declining to a certain extent, the breakthrough of printing
technology flourishes the printing business and the market
demand on business communication materials for example
brochures, rack cards and catalogs for exhibition or other
promotional functions that are still dominant.

Currently, the Group keeps monitoring the change of consumer
behaviour and builds up a customer relationship management
(CRM) by way of such as customer loyalty program and advocacy
marketing, including VIP membership, one-stop shop, etc. The
Group also provides various kinds of service in and outside Hong
Kong such as the offset printing products, digital printing products
and e-banner to meet the requirements of customers, in addition
to traditional printing services.

In addition, the Marketing Department had started to explore other
possible product lines to diversify the types of services offered.
Examples include variables printing, promotion gifts market, leaflet
distribution services, etc.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and Regulations

During the year under review, save as the omission by the Company
to comply with the Listing Rules requirements to make timely
disclosure for the connected transaction due to inadvertent mistake
as described under the section headed “Connected Transactions”,
as far as the Board and management are aware, there was no
material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws
and regulations by the Group that has a significant impact on the
businesses and operation of the Group.
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Business Review (continueq)

Key Relationships with Employees and Customers

The key relationships with the Group’s employees and customers
are discussed under section headed “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” on pages 34 to 71 of this annual report.

Key Relationships with Suppliers

The Group understands sustainable supply of quality products is
indispensable for long-term business development. In view of this,
the Group has adopted a supplier management policy to ensure
quality and sustainability of product supply. The Group selects its
suppliers prudently. The suppliers need to fulfill certain assessment
criteria of the Group, including meeting the Group’s standards for
the quality of raw materials, reputation, environmental friendliness,
production capacity, financial capability and experience. We view
our suppliers as partners who make important contribution to our
business success.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on pages 113 to 114.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK?2.40 cents per ordinary share for the year ended 31 March 2018
to be payable to the shareholders on Wednesday, 5 September
2018 whose names appear on the register of members on Tuesday,
21 August 2018.

Donations

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group made HK$96,359
charitable and other donations (2017: HK$166,111).
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Annual General Meeting

The 2018 annual general meeting of the Company (2018 AGM”)
will be held on Tuesday, 14 August 2018.

Closure of Register of Members

For the purpose of determining the identity of the shareholders
entitled to attend and vote at the 2018 AGM, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 8 August
2018 to Tuesday, 14 August 2018, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares will be registered. All transfer of
shares accompanied by the relevant certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s transfer office and share registrar in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 7 August 2018.

For determining the entitlement of the shareholders to the proposed
final dividend, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Monday, 20 August 2018 to Tuesday, 21 August 2018,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will
be registered. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all
transfer of shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and
transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 17 August 2018.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital for the
year ended 31 March 2018 are set out in Note 25 to the financial
statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association (“Articles”) or the laws of the Cayman Islands,
being the jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata
basis to existing shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”).
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Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed
Securities of the Company

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or
sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended
31 March 2018.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 March 2018, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) (“Companies Law”) of the Cayman Islands, amounted
to approximately HK$147,073,000, of which HK$13,200,000
dividend has been proposed for the year. Under the Companies
Law, the share premium account of the Company of approximately
HK$132,921,000 as of 31 March 2018 is distributable to the
shareholders of the Company provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend, if any, is proposed to be distributed,
the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities.
The permitted indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the
Directors as required by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong) when the Report of the
Board of the Directors prepared by the Directors is approved in
accordance with section 391(1) (a) of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong).

Five-year Financial Summary

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 228.
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Directors

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. She Siu Kee William
Mr. Lam Shing Kai

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chong Cheuk Ki
Mr. Leung Wai Ming
Mr. Deng Xiaen

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Poon Chun Wai
Mr. Fu Chung
Mr. Ma Siu Kit

In accordance with Article 108(a), Mr. She Siu Kee William,
Mr. Chong Cheuk Ki and Mr. Deng Xiaen shall retire by rotation at
the 2018 AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Independence Confirmation

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in
Shares

As at 31 March 2018, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”) which were notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were
required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules, are set out below:

Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company or its
associated corporation

() The Company

Report of the Directors
EEgWmE

i%&i%ﬁﬂlkéﬂ’ﬂﬂﬁﬁ%

RZE-—NF=Z=A=+—"H KRAESE
NEZITHABRAR R RER B EE
(EERBHFLBEKRM ([FHEBEK
B 1) EXVER) B D - MR D K& H R %
BARIEBE #&H i%ﬂwu%xviﬁ%?&s
BAMARANF RN ERIOAR (B
EREES &Hﬂ B G 48 B8 ik S AR 1
NEEHRENERIAR)  IBREBEBEHF K
B E 14 ] 5535216 B E B L sZ IR P il 19 &
s SkiRE EmAR RISy (E
MBETAESETE ﬁx%ﬂ’]’fﬁ‘? STRID
([MEEESFRI) ABAARR i 2 BT A 2
mIORB T

RAQABREAKEZERD - HEA

Hﬁﬁ&fﬁ#ﬂ'ﬂ%é&z&%
i) AE2F

Approximate

Number of  percentage of
Long position/ ordinary shareholding
Name of Director Nature of interest short position shares held in the Company
)i NGB
ESHA EatE BHe/ KA REEBRHAE BAE DL
Mr. She Siu Kee Willam  Beneficial owner Long position 1,584,000 0.29%
Interest of controlled corporation (Note 1)  Long position 313,125,000 56.93%
KRBELE ERBEEA e
Ryt EEER (M) e
Mr. Chong Cheuk Ki Interest of controlled corporation (Note 1)  Long position 313,125,000 56.93%
Interest of spouse (Note 2) Long position 712,000 0.13%
HEHEE Ryt EEER (M) e
fois s (M) e
Mr. Lam Shing Kai Interest of controlled corporation (Note 1)  Long position 313,125,000 56.93%
MAEERE AR (M) e
Mr. Leung Wai Ming Interest of controlled corporation (Note 1)  Long position 313,125,000 56.93%
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in E ERFETHAENRMDRE
Shares (Continued) ﬁ (#)

Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company or its
associated corporation (continuea)

(i) The Company (Continued) (i) &7 &)
Notes: Biat -
1. 313,125,000 Shares are held by eprint Limited. eprint Limited is held as 1. eprint Limited$F 55313,125,0000% % 17 ©

t0 21.62%, 21.62%, 21.62%, 21.62% and 13.52% by Mr. She Siu Kee
William (“Mr. She”), Mr. Chong Cheuk Ki (“Mr. Chong”), Mr. Lam Shing
Kai (“Mr. Lam”), Mr. Leung Wai Ming (“Mr. WM Leung”) and Mr. Leung
Yat Pang (“Mr. YP Leung”) (collectively, the “Concerted Shareholders”)
respectively. Pursuant to a deed of confirmation dated 2 July 2013 and
entered into by them confirming the existence of their acting in concert
arrangement, each of Mr. She, Mr. Chong, Mr. Lam, Mr. WM Leung and
Mr. YP Leung has agreed to jointly control their respective interests in
the Company. Accordingly, eprint Limited shall be accustomed to act
in accordance with joint instructions of the Concerted Shareholders.
Hence, each of the Concerted Shareholders is deemed to be interested
in all the Shares held by eprint Limited by virtue of the SFO.

eprint Limited AR ABELE ([REE]) -
HEHEEAE ([HEE]) MHEAERE
(T sE]) REHLEE([RERE
ENDRE-WEE(TR2—HxE]) (&
BI—BITERER]) 5 #FF21.62%
21.62% 21.62% * 21.62% K 13.52% 1
HoRERFEEYZAPA =T —=
FLtAZHZHERAREBRRTEZ &
TR AL E FHRE MEER
ﬁﬂﬂﬁi&y{l BreEEg&aREER
THESEERARRIMEZR Bt
eprint Limited!& % 18 #& — B 1T Eh PR 3 %
FEIERITE - Al - IRIEFES RS
B —BITE R R AR AR eprint Limited
Fﬁ?%*ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ1ﬁ¢%ﬁ%é°

HAEWRARERBERZLTEED
712,00088 B 17 R A #E 4 o

(i) #*BE# % - eprint Limited

2. Mr. Chong is deemed to be interested in 712,000 Shares held by his 2.
spouse, Ms. Yip Fei.

(ii) Associated corporation - eprint Limited

Name of Director

Number of
ordinary shares
held in

the Associated
Corporation

Nature of interest

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the Associated
Corporation

FHEHEB REEEE SR
EEHA ZREREE A SNE R
Mr. She Beneficial owner 2,162 21.62%
N E=#EAA
Mr. Chong Beneficial owner 2,162 21.62%
A EmEAA
Mr. Lam Beneficial owner 2,162 21.62%
M HE EmEA A
Mr. WM Leung Beneficial owner 2,162 21.62%
REREE EnlEA A

Note: The disclosed interest represents the interests in eprint Limited, the Wit B BHERERT A HAE WELE-
controlling shareholder of the Company, which is owned by Mr. She, PERR A R — e AR D B HE AR
Mr. Chong, Mr. Lam, Mr. WM Leung and Mr. YP Leung in the respective % Beprint Limited 2 # 25 * & B FT1h
proportions of 21.62%, 21.62%, 21.62%, 21.62% and 13.52%. B9 Bl A21.62% - 21.62% * 21.62% +

21.62%/213.52% °
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in
Shares (Continued)

Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company or its
associated corporation (continuea)

(ii) Associated corporation — eprint Limited (continueq)

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, chief executives
of the Company and/or their associates had any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations as at 31 March
2018 as recorded in the register to be kept under section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Interests in Share Options

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
on 13 November 2013 pursuant to the written resolutions of the
then shareholders passed on 13 November 2013. The Scheme
is a share incentive scheme and is established to recognise and
acknowledge the contributions of the Eligible Participants (as
defined in the Prospectus) have had or may have made to the
Group. Pursuant to the Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion,
offer to grant an option to subscribe of new Shares in aggregate
not exceeding 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time.

The principal terms of the Scheme are summarised as follows:

(1)  The limit on the total number of shares of the Company
(“Shares”) which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Scheme and any other scheme(s) of any member of the
Group must not exceed 10% of the nominal amount of all
the issued share capital of the Company as at the Listing
Date (which was 50,000,000 Shares) unless approval of the
shareholders of the Company has been obtained, and which
must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from
time to time. As at the date of this report, the total number of
Shares available for issue under the Scheme is 50,000,000
Shares, which represents 9.09% of the issued Shares as at
the date of this report.

Report of the Directors
EEEHE

EERFETHRAENRMDRE
3

RAEAQATAREHEBE EZERG - HE
BOREBESFNEZRAE @)

(i) #EE% % B - eprint Limited (#)

BREXPRBEEEN R_E—-N\F=H
=t+—B HEARAEEF FETHA
BR/IMENBEALTRARALE
E] AR B B /) E R A - AERE R 1B
FH - BRAACLERRIEEZ LB
FEI52FHREAFENECMARRIESR
TR R TR E AR QA K B 32 AT RO AE A
HEIRE -

BREER
BREE

BRER-_ZE-—=F+—-A+=HBBNE
FERREAMRBR ARAR_T—=F
t—A+=ARK—ABEBRET 8 (%5t
g -Atdls—ERMEBTE R
BEELRAGERS2EE (EXRHERE
BB AEBCIEHRAIBECIEHMER -
RiIEZTE EFGRBROBRE &
NRBHE BB TBBTRDEITRN
#930% °

kAT BIA) E B RSB T

(1) EfTEMBEREBEZFTERALET
Al B B A B ] E fib 51 &1 3% i i)
RITEHOBREMATEZETZAR
ARG ([RHE])BRBETEBAAAD
BN ETTHEMATE B BITRA (B
50,000,0008% A% 17 ) EIEHI10% (HEE
EARRNAREAERN) BEET
SHBTEEBEITRHDEE MH30% -
RAIRE B E ZErEITE T A P 81T
B I 15 48 88 550,000,0000% AL 15+ 15
AR HERE 1715 #99.09% ©

2017/18%F % eprint EMERAT 87



Report of the Directors

.

=

R

Interests in Share Options (continueq

Share Option Scheme (continuea)

@

©)

The total number of Shares issued and which may be issued
upon exercise of all options (whether exercised, cancelled
or outstanding) granted to any Eligible Participant in any
12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1%
of the issued Shares as at the date of grant.

The subscription price for the Shares under the options to
be granted under the Scheme will be a price determined by
the Board at the time of grant of the options, and will be not
less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the
date of grant which must be a business day; (ii) the average
closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (i) the nominal value of a
Share.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Scheme at any time during a period to be notified by
the Board to each Participant who accepts the grant of any
options, which must not be more than 10 years from the date
of the grant (subject to acceptance) of the option.

HK$1.00 is payable by the Participant who accepts the grant
of an option in accordance with the terms of the Scheme on
acceptance of the grant of an option.

The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of ten
years commencing on the Listing Date, i.e. 3 December 2013.

Other details of the Scheme are set out in the Prospectus.

No share option under the Scheme has been granted by the
Company since its adoption and up to the date of this report.

Equity-Linked Agreements

Save as disclosed above in the section headed “Share Option

Scheme”,

no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the

Group, or existed during the year ended 31 March 2018.
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Substantial Shareholders and Other Persons’ FEREREMA T 2RO
Interests in Shares =

As at 31 March 2018, so far as is known to the Directors, the WR_Z— \F=ZA=+—H BESMMN"
following persons (other than the Directors and the chief executives WA TA L (T BEARGEERETETH
of the Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares A &)EARRQGIKRHND MIEEERD P EEE
and underlying Shares of the Company which were required to be 1R 157 % & HA & 1§ 6| EXVEL 552 K35 5B 40
notified to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the & AR Ak RIEES MBS 151725336
SFO or which were recorded in the register required to be kept 1§ EHBFHE LM ACEAELRRIAR -
under section 336 of the SFO.

Interests or short positions in shares and underlying ZA2ATROREBERGOHWERRAE
shares of the Company

Number of Approximate
ordinary shares/  percentage of

Long position/ underlying shareholding in

Nature of interest short position shares held the Company

BREEER RAERARFR

ERME BR/ KR HERM# A BAE DL

eprint Limited (Note 1) Beneficial owner Long position 313,125,000 56.93%
eprint Limited (FizE1) BB A AE

Ms. Lo Suet Yee (Note 2) Interest of spouse Long position 314,709,000 57.22%
EE Rzt (H52) B S

Ms. Yip Fei (Note 3) Beneficial owner Long position 712,000 0.13%

Interest of spouse Long position 313,125,000 56.93%
ERz+ (MEE3) EREBA S
B S}

Ms. Yu Siu Ping (Note 4) Interest of spouse Long position 313,125,000 56.93%
ar ¥+ (MEE4) B S

Ms. Chau Fung Kiu (Note 5)  Interest of spouse Long position 313,125,000 56.93%
Bz + (H5E5) B S

Mr. Huang Xiaopeng (Note 6)  Interest of controlled corporation Long position 61,875,000 11.25%
EBEG St (MEE6) REHEBE R S
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Substantial Shareholders and Other Persons’ FEREREMA T 2R DR
Interests in Shares (continued) %X ()

Interests or short positions in shares and underlying ZA2QTRODKAEEROHVESZIAS
shares of the Company (continued) (4)

Number of Approximate
ordinary shares/ percentage of

Long position/ underlying shareholding in

Nature of interest short position shares held the Company

BEEZER/ RERARRK

ERtE b HERHE A BABSE

Mr. Huang Xiaojia (Note 6) Interest of controlled corporation Long position 61,875,000 11.25%
EBEESAE (MEE6) REEEER e =)

Mr. Huang Bingwen (Note 6)  Interest of controlled corporation Long position 61,875,000 11.25%
\IRX e (FFEE6) REEEER e =)

Hong Kong Tung Fung Interest of controlled corporation Long position 61,875,000 11.25%

Investment Company
Limited (Note 6)

EEREREBRAR XEGEE#ER He
(P 5E6)

Shantou Dongfeng Printing Interest of controlled corporation Long position 61,875,000 11.25%
Co., Ltd. (Note 6)

1L 28 3R [ E i AR £ REEHEE S o=}
BRAT (H5E6)

Hong Kong Luck Investment  Beneficial owner Long position 61,875,000 11.25%
Company Limited (Note 6)

EERWREBRAR BEmBEAA He
(PffsE6)

Mr. YP Leung Interest of controlled corporation Long position 313,125,000 56.93%

(Note 7)
2—l55%HE HEtlEE g (HEE7) He
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Substantial Shareholders and Other Persons’
Interests in Shares (continuea)

Interests or short positions in shares and underlying
shares of the Company (continued)

Notes:

1.

2.

eprint Limited is directly interested in approximately 56.93% in the Company.

Ms. Lo Suet Yee is the spouse of Mr. She. Under the SFO, Ms. Lo Suet Yee
is taken to be interested in the same number of Shares in which Mr. She is
interested.

Ms. Yip Fei is the spouse of Mr. Chong. Under the SFO, Ms. Yip Fei is taken to
be interested in the same number of Shares in which Mr. Chong is interested.

Ms. Yu Siu Ping is the spouse of Mr. Lam. Under the SFO, Ms. Yu Siu Ping
is taken to be interested in the same number of Shares in which Mr. Lam is
interested.

Ms. Chau Fung Kiu is the spouse of Mr. WM Leung. Under the SFO, Ms. Chau
Fung Kiu is taken to be interested in the same number of Shares in which
Mr. WM Leung is interested.

These 61,875,000 Shares are held by Hong Kong Luck Investment Company
Limited, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shantou Dongfeng, an A
share company listed on the main board of the Shanghai Stock Exchange.
Shantou Dongfeng is 54.40% held by Hong Kong Tung Fung Investment
Company Limited and 1.11% held by Mr. Huang Xiaojia. Hong Kong Tung
Fung Investment Company is owned as to 34% by Mr. Huang Xiaopeng, 33%
by Mr. Huang Xiaojia and 33% by Mr. Huang Bingwen. Under the SFO, each
of Shantou Dongfeng, Hong Kong Tung Fung Investment Company Limited,
Mr. Huang Xiaopeng, Mr. Huang Xiaojia and Mr. Huang Bingwen is taken to be
interested in the same number of Shares in which Hong Kong Luck Investment
Company Limited is interested.

These 313,125,000 shares are held through eprint Limited, a company
beneficially owned as to 13.52% by Mr. YP Leung.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any
other persons who have interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any associated
corporations (within the meaning of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.
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Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of Mr. She and Mr. Lam, executive Directors, has entered into
a service agreement dated 18 November 2016 with the Company
for a term of three years commencing from 3 December 2016. Each
of the executive Directors may receive a discretionary bonus, the
amount of which will be determined by reference to the comments
of the remuneration committee of the Company.

Mr. Deng Xiaen signed a letter of appointment as a non-executive
Director of the Company on 19 November 2014 for a term of three
years commencing from 1 December 2014 which was expired on
1 December 2017. On 15 June 2018, Mr. Deng signed a renewed
letter of appointment issued by the Company for a term of three
years commencing with retrospective effect from 1 December
2017. Each of the other non-executive Directors has signed a letter
of appointment dated 13 November 2016 issued by the Company
for a term of three years commencing from 3 December 2016.

Mr. Poon Chun Wai has signed a letter of appointment as an
independent non-executive Director issued by the Company
on 15 August 2016 for a term of three years commencing from
15 August 2016.

Mr. Fu Chung has signed a letter of appointment as an independent

non-executive Director issued by the Company on 8 March 2017
for a term of three years commencing from 8 March 2017.
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Directors’ Service Contracts (continueq)

Mr. Ma Siu Kit has signed a letter of appointment as an independent
non-executive Director issued by the Company on 30 December
2016 for a term of three years commencing from 30 December
2016.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
2018 AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts

Other than those disclosed in the sections headed “Connected
Transactions” below and “Related Party Transactions” in note 35
to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018, no
significant transaction, arrangements and contracts of significance
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly subsisted at
the year-end or at any time during the year.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, the Company confirmed that all
Directors had complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code throughout the year.
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Connected Transactions

The Group had entered into a number of transactions with parties
who, upon the listing of the Company’s shares on the Stock
Exchange, became connected persons of the Company under the
Listing Rules.

Connected Persons

1. CTP Limited (“CTP”)

CTP is principally engaged in the business of property
investment, and is beneficially owned as to 25% by Mr. She,
25% by Mr. Chong, 25% by Mr. Lam and 25% by Mr. WM
Leung, respectively.

2. Promise Properties Limited (RERYEGR L T)
(“Promise Properties”)

Promise Properties is principally engaged in the business
of property investment, and is beneficially owned as to
approximately 21.62% by Mr. She, 21.62% by Mr. Chong,
21.62% by Mr. Lam, 13.52% by Mr. YP Leung, 10.81% by
Ms. Chau Fung Kiu, the wife of Mr. WM Leung and 10.81% by
an independent third party.

3. VVV Limited (“VVV”)

VVV is principally engaged in the business of property
investment, and is beneficially owned as to approximately
21.62% by Mr. She, 21.62% by Mr. Chong, 21.62% by Mr.
Lam, 21.62% by Mr. WM Leung and 13.52% by Mr. YP
Leung, respectively.

4. Profit More Rich Limited (B2 E Z AR 2 7)) (“Profit
More”)

Profit More is principally engaged in the business of property
investment, and is wholly owned by CTP.

5. King Profit International Limited (ZRIBE R ER A T)
(“King Profit”)

King Profit is principally engaged in the business of property

investment, and is beneficially owned as to approximately
70% by VWV and 30% by Mr. Yip Chi Man.
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Connected Transactions continveq)

Connected Persons (continued)

6.

Wilson Printing Equipment Limited ( & 15 EN Rl 5% & & R
A7) (“Wilson Printing”)

Wilson Printing is principally engaged in the business of
trading of printing equipment and printing materials, and is
beneficially owned as to 100% by Mr. Lam Shing Tai (“Mr.
Lam ST”), the brother of Mr. Lam, one of the Controlling
Shareholders and executive Directors.

Wilson (Hong Kong) Limited (& (%) GR A7)
(“Wilson HK”)

Wilson (HK) is principally engaged in the business of trading
of printing machineries and spare parts, and is beneficially
owned as to 65% by Mr. Lam ST.

Mr. She, Mr. Chong, Mr. Lam and Mr. WM Leung are the
Directors and Mr. YP Leung is a substantial shareholder of the
Company and they are Controlling Shareholders. The above
companies are associates of Mr. She, Mr. Chong, Mr. Lam, Mr.
WM Leung and Mr. YP Leung, and hence they are considered
as connected persons of the Group under Rule 14A.12 of the
Listing Rules.

Sun Cheong Paper Development Limited ( 7 S 4 % 2%
RAEBR2E) (“Sun Cheong”)

Sun Cheong is principally engaged in the supply and sales of
paper and is owned as to approximately 50% by Mr. Li Cham
Kuen, father of Mr. Li Jian Hua (“Mr. JH Li"). Mr. JH Li is a
director of e-banner. Sun Cheong is a connected person of
the Company at the subsidiary level.

Report of the Directors
== & E0 H=
= RS

BE AL 2

6.

BEEERREERQT ([RIEED
1)

BEHNREZEXREEFTINRZHE X
E[ Rl A4 B 3 75 B MR K S8 A (T#R
EAREE]) (ERBERREEIENTE
Er—MAEENRB)EXEAE
100% % #E -

RE(FB)ARAA([RHEE
&)

BEEETENEEFHRIEM K
THEB AMARNEEEGDHESR
H65% M -

REEHEE MEERREHL
ERESE MR- BEERBERRAN
NABRIE FRE -HEE 2F
HEERR—BEENBEAL A
It R IE E AR Bl 14A 1216 B S
WARBAEENBAEAL-

MERXBRARAA([HE])

TEXFENREHERBEEMRK B
TRELAE([ZRELE])NLR
TR AR H50%E s - TEE
S Be-bannerfIEE - TE A AN
AIBARIEmMBEEAL-

2017/18F % eprint EMERAT 95



Report of the Directors
EEenmE

Connected Transactions continveq)

Non-exempt continuing connected transactions

The following connected transactions constitute non-exempt
continuing connected transactions for the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

1. Tenancy agreements
Background
(@) Tenancy agreements relating to CTP

On 14 December 2015, nineteen tenancy agreements
were entered into between CTP, as landlord, and Lucky
Gainer Limited (“Lucky Gainer”), Promise Network
Printing Limited (“Promise Network”) and e-banner
Limited (“e-banner”) as tenants, under which CTP agreed
to lease a number of properties located in Kwun Tong
Industrial Centre to Lucky Gainer, Promise Network and
e-banner, with a total saleable area of 29,217 square
feet for use as offices, workshops, stores and car parks.
The monthly rentals payable to CTP for the three years
ending 31 March 2019 are approximately HK$607,800,
HK$668,600 and HK$734,000 respectively (exclusive of
government rent, management fees and other utilities
outgoings which are payable by the relevant tenant).
The aggregate rentals paid to CTP for the year ended
31 March 2018 was approximately HK$4,814,900.

(b) Tenancy agreements relating to Promise Properties

On 14 December 2015, five tenancy agreements were
entered into between Promise Properties, as landlord,
and Lucky Gainer, as tenant, under which Promise
Properties agreed to lease a number of properties
located in Kwun Tong Industrial Centre to Lucky Gainer
with a total saleable area of 8,280 square feet for use
as workshops. The monthly rentals payable to Promise
Properties for the three years ending 31 March 2019
are approximately HK$137,800, HK$151,400 and
HK$167,300 respectively (exclusive of government rent,
management fees and other utilities outgoings which are
payable by the tenant). The aggregate rentals paid to
Promise Properties for the year ended 31 March 2018
was approximately HK$1,816,800.
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Connected Transactions continveq)

Non-exempt continuing connected transactions

(Continued)

1. Tenancy agreements (Continued)

Background (Continued)

(c)

Tenancy agreements relating to VVV

On 14 December 2015, six tenancy agreements were
entered into between VVV, as landlord, Lucky Gainer
and Promise Network, as tenants, under which VVV
agreed to lease a number of properties located in
Kwun Tong Industrial Centre to Lucky Gainer for use
as workshops and a car park and one property in Chai
Wan to Promise Network for use as a store, with a total
saleable area of 11,865 square feet. The monthly rentals
payable to VWV for the three years ending 31 March
2019 are approximately HK$233,600, HK$258,100 and
HK$285,200 respectively (exclusive of government rent,
management fees and other utilities outgoings which are
payable by the relevant tenant). The aggregate rentals
paid to VWV for the year ended 31 March 2018 was
approximately HK$2,109,600.

Tenancy agreement relating to Profit More

On 14 December 2015, a tenancy agreement was
entered into between Profit More, as landlord, and Lucky
Gainer, as tenant, under which Profit More agreed to
lease a property located in Kwun Tong Industrial Centre
to Lucky Gainer with a saleable area of 2,895 square feet
for use as a workshop. The monthly rentals payable to
Profit More for the three years ending 31 March 2019 are
approximately HK$50,000, HK$55,000 and HK$60,000
respectively (exclusive of government rent, management
fees and other utilities outgoings which are payable by
the tenant). The aggregate rentals paid to Profit More
for the year ended 31 March 2018 was approximately
HK$660,000.
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Connected Transactions continveq)

Non-exempt continuing connected transactions
(Continued)

1. Tenancy agreements (Continued)
Background (Continued)
(e) Tenancy agreement relating to King Profit

On 14 December 2015, a tenancy agreement entered
into between King Profit, as landlord, and Lucky Gainer
and Promise Network, as tenants, under which King
Profit agreed to lease a property and a car park located
in Kwun Tong Industrial Centre to the tenants with a
total saleable area of 1,820 square feet for use as a
workshop and car park. The monthly rentals payable to
King Profit for the three years ending 31 March 2019 are
approximately HK$33,000, HK$36,600 and HK$40,500
respectively (exclusive of government rent, management
fees and other utilities outgoings which are payable by
the tenant). The aggregate rentals paid to King Profit
for the year ended 31 March 2018 was approximately
HK$439,200.

(collectively, the “Tenancy Agreements”).

The annual caps for the leases under the Tenancy Agreements
for the year ended 31 March 2018 is HK$14,036,400. The
actual rental paid under the Tenancy Agreements for the year
ended 31 March 2018 was approximately HK$9,840,500.
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Connected Transactions continveq)

Non-exempt continuing connected transactions
(Continued)

2.

Master Supply Agreement
Background

On 14 December 2015, Wilson Printing and Wilson HK
and the Company entered into a master supply agreement
(the “Master Supply Agreement”) for a term of three years
commenced from 1 April 2016 and ending on 31 March 2019,
pursuant to which Wilson Printing and Wilson HK agreed to
supply the ink products, zinc printing plates, printing solutions,
consumables of printing machines and printing machine spare
parts (the “Products”) and provide the provision of printing
machine maintenance services (the “Services”) to the Group
for production and operation of the printing business of the
Group. Pursuant to the Master Supply Agreement, the price of
the Products and the Services shall be based on the prevailing
market prices of similar products or services; or the prices
agreed between the Group and the Sellers from time to time
after arm’s length negotiation and are comparable to market
prices of similar products and services.

The annual cap amounts of the fees to be paid by the Group
for the supply of the Products and the Services under the
Master Supply Agreement for the year ended 31 March
2018 is approximately HK$20,338,000. The actual fees paid/
payable by the Group under the Master Supply Agreement for
the year ended 31 March 2018 was HK$13,657,590.
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Connected Transactions continveq)

Non-exempt continuing connected transactions
(Continued)

3.

Supply Transactions

On 1 November 2017, Mr. JH Li was appointed as a
director of e-banner. Prior to his appointment, Sun Cheong
has been supplying the various types of paper to Promise
Network since 2013. Upon his appointment, Sun Cheong
continued supplying paper to Promise Network (the “Supply
Transactions”). From the date of Mr. JH Li’'s appointment
on 1 November 2017 to 31 March 2018 the transaction
amount for the Supply Transactions between Sun Cheong
and Promise was approximately HK$7,700,000. The purchase
price paid to Sun Cheong was determined based on the then
selling price of similar products from other independent third
parties and the prices agreed between Promise Network and
Sun Cheong from time to time after arm’s length negotiation
and are comparable to market prices of similar products.

The Supply Transactions were subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements and were exempt from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. On 15 June 2018, the
Company publish an announcement to announce, among
others, the Supply Transactions and report the omission by
the Company to comply with the Listing Rules requirements
to make timely disclosure for the Supply Transactions due to
inadvertent mistake.

To avoid any similar delay in the future and to tighten the
Group’s internal control procedures, the Company has taken
the following remedial actions: (i) to review and oversee the
legal and regulatory compliance procedures and internal
controls of the Group to ensure that all existing and further
transactions of the Company fully comply with the Listing
Rules; and (ii) to provide further training to the senior
management and the relevant personnel of the Company to
help them better understand the requirements of the Listing
Rules and identify any potential connected transactions of the
Group on a timely basis.
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Connected Transactions continveq)

Non-exempt continuing connected transactions
(Continued)

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company have
reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that the transactions have been entered into:

1. inthe ordinary and usual course of the Group’s business;

2. on normal commercial terms or better; and

3. have been carried out in accordance with the terms of the
agreements governing such transactions that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued an unmodified letter containing
the findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange. The auditor has
included an emphasis of matter paragraph (without modification) in
its letter which states that: “We draw attention that the Company
issued an announcement dated 15 June 2018 in respect of the
continuing connected transactions between a subsidiary and
Sun Cheong Paper Development Limited for the period from
1 November 2017 to 31 March 2018 as set out in the note (d)
to the Appendix of this letter (the “Supply Transactions”). There
was no annual cap for the Supply Transactions for the year ended
31 March 2018, and accordingly we do not provide a conclusion
on whether the Supply Transactions have exceeded an annual cap.
Our conclusion is not modified in respect of this matter.”.
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Connected Transactions continveq)

Fully-exempt continuing connected transaction

On 30 August 2016, a tenancy agreement (the “Agreement”) was
entered into between CTP, as landlord, and Appone Esolution
Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, as tenant, under which CTP
agreed to lease a property located in Kwun Tong Industrial Centre
to Appone Esolution Limited for a term of 31 months commenced
from 1 September 2016 and ending on 31 March 2019. Pursuant
to the Agreement, the monthly rentals payable to CTP for the 7
months ended 31 March 2017, and for two years ending 31 March
2019 are approximately HK$27,000, HK$29,700 and HK$32,600
respectively (exclusive of government rent, management fees and
other utilities outgoings which are payable by the tenant). The
aggregate rentals paid to CTP for the year ended 31 March 2018
was HK$356,400.

The transaction under the Agreement constituted continuing
connected transaction of the Company but was fully exempted from
notification, announcement, circular and shareholders’ approval
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

2016 Printing Services Agreement

Reference are made to the announcement of the Company dated
14 December 2015 and the circular of the Company dated 1
February 2016 in relation to, among others, a printing services
agreement (the “2016 Printing Services Agreement”) entered into
between Promise Network, and Dongguan Runxing Chengpin
Printing Company Limited (“Runxing”) on 14 December 2015.
Pursuant to the 2016 Printing Services Agreement, Runxing agreed
to provide certain printing services to Promise Network for a term of
three years commenced from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2019. The
Company was informed by Mr. Lam ST in 2015 that he has entered
into an agreement to acquire the entire interest of Runxing. In the
event of completion of such acquisition, Runxing would become
a connected person of the Company and hence, the transaction
contemplated under the 2016 Printing Services Agreement would
constitute continuing transaction of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. As at 31 March 2018, the aforesaid
acquisition has not been completed. As such, the transaction
under the 2016 Printing Services Agreement did not constitute any
continuing connected transaction of the Company.
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2016 Printing Services Agreement (continueq)

Save for the above and those related party transactions as set out
in Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements. There was no
connected transactions carried out during the year ended 31 March
2018.

The Directors (including the independent executive Directors)
believe that the related party transactions set out in the Note 35
to the consolidated financial statements were carried out in the
ordinary course of business of the Company and were on normal
commercial terms.

Other than the aforementioned continuing connected transactions,
the related party transactions disclosed in Note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements are either exempted connected
continuing transactions or non-exempt continuing connected
transactions which are in compliance with the requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Non-Compete Undertakings

eprint Limited, Mr. She, Mr. Chong, Mr. Lam, Mr. WM Leung and
Mr. YP Leung (together, the “Covenantors”) entered into the deed
of non-competition in favour of the Company on 13 November
2013 (the “NCU”), pursuant to which the Covenantors have
undertaken to the Company (for itself and for the benefit of each
of the members of the Group) that, with effect from the date of
listing (i.e. 3 December 2013) and for as long as the shares of
the Company remain so listed on the Stock Exchange and the
Controlling Shareholders are individually or collectively with any of
his/its associates interested directly or indirectly in not less than
30% of the issued ordinary share capital of our Company (the
“Restricted Period”), the Covenantors or their respective associates
shall not, (i) directly or indirectly engage in, participate or hold any
right or interest in or render any services to or otherwise be involved
in any business (whether as owner, director, operator, licensor,
licensee, partner, shareholder, joint venturer, employee, consultant
or otherwise) in competition with or likely to be in competition with
the existing business carried on by the Group (the “Restricted
Business”); and (i) directly or indirectly take any action which
constitutes an interference with or a disruption of the Restricted
Business including, but not limited to, solicitation of our Group’s
customers, suppliers or personnel of any member of the Group.

The Covenantors have confirmed to the Company the compliance
with the non-compete undertaking during the year ended 31 March
2018. The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the NCU and confirmed the compliance with the non-compete
undertaking by the Covenantors during the year ended 31 March
2018.
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Tax Relief and Exemption

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the percentage of sales attributable to the largest
customer and the five largest customers of the Group is 0.6% and
2.2% respectively.

During the year, the largest supplier and the five largest suppliers
of the Group accounted for approximately 37.4% and 80.4% of the
total purchases of the Group respectively.

None of the Directors, their associates or any Shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or
customers noted above.

Subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

Details of the principal subsidiaries, associates and joint venture of
the Company are set out in Note 11, Note 12 and Note 13 to the
financial statements.

Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float as required under the Listing
Rules during the year and up to the date of this report.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 13 November
2013 with written terms of reference in compliance with the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to
review and supervise the financial reporting system and to review
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group.
The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Ma Siu Kit (chairman), Mr. Poon Chun Wai
and Mr. Fu Chung. The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2018.
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Competition and Conflict of Interests

During the year, save as disclosed in this annual report, none of the
Directors or substantial shareholders of the Company or any of their
respective associates has engaged in any business that competes
or may compete with the business of the Group.

Corporate Governance

A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted
by the Company is set out on pages 18 to 33 of this annual report.

Auditor

There has been no change in auditor of the Company during the
past three years.

The term of appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”) as
auditor of the Company shall expire at the conclusion of the 2018
AGM. A resolution will be submitted to the 2018 AGM to re-appoint
PwC as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
eprint Group Limited
She Siu Kee, William
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2018
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Independent Auditor’s Report
18 M A% B A ¥

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF EPRINT
GROUP LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
Opinion
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of eprint Group Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 113
to 227, which comprise:

° the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March
2018;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 March 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(‘HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is in relation to impairment
assessment of goodwill and property, plant and equipment of
banner printing segment, and is summarised as follows:
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Key Audit Matter
HARENSE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNETNRNEEEARENSE

Impairment assessment of goodwiill,
property and plant and equipment of
banner printing segment

Refer to Notes 2.9, 5, 16 and 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group’s banner printing segment has goodwill
and property, plant and equipment amounting to
approximately HK$36 million as of 31 March 2018,
representing approximately 12% of the Group’s total
assets.

The banner printing segment suffered loss for past
few years and recorded insignificant profits amounting
to approximately HK$2.7 million for the year ended
31 March 2018, which represented an impairment
indicator of goodwill and property, plant and
equipment within the banner printing segment.

In this regard, management performed an assessment
on impairment of goodwill and property, plant and
equipment of the banner printing segment by using
value-in-use calculation to determine the recoverable
amount and concluded that there was no impairment
as its recoverable amount exceeds its carrying
amount.

This assessment was based on management cash
flow forecast and involved significant judgements
and estimates about future business performance
including revenue growth, gross profit margin and
discount rate and accordingly, this was an area of
our audit focus.
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In assessing the appropriateness of the management’s
impairment assessment of goodwill and property, plant
and equipment, the following audit procedures have been
performed by us:

We evaluated management’s financial budget
and future cash flow forecast by understanding
the process by which they were drawn up, and
testing the mathematical accuracy of the underlying
calculation;

We assessed the reasonableness of the key
assumptions used in the cash flow forecast by
() comparing the projected revenue growth and
gross profit margin growth to the historical sales
performance and historical profit margin of the
Company (i) benchmarking these key assumptions
against other comparable companies in the industry
and (i) checking these key assumptions against
actual results in the period subsequent to the year
end;

We evaluated the discount rate by assessing the
cost of capital of the Group and referencing the
cost of capital of other comparable companies in
the industry; and

We obtained and evaluated management’s
sensitivity analysis of the cash flow forecast by
considering downside scenarios against reasonable
possible changes to the key assumptions.

Based on the procedures described, we found that the
key assumptions, judgements and estimates made by the
management in respect of the impairment assessment
were supported by available evidence.

SAGEEEHYBRERYE BEEREBNRER G

MEEN HMEE

T TR -

EPMFIRERENMBRERARASRE
[;%EEPET Rz MBI E B ET E M BT A

O ZMTRBERERAMANEIERINE 2N
BB() A WaSIB R R EMN KB READF B
E%%%ﬁ&@&%ﬂ?ﬁm@:w%%%i%
RBEEEANEMAIE LR R BETHE L : R (i)#
ZETERBREZFEERECIENERZAE
THE

e HEMBBFE SEEENESKA R2EXR
HMA LR ARMNESRA PR E R

. ﬁﬁLﬂ%Figﬁﬁmé@ﬂ%ﬁEZTﬁ%

CAEEEEHRSRERBM GRS

EF%L&F ﬁﬁw%%ﬁg¢ﬁﬁ¥MW¢mm



Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Independent Auditor’s Report
BN AR

=BT BT 5T S OF B A 3R R AR
ENEE

s HEEZRAKBELEGAEMNR
EHEL AR RIZMENNE
BE HEEEAFHEESHIBNR
BRANBERIHEEL KEMAI kLS
HY ERENBEKERNELE
EXRE-MRBEMB/FEEX
THEEMN BB B2 EZBAE RS
TRFBEEREIEAHITBRRF
MEERE - REEHENEESE -
A MEERRFERBER &
ﬁ%%ﬁ%%#ﬁﬁ%ﬁiaﬁﬁ

BHEFRE - AWM *X%E%
ﬂTm B BEEETERER

L-o

. 4EAHWﬁﬁ%mELWﬁHT
BENAR BEBEE URGHY

Wﬁ%% TR ERMBREBER S ME
o

e B BEXE lWﬁ%i%%E%MW
BEHMERTE BENERE
NEHAHFTBRRERER - ﬁ
MaE BEEEEANHME EEM
T - ZMRBEFERAERAE
o

BREMEERIN RMARELZZESRAT
AAEMERE KRLHE EAFAE
RE - BREMERE P BRI G A EBE Sl
B 1E fa] BB K ERBE ©

BMBERAEZZBESREXER  SARM
ENGERBLMENEEREREBREN
WERMFBBEBARSEBERBRRER
ERMBLENABEREMEMEIR A
RIEFERABRT - AP -

2017/18%F R eprint EEAER AT 111



Independent Auditor’s Report
BN 2B R

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Wilson Chan.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29 June 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BOtERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE_ZT—N\F=ZA=+—HIFE

2018 2017
—E-NF —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET
Revenue g B 403,303 390,638
Cost of sales 55 R AR 8 (257,216) (251,328)
Gross profit EH 146,087 139,310
Other income E g A 6 7,107 6,119
Other losses — net HihEE— 558 7 (4,890) (7,807)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHERAX 8 (43,955) (42,769)
Administrative expenses THHRAX 8 (75,486) (80,507)
Operating profit  _ _______  E®a . .....28863 14346
Finance income BB WA 488 466
Finance costs B & Pk A (1,292) (1,579)
Financecosts—net  RERE_FE 0 804) (.113)
Share of losses of associates FE(G B & R A B 18 12 (143) (1,746)
Share of profit of a joint venture B & & ERF 13 777 1,257
________________________________________________________________________________________________ 634 (489
Profit before income tax B BT 15 250 Bl g ) 28,693 12,744
Income tax expense FrisBif X 14 (5,599) (3,525)
Profit for the year F A5 A 23,094 9,219
Other comprehensive income: H 4R & Wz
ltem that may be reclassified to AREEHHOBREBEAEMIER -
profit or loss:
Currency translation differences M N E%8 2,012 (1,705)
Total comprehensive income FAFE KRBT
for the year 25,106 7,514
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Bt e aER

For the year ended 31 March 2018
2 )\F=ZA=+—HILEFE

2018 2017
—B-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Profit for the year attributable to: AT & IEEIEFREA
Equity holders of the Company RARERFTEA 22,032 17,321
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR M A 1,062 (8,102)
23,094 9,219
Earnings per share for profit FARABERFEA
attributable to equity holders of FEAE R A B F AR & T
the Company during the year
Basic and diluted (expressed in HK ERREE (IRERBWE)
cents per share) 15 4.01 3,16
Total comprehensive income AR IBELENR
for the year attributable to: o G
Equity holders of the Company RARERFTEA 23,854 15,857
Non-controlling interests FEFE R M A 1,252 (8,343)
25,106 7,514

The notes on pages 121 to 227 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

BBRE 5 -
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

SO BRI R

As at 31 March 2018
R-E—N\FE=ZA=1+—H

2018 2017
—E-NEF —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Assets BE
Non-current assets EMEBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BB R 16 135,671 157,189
Intangible assets mEE 17 725 1,442
Held-to-maturity investments BEEHEE 22 - 15,000
Financial asset at fair value through BREBRZEAABEYEZ
profit or loss TREE 23 - 12,319
Investments in associates REtE R RINRE 12 2,977 2,962
Investment in a joint venture REELENKEE 13 8,021 6,205
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTSTE E 30 2,402 3,259
Deposits and prepayments B RIERMRIE 21 4,913 4,940
154,709 203,316
Current assets BN E
Inventories e 19 6,051 5,409
Trade receivables B 5 e W18 20 7,880 4,518
Deposits, prepayments and e BRFIER
other receivables o th e sk IR 21 15,036 15,500
Held-to-maturity investments FEIEHKEE 22 15,000 10,000
Financial asset at fair value through FRBmEARBEYEZ
profit or loss EREE 23 12,746 =
Current income tax recoverable EHR R EFTISH 20 17
Amounts due from related companies & Ut BEE N 7k IE 35 10,191 5,849
Cash and cash equivalents HehHLEEEAEE 24 89,524 68,220
156,448 109,513
Total assets BERR 311,157 312,829
Equity e A
Capital and reserves attributable to RARIERFEAEA
the equity holders of EIEEAR K
the Company
Share capital fi% 7R 25 5,500 5,500
Share premium AR 10 5 (8 25 132,921 132,921
Other reserves H fth 26 86,868 71,814
225,289 210,235
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR A 2 6,377 (2,715)
Total equity ¥ 25 A ER 231,666 207,520
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
G IR E

As at 31 March 2018
R—ZE—\&F=A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Liabilities afE
Non-current liabilities EREBAERE
Obligations under finance leases MEHEBETET 29 1,935 7,045
Deferred income tax liabilities BEFRGEMEE 30 7,768 9,477
Other payables H & 3R 27 1,186 —
oo, Y0889 16,922
Current liabilities mEBE
Trade payables 2 5N IA 27 12,886 7,948
Accruals and other payables FE & 3R I8 2 HL fth FE < 5K I8 27 25,270 28,298
Borrowings BE 28 24,592 38,343
Obligations under finance leases MEREBETEE 29 5,110 7,013
Amounts due to related parties &SRB 5 B 35 336 9
Amounts due to directors B EE IR 35 245 245
Current income tax payable FEHE BRAT ISR 163 6,931
e 08602 88,787
Totallabiites . +°#es . T4 105,309
Total equity and liabilities EERkBEER 311,157 312,829

FINE22TEMEBKAFIBHRERZ
MARED

The notes on pages 121 to 227 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

F1I3E120EFTEH G HPEHRERER =
T-NFRNA-+hBESEESHE I
HTHEERRER

The consolidated financial statements on pages 113 to 120 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 29 June 2018 and were
signed on its behalf.

Mr. She Siu Kee William Mr. Lam Shing Kai

RBEKE MAERE
Director Director
EE EFE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
EOHEREFH R

For the year ended 31 March 2018
22— \F=ZA=+—HLEFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

RRAEEEEAEE
Non-
Share Share Capital Other  Exchange  Retained controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve  earnings  Sub-total interests Total
Rx RGEE BARE HbREE  SERE  REEA Mt FERER ag
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TERT TERT TARL TEn TERT ThL Thn TERT ThRT
Banceat tADM2016 M-S AFRATRER SO0 1329 688 @Y (120 83%5 2708 | {197 _ 206831
Comprehensive income GelE
Profit for the year gy - - - - L AN L 8102 9219
Other comprehensive income LY
Currency translation differences ELEE
- Group s ] - - - - (519) - (519) (241) (760)
- Joint venture and associates -~RELEREEAT - - - - (945) - (045) - (045)
Total comprehensive income Rebage - - - - (1469 1731 1587 | @34 7514
Transactions with owners, ERNMERRANERBANRS
recognised directly in equity
Capital injection from non-controling ~ FFEMR R FE
interests = = = = = = = 5,825 5,825
Dividends (Note 31) R (H3a1) - - - - - (12850 (12650) - (12650
Total transactions with owners, ERIMERREZNE
recognised directly in equity EBEANERS - - - - - (12650 (12,650) 5,825 6829
Balance at 31 March 2017 RZE—tE=A=+-REH 5500 132,921 6,593 1) (2684 67926 21023 @715 207,520
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

AbHEREBE

For the year ended 31 March 2018
(Z=E - N\F=A=1T—HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
ARABRERE AR
Non-
Share Share Capital Other  Exchange  Retained controlling

capital  premium reserve reserve reserve  earnings  Sub-total interests Total
Rx  ROEE EXRK ARG HERE REEXN Nt FBRRESR &g
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER TER TER TER

Balance at 1 April 2017 RZE-tEMA-REH 5500 132,921 6,593 1) (268 67926 210235 (2715 207,520
Comprehensive income ek
Profit for the year FREF - - - - - _2?,(_13_2_ L _2?,(_)3_2 _____ 1_,(_)6_2_ o ?§,99_4_ |
Other comprehensive income Efoira s
Currency translation differences ELEE
- Group ] - - - - 516 - 516 190 706
- Joint venture and associates ~BERERBEDNT - - - - 1,306 - 1,306 - 1,306
Total comprehensive income mehngER - - - - 1822 2032 2384 1252 25106
Transactions with owners ERMERRANE

recognised directly in equity BEANR S
Capital injection from non-controling ~ FFEMRERFE

interests - - - - - - - 7,840 7,840
Dividends (Note 31) T8 (KisEst) - - - - - (8,800) (8,800) - (8,800)
Total transactions with owners, ERIMERRERNE

recognised dlrectly in equity BEANERS - - - - - (8,800) (8,800) 7,840 (960)
Balance at 31 March 2018 RIE-\F=A=1T-HEH 5,500 132,921 6,593 (21) (862) 81,158 225,289 6,377 231,666

The notes on pages 121 to 227 are an integral part of these B R F121E227TEN W ABK A G
consolidated financial statements. BHREH—FH -
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Cash flows from operating activities

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

ﬁ‘“%é@)&iﬂ’ﬁﬁ e

BHRERER

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE_Z-N\F=ZA=1+T—HILFE

2018
—2-N\F

2017
—E5F
HK$'000
THET

HK$’000
FERT

Cash generated from operations EEEANIRE 32 47,778 27,481
Interest paid 2 & (1,292) (1,579)
Income tax paid ERFTEH (13,222) (2,093)
Net cash generated from operating KEREELMIR S FE

activities 33,264 23,809
Cash flows from investing activities KREFHEENRERE
Purchase of property, plant and BEYE BWEREE

equipment (812) (46,900)
Prepayment for purchase of property, B EWE¥ - BELKRED

plant and equipment TE £+ 7R8 (2,108) (48)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  BE KEZED

plant and equipment Fr{S %8 32 425 6,911
Purchase of held-to-maturity BERZE ?'J B &

investments 22 - (15,000)
Proceeds on redemption and BORHERZIHKEZ

disposal of held-to-maturity Fr{S 2} 8

investments 10,000 28,781
Interest income from held-to-maturity 33 % B B & 59 F B UL A

investments 1,501 3,955
Investment in an associate Rt &R RINRE 12 (3) (750)
Proceeds from partial disposal of o E B & N R ED Tﬁ

an associate W% 2 FT1S T 12 1
Advances to an associate il /N 7 - (2,500)
Interest received 2 UWH B 461 191
Net cash generated from /(used in) wEEBEE, (FTA)

investing activities & F 5 9,465 (25,360)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

EHRERER

For the year ended 31 March 2018
2 )\F=ZA=+—HILEFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF

HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT TET

Cash flows from financing activities MERHEENBERE
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares [A]FE3E A% i 25 35 1T LB AL A9

to non-controlling interests Fri5 7718 7,840 5,825
Proceeds from borrowings BEFE fy’( 1,679 12,940
Repayments of borrowings EEER (15,430) (15,637)
Repayments of obligations under EEXNBMERAEBETHEMR

finance leases (7,013) (11,081)
Dividends paid B E 31 (8,800) (12,650)
Net cash used in financing BMEEBMANEFE

activities (21,724) (20,553)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReMREEEIRE

cash equivalents #an O ) FEE 21,005 (22,104)
Cash and cash equivalents at FYRe AR EEEEE

beginning of year 68,220 90,295
Effect of change in exchange rates EXEHHTE 299 29
Cash and cash equivalents at end FRASEHESEEEE

of year 24 89,524 68,220
Non-cash transaction FBRERXH

No new finance lease arrangement was entered for the year ended #HE_-_ZET—NF=ZA=+—HBHI-FEEH

31 March 2018. The Group entered into finance lease arrangements EFI VT A FRHERELH BE -

in respect of machinery with a total capital amount at the incepton —+®F=A=+—HILFE KAEBE 7K

of the lease of HK$7,260,000 for the year ended 31 March 2017. RITVMEHELRY HAOTURHER
4 %E 57,260,000/% JT °
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2.1

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

General information

eprint Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in
the Cayman Islands on 10 January 2014 as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law
(Revised) of the Cayman Islands. The Company’s address of
its registered office is 4th Floor, Harbour Place, 103 South
Church Street, George Town, P.O. Box 10240, Grand Cayman
KY1-1002, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and a joint
venture are set out in Notes 11, 12 and 13, respectively

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.

Summary of significant accounting
policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accounts (‘HKICPA”). The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of financial asset at fair value through profit or loss, which are
carried at fair value.

2.1

B OB SRR MIEE

—REH

eprintE@ AR AR ([AAQAA )R
—E-NE-ATERERSHS
RAE(KEFT ) RHASHSEM
R BERRBRAA - AAQAEGF
fift 9% == gz b 3k A 4th Floor, Harbour
Place, 103 South Church Street,
George Town, P.O. Box 10240,
Grand Cayman KY1-1002, Cayman
Islands -

KRG EBREZER R A - =
BEAR BMEAARAELNAER
ZEBFDREHRMFEIT ~12K%13
B %A 5B

BILEMWe

TEGTBREE

BB RERH N

RMEZEEHMBREEAEMAN
TZEHABRRIN TN -BREAH
RN L EBRRAEZ2INEFE
EREH-

ARAMEHMBHRERDBIERE
GG ([BRESFMAE])R
e BT BHREER ([FE M
BELEARR -AHPBHHRRE
REBEELKAEZRE LB BB
BRAARBEIGNEREENS
EERIERT -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B P IR R Mt

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 FESHHEREw
pOIiCieS (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continueq) 21 REEE &)
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with KREEMGREERRENT S
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting WMRAFHETERNSFEE T
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its EREEENREARNEBR S EGER
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting B 1E 2 T o 8 R & B R #) 3k
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement BRREMNEEIBERETHE
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates GO SRR T 5 B = K /Y <8 13 72 Fft
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are T4 o

disclosed in Note 4.

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 2B B REHREESE
(@) New and amended standards adopted by the Group (@) ANEEE RPN FETRACIEET
EA

The following new and amended standards have been RTAREER_T—tFWM
adopted by the Group for the first time for the financial A—HazERB 2 BFE
year beginning on or after 1 April 2017: KRN 2 3] RASHE T AR -
Amendments to HKFRS 12 Disclosure of interest in other entities
BBV BRELENE125 2 185] REMEBES CHE
Amendments to HKAS 7 Statement of cash flows
BAEGEEAETR BT REemnER
Amendments to HKAS 12 Income taxes
BB ERFE125R 2155 Fris i
The adoption of the above new and amended standards A L3 E] REFTHER T
did not have a significant impact on the Group’s EHASENSHMERERE
consolidated financial statements. KEKRFTE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting
pOliCieS (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continuea)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)  New and amended standards have been issued but are
not effective and have not been early adopted by the
Group

The following new and amended standards are not
effective for financial year beginning on 1 April 2017, and
have not been applied in preparing these consolidated
financial statements:

B H SRR M T

2 FEEHBERE#

21 RBEEE ()

21T RS RIWBEEE (&)

©)

E BT 18 4 K R A WA HEXR
L BIEHT IR Z #T5T RAZEET
A

TOFE R EEFTEAM B =F
—tFHA-—BZEBHOY
BFEHE R ARER BRRE
HRZEAHMBRRE HKRE

Amendments to Annual
Improvements Projects
HKFRS 1 and HKAS 28

BERUBREERNE1R R
BB ERIE28HRFE
METE B 2 18R]

Amendments to HKFRS 1

BRI HREERNE1R 2 EF]

Amendments to HKFRS 2

BBV RELERFE25 2 B8]
Amendments to HKFRS 4

T O I 3R o5 R 2545 2 55T

HKFRS 9
BARWBRE LA LR
HKFRS 15

BBV B REERFE 155
Amendment to HKFRS 15
BBV BHRELERE155 2 18F]
Amendments to HKAS 28

FEETERFE285 2 EFT

A :

Annual improvements 2014 —2016 cycle

—ENEE_E-RFRBPZ
FREUGE

First time adoption of HKFRS

BRI E B B E 2R

Classification and measurement of
share-based payment transactions

RENKRH 2D ERTE

Applying HKFRS 9 financial instruments
with HKFRS 4 insurance contracts

HEBMBREERBIRRBEL
—PHIEA BB B WmE ERIEOR
TR T A

Financial instruments

TETHE

Revenue from contracts with customers

REBEFPZEH K

Clarification to HKFRS 15

BERVBHREERNE1SRE 2 BE

Investments in associates and joint
ventures

REERRREELRZKRE

Effective for
annual periods

beginning on or after

RULT BHg 2%
RGN FERBLENR

1 January 2018

—E—-N\f—H—H

1 January 2018
—_ET-N\¥—HA—H
1 January 2018

—_ZET-N\F—HA—H
1 January 2018

—E—-N\f—H—H

1 January 2018
—_ET-N\F—HA—H
1 January 2018
—_ZE-N\F—HA—H
1 January 2018
—_ZET-N\F¥—HA—H
1 January 2018

—E-N\fF—H—H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B P IR R Mt

2 Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCieS (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

2

2.1

FESHHERE

WEEE »)

ARSI RIWESE (&)

(Continued)

(b)  New and amended standards have been issued but are (b)
not effective and have not been early adopted by the

Group (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 40
ARG ERFE405% ZERT
HK(FRIC) 22

BE (BBRUEHREREZES)
IR E 225
Amendments to HKFRS 9

BBV RE LR FH 2 1EF]
HKFRS 16

BBV REERFE 165
HK(IFRIC)23

BE (BBRUEHREREZES)
SR F 235

HKFRS 17

BBV BEREERE175
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

BB S ERIFE 105 &
BB G ERFE285 2 EFT

Note: To be announced by HKICPA

Transfers of investment property

EEIREME

Foreign currency transactions and
advance consideration

SNER 5 RIEMNKE

Prepayment features with negative
compensation

BB AmMENREREENST

Leases

ME

Uncertainty over income tax treatments

FIS TR IE 2 T E It

Insurance contracts

REak

Sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or joint
venture

KREEEHBENRNEERFE M
WEEHEFEE

E AT {8 4 7K £ 3% B U KR
B BIEFI IR Z #TAT RASIEET
ER (&)

Effective for
annual periods

beginning on or after

RULTB#Hg 2 &
RGN FEMBLENR

1 January 2018
—E—N\E—H—H
1 January 2018
—E—-N\F—H—H

1 January 2019

—ET-NF—HA—H
1 January 2019
—T-N%—HA—H
1 January 2019
—_T-NhF—HA—H
1 January 2021
—F-_—%—HA—H
Note

Bt

MisE: KhABEHMAE QM

The Group is in the process of assessing the financial
impact of the adoption of the above new standards and
amendments to standards. The Group will adopt the new
and amended standards when they become effective.

124 eprint Group Limited Annual Report 2017/18

7N £ 8 IE R fl b a5 77 22 B &%
ERTERNHM BT E KK E
5 1R #7 AT 22 Bl 2 & 7T 2 Al A 2k
‘R -

~



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting
pOliCieS (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continuea)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

©®)

New and amended standards have been issued but are
not effective and have not been early adopted by the
Group (Continued)

A number of new standards and amendments to
standards and interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning after 1 April 2017 and have not
been applied in preparing these consolidated financial
statements. None of these is expected to have a
significant effect on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group, except the following set out below:

(i)  HKFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’

Nature of change

HKFRS 9 addresses the classification, measurement
and derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities, introduces new rules for hedge accounting
and a new impairment model for financial assets.

Impact

The Group has reviewed its financial assets and
liabilities and is expecting the following impact from
the adoption of the new standard on 1 April 2018:

BB ERR M

2 FEEHBERE#

21 RBEEE ()

AT RS RIWBESE (&)

©)

B A8 4 K £ 5% A 90 K R
EFIEAIIRNZ FTAT RAEIEET
EA ()

ETHFIEAREANEREY
BIR_T—tFOA-—RHZ
BEMZFEHBES MY
ANBEEZER P RKRE
F& 3 - T8 B 4B 5% 5 # R] & A
REREZEZEITEHAE
Bz BRRELEEAF
2 I ERRSN

() BB BEHREELFESR
[EFTA]

BE)onE

&8 B 5% o Rl o5k
MiesmEERERAR
20 FERBURER
SI ARG E 2 ¥R E N
MeBEEZHRER
5o

B2 488
o2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B P IR R Mt

2 Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCieS (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(Continued)

(b)  New and amended standards have been issued but are
not effective and have not been early adopted by the
Group (Continued)

0

HKFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’ (Continued)

Impact (Continued)

The financial assets held by the Group include:

o debt instruments currently classified as held-
to-maturity investments and measured at
amortised cost which meet the conditions for
classification at amortised cost under HKFRS
9;

o equity investments currently measured at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVPL") which will
continue to be measured on the same basis
under HKFRS 9

Accordingly, the Group does not expect the new
guidance to have a significant impact on the
classification and measurement of its financial
assets.

There will be no impact on the Group’s accounting
for financial liabilities, as the new requirements
only affect the accounting for financial liabilities
that are designated at fair value through profit
or loss and the Group does not have any such
liabilities. The derecognition rules have been
transferred from Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKAS”) 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement and have not been changed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting
pOliCies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continuea)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(Continued)

(b)  New and amended standards have been issued but are
not effective and have not been early adopted by the
Group (Continued)

0

HKFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’ (Continued)

Impact (Continued)

The new hedge accounting rules will align the
accounting for hedging instruments more closely
with the Group’s risk management practices. As
a general rule, more hedge relationships might
be eligible for hedge accounting, as the standard
introduces a more principles-based approach.
The Group does not have any hedge instrument.
Therefore, the Group does not expect any impact
on the new hedge accounting rules.

The new impairment model requires the recognition
of impairment provisions based on expected credit
losses (“ECL”) rather than only incurred credit
losses as is the case under HKAS 39. It applies
to financial assets classified at amortised cost,
debt instruments measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income, contract assets
under HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers, lease receivables, loan commitments
and certain financial guarantee contracts. Based
on the assessments undertaken to date, the
Group does not expect material change to the loss
allowance for trade debtors.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B P IR R Mt

2 Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCieS (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continuea)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(Continued)

(b)  New and amended standards have been issued but are
not effective and have not been early adopted by the
Group (Continued)

0

HKFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’ (Continued)

Impact (Continued)

The new standard also introduces expanded
disclosure requirements and changes in
presentation. These are expected to change the
nature and extent of the Group’s disclosures about
its financial instruments particularly in the year of
the adoption of the new standard.

Date of adoption by the Group

It is mandatory for financial years commencing
on or after 1 January 2018. The Group will apply
the new rules retrospectively from 1 April 2018,
with the practical expedients permitted under the
standard. Comparative figures for the year ended
31 March 2018 will not be restated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting
pOliCieS (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continuea)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(Continued)

(b)  New and amended standards have been issued but are
not effective and have not been early adopted by the
Group (Continued)

(i

HKFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with
customers’

Nature of change

The HKICPA has issued a new standard for the
recognition of revenue. This will replace HKAS 18
which covers contracts for goods and services and
HKAS 11 which covers construction contracts and
the related literature.

The new standard is based on the principle that
revenue is recognised when control of a good or
service transfers to a customer.

The standard permits either a full retrospective or a
modified retrospective approach for the adoption.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B GRS Rk MY it

2 Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCieS (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(Continued)

(b)  New and amended standards have been issued but are
not effective and have not been early adopted by the
Group (Continued)

(il

HKFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with
customers’ (Continued)

Impact

Management is currently assessing the effects of
applying the new standard on the Group’s financial
statements and has identified the following areas
that are likely to be affected:

revenue from service —the application of
HKFRS 15 may result in the identification of
separate performance obligations which could
affect the timing of the recognition of revenue.

accounting for certain costs incurred in
fulfilling a contract—certain costs which
are currently expensed may need to be
recognised as an asset under HKFRS 15, and

rights of return HKFRS 15 requires separate
presentation on the statement of financial
position of the right to recover the goods from
the customer and the refund obligation.

Management is in the process of quantifying
the potential effects on its consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting
pOliCieS (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continuea)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(Continued)

(b)  New and amended standards have been issued but are
not effective and have not been early adopted by the
Group (Continued)

(i

)

HKFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with
customers’ (Continued)

Date of adoption by Group

It is mandatory for financial years commencing
on or after 1 January 2018. The Group intends to
adopt the standard using the modified retrospective
approach which means that the cumulative impact
of the adoption will be recognised in retained
earnings as of 1 April 2018 and that comparatives
will not be restated.

HKFRS 16, ‘Leases’

Nature of change

HKFRS 16 will result in almost all leases being
recognised on the statement of financial position,
as the distinction between operating and finance
leases is removed. Under the new standard, an
asset (the right to use the leased item) and a
financial liability to pay rentals are recognised.
The only exceptions are short-term and low-value
leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B P IR R Mt

2 Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCieS (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)  New and amended standards have been issued but are
not effective and have not been early adopted by the
Group (Continued)

(i) HKFRS 16, ‘Leases’ (Continued)

Impact

The standard will affect primarily the accounting
for the Group’s operating leases. As at the
reporting date, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of approximately
HK$28,081,000. Upon adoption of HKFRS 16 the
majority of operating lease commitments will be
recongised in the statement of financial position
as lease liabilities and right-of-use assets. The
lease liabilities would subsequently be measured at
amortised cost and the right-of-use assets will be
depreciated on a straight-line basis during the lease
term.

The Group has not yet assessed what other
adjustments, if any, are necessary for example
because of the change in the definition of the lease
term and the different treatment of variable lease
payments and of extension and termination options.
It is therefore not yet possible to estimate the
amount of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
that will have to be recognised on adoption of the
new standard and how this may affect the Group’s
profit or loss and classification of cash flows going
forward.

Some of the commitments may be covered by the
exception for short-term and low value leases and
some commitments may relate to arrangements
that will not qualify as leases under HKFRS 16.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B I IERRMITE

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 FESHHEREw
pOliCieS (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continueq) 21 REEE (@)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures QAN BRI RBESE (&)

(Continued)

(b)  New and amended standards have been issued but are
not effective and have not been early adopted by the
Group (Continued)

(i) HKFRS 16, ‘Leases’ (Continued)

Date of adoption by Group

It is mandatory for financial years commencing on
or after 1 January 2019. At this stage, the Group
does not intend to adopt the standard before its
effective date. The Group intends to apply the
simplified transition approach and will not restate
comparative amounts for the year prior to first
adoption.

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When necessary
amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to
conform with the Group’s accounting policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=)

FraR M et

2 Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCieS (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.1Consolidation (continued)

(@)

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group. The consideration transferred includes
the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed
in a business combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis.
Non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are measured at either fair value or
the present ownership interests’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at their acquisition date fair value, unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting
pOliCies (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.1Consolidation (Continued)

(@)

®)

Business combinations (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit
or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not re-measured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured
is less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase,
the difference is recognised directly in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without
change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions —that is, as transactions with the owners of
the subsidiary in their capacity as owners. The difference
between fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or
losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also
recorded in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B I TFRRMITE

2 Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCieS (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.1Consolidation (continued)

(c)  Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at
the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the
initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
[t means that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs.

2.2.2Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving dividends from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.
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2.3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting
pOliCies (Continued)

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using the
equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying
amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s
share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of
acquisition. The Group’s investments in associates include
goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the
ownership interest in an associates, any difference between
the cost of the associate and the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the sassociates’ identifiable assets and liabilities is
accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in associate is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the consolidated profit or loss, and its share
of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive income with
a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of losses in associates
equals or exceeds its interest in the associates, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associates.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is
any objective evidence that the investments in the associates
are impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates
the amount of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associates and its carrying value
and recognises the amount adjacent to ‘share of losses of
associates’ in the consolidated profit or loss.

2.3

B H SRR M T

TESTHHEBE =)

BN T

i

all

%/uhﬁﬁ$ﬁlﬁﬁﬁik
?%ﬂﬁﬁﬁ%%ME R
HH20%-50%1% 2 #E 1Y IR #E o 5O B
M“T%&ﬁM%Am=£A$
BEEREE BEVHUAKR
TR - M AR A A 0 R A LA RE
REEEZAWKEERNKER S
BHEENBE - AEEREZ QT
m&%@%%%%a%%Zﬁ%O
iR RN T = E g
%%@TZ&$£$%E?E%%

NRIZABANBEERBBZARE
@%ﬁZEﬁ%ﬁAﬁ%%%o

fie] Bt = X ) B 4 21 15 B B HI R BT
REBEEATZEN RERUEIKGZ
AR EMGEERETEINERE
il ‘*EEJ‘%/\(ZZD%E?DS) C

AEBRARBRENXEBERRE

HEZANER MEHEKRERD
ﬁmwm%mﬁﬁmﬂﬁﬂ”AW

SmAMER UHEHBRERAEE-
ﬁ$$lﬁﬁ%%®7mﬁﬁiﬁ
AEBEAEZBE ARNERD B

AR A A B BRI A&
ETenRE—TEBER BRIELE

BEHBENRCEEEAEMEAIETE
MENEEHERBERRERNRK-

AEENBEREENEERS

EBEBEERABEQARRECHE-

HEEERME AEBEFERE &K
%%%%”TTM@%%@%%@
BEONEB YREHBET [ D1EH

““T%EM&w

2017/18% R eprint EEMER AT 137



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B I TFRRMITE

2.3

2.4

Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCieS (Continued)

Associates (continuea)

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associates are
recognised in the Group’s financial statements only to the
extent of unrelated investor’s interests in the associates.
Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are
recognised in the consolidated profit or loss.

Joint arrangement

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint arrangement.
Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint arrangements are
classified as either joint operations or joint ventures depending
on the contractual rights and obligations of each investor.
The Group has assessed the nature of its joint arrangement
and determined them to be joint venture. Joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interest in a joint
venture is initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits
or losses and movements in other comprehensive income.
The Group’s investment in a joint venture includes goodwill
identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the ownership
interest in a joint venture, any difference between the cost
of the joint venture and the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the joint venture’s identifiable assets and liabilities is
accounted for as goodwill. When the Group’s share of loss in
a joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in a joint venture
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the joint ventures),
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of a joint
venture.
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2.4

25

2.6

(a)

(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting
pOliCieS (Continued)

Joint arrangement (continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
joint venture is eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in a joint venture. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policy of a joint venture has
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the chairman and
executive directors of the Group that make strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Group operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”), which
is the Group’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at
year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings
and cash and cash equivalents are presented in the
consolidated profit or loss. All other foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in profit or loss within ‘Other
losses—net’.
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2.6

(c)

(d)

140

Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCieS (Continued)

Foreign currency translation (continued)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none
of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

() assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that statement of financial position;

(i) income and expenses for each profit or loss are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated at the
rate on the dates of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate. Current
translation differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of joint control over
a joint venture that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the currency translation
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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2.6

(d)

2.7

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B I IERRMITE

Summary of significant accounting 2 FESHHEREw
pOliCies (Continued)

Foreign currency translation (continueq) 2.6 IEBRE #)

Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal (d HESNHIEBERBIEE #)
(Continued)

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the WMEPEETEERAEEKLEY
Group losing control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign BEBINER 2 KB N FIEH -
operation, the proportionate share of accumulated currency ZRFTELERB EGLOABEN
translation differences are re-attributed to non-controlling FETHIERESERTERNERRE
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other ReoMBEEMBOEE (AIAK
partial disposals (that is, reductions in the Group’s ownership REtE ARG EDE LA ERE
interest in associates or joint ventures that do not result in HEFTR EITEERAEEK
the Group losing significant influence or joint control), the EEREENRARZEHE)  RF
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange difference is ERLEE o RELANEFR>BEE
reclassified to profit or loss. Bie

Property, plant and equipment 2.7 ME - BERZE

Land and buildings comprise mainly factories and offices. THREFIEBEIREFAE -
Leasehold land classified as finance lease and all other NEABMEMENEHELHRAE
property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost HihzE BB K& ENUE L KR
less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is BITEE5 B LKA 3E W EIE
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. BEEERFTHAX -

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount EHIEE B AR RLE N T 88
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when MAREE - ARIBEEKABER 5
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with HFER EENKATEFARENR
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be HEXRRARBYEE (WEAR) -
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is EEMOMEEBERKIEER FT
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged EEMBEERERRERAICE XM
to in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income MEHEeaRERPH-

during the period in which they are incurred.
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2.7

2.8

(a)

142

Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCieS (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences
amortisation from the time when the land interest becomes
available for its intended use. Amortisation on leasehold land
classified as finance lease and depreciation on other assets
is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
cost to their residual values over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

Buildings 30 to 50 years
Plant and machinery 5 to 15 years
Leasehold improvements 5 years
Computer, furniture and equipment 5 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in the
consolidated profit or loss.

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents
the excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-
date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is allocated to each of the cash-
generating units (“CGUs”), or groups of CGUs, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.
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2.8

(a)

(b)

2.9

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting
pOliCieS (Continued)

Intangible assets (continuea)

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a
potential impairment. The carrying value of the CGU containing
the goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which
is the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets represent source codes acquired
which are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Source codes have a finite useful life and are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of source
codes over their estimated useful lives of three years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or intangible
assets not ready to use are not subject to amortisation and
are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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2.10

2101

Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCieS (Continued)

Financial assets

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
category: held-to-maturity investments, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, and loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

@

®)

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturities that the Group’s management has the
positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. If the
Group were to sell other than an insignificant amount
of held-to-maturity financial assets, the whole category
would be tainted and reclassified as available for sale.
Held-to-maturity financial assets are included in non-
current assets, except for those with maturities less than
12 months from the end of the reporting period, which
are classified as current assets.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
either financial assets classified as held for trading
or designated as at fair value through profit or loss
upon initial recognition. These financial assets are
subsequently measured at fair value. Gains or losses
arising from changes in fair value of these financial
assets are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B I IERRMITE

2 FEEHBERE#

2 Summary of significant accounting
pOliCies (Continued)
210 EeMEE (@)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

2101 Classification (continued) 2101 o3\ (=)

(c) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled or expected to
be settled more than 12 months after the end of the
reporting period. These are classified as non-current
assets. The Group’s loans and receivables comprise
‘trade receivables’ (Note 20), ‘other receivables’ (Note
21), ‘amounts due from related companies’ (Note
35) and cash and cash equivalents’ (Note 24) in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Loans
and receivables are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs and are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2102 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date —the date on which the group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are
initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all
financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are
expensed in the consolidated profit or loss. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the investments have expired or have been transferred and
the group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently
carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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2.10

210.2

2.11

2.12

Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCieS (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Recognition and measurement (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
‘financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’ category
are presented in the consolidated profit or loss within ‘Other
losses—net’ in the period in which they arise. Dividend
income from financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss is recognised in the consolidated profit or loss as part of
other income when the group’s right to receive payments is
established.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and
must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in
the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company
or the counterparty.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses
are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a loss event) and that loss event (or
events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation, and where observable data
indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

146 eprint Group Limited Annual Report 2017/18

2.10

210.2

2.11

2.12

FESHHREHE @)

EMEE 2
BRRE &)

[EBBRBAABEINKZERE
E|ERERAEBESMEELN
WaHkEE aRELHNEESH
Bam [ EhEE - #EIAZE5-
BREBERAABEIKZERE
BE R RB WA - R B AR 5K
MEMBEZR REMHERZERS
H AU AFE S o

HEEMTA

BrRIAZEBHIANITENDEHCER
TR UEEERFEEERLE X
AEEREENGEAGR &
BERAEANEMREAE LEMB
MRAKREHRE M FER A &5
AT R TS BURI R K E A+ 7 -
HAE —REFHEBRESH N LMER A
XHF T —BEHRBRER EE
{8 BE 77 SR E By AJ SR Il AL 7T o

ERMEERE

AEBREREMRAIGETEER
BRI —4dAeREEL
BRE-ZETBEEZTHERE
REERARZE-—FASZREMN
BEYHBARE(BEEN) MER
(HZF)BEEHHZAIZES
MEEZBAARREREBRZ
FENAEGFR FRHEREE
AELBRERERELRERE-

MENEERIEERATER &
BAL—HEBALERREANT R
WEE - BAORERMERAE MR
BRI RE R TR A ERR 7 ek TT
HMPKEERA UREBEABRREH
BERN BERRRESRES A&
E R A P R FREEE 4
MR E o



212

2.13

2.14

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting
pOliCies (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and
the amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. If a loan or held-to-
maturity investment has a floating interest rate, the discount
rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate determined under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the basis
of an instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO)
method. The cost of inventories comprises materials to be
consumed in the rendering of services. It excludes borrowing
costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
services performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in one
year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.
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2.14

2.15

2.16

217

148

Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCieS (Continued)

Trade and other receivables (continued)

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
See Note 2.10.2 for further information about the Group’s
accounting for trade receivables and Note 2.12 for description
of the Group’s impairment policies.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks and bank overdrafts. In the consolidated statement of
financial position, bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings
in current liabilities.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligation to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Trade and other payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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2.18

2.19

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting
pOliCieS (Continued)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognised in the consolidated profit or loss over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Borrowings costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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2.20

(a)

(b)

Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCieS (Continued)

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the profit or loss, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity.
In this case the tax is also recognised directly in equity.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the year
end date in the countries where the Company’s subsidiaries,
associates and a joint venture operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill; deferred income tax is not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time
of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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2.20

(b)

(c)

2.21

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting
pOliCieS (Continued)

Current and deferred income tax (continueq)

Deferred income tax (Continuead)
Outside basis dlfferences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries,
associates and a joint venture, except for deferred income
tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries,
associates and a joint venture only to the extent that it is
probable the temporary difference will reverse in the future
and there is sufficient taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.

Provisions

Provisions for restructuring costs and legal claims are
recognised when: the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.
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B I TFRRMITE

2.21

2,22

Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCieS (Continued)

Provisions (continued)

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payments when due, in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. Such financial guarantees are given to banks on
behalf of subsidiaries or related parties to secure loans and
other banking facilities.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial
statements at fair value on the date the guarantee was given.
The fair value of a financial guarantee at the time of signature
is zero because all guarantees are agreed on arm’s length
terms and the value of the premium agreed corresponds
to the value of the guarantee obligation. No receivable for
the future premiums is recognised. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Group’s liabilities under such guarantees are
measured at the higher of the initial amount, less amortisation
of fees recognised in accordance with HKAS 18, and the
best estimate of the amount required to settle the guarantee.
These estimates are determined based on experience of
similar transactions and history of past losses, supplemented
by management’s judgement. The fee income earned
is recognised on a straight-line basis over the life of the
guarantee. Any increase in the liability relating to guarantees is
reported in the consolidated profit or loss.

152 eprint Group Limited Annual Report 2017/18

2.21

2,22

FESHHREHE @)

BE e

HWERZBRUEE 85 EHEL
BRmREABEEBLEEER
TZEBRHERETE - BERHA5
B A — IR Al B B &t
MEE TR e ERRE-

BEDMABAMNE (RREET
L BEREAEBEANEEEEH
ZRB 2 hE) RIBRARITEME
ZRAXHMBEME - R KEB
EMELNBBERE ERANE
2 o

BBERREL

MBEREHNEBHEEITAARIE
EEBHARERBEER S LB GK
XHBMESKARANTAEAX
MHEERBNEMEBRNEH-
AZEMBRERDIETRKRNE QR
HEETZ2RITABRREER LA
fIRITIER °

MBEREERREEZANAAE
ERTBEREPAODTER - RER]
ERENK MBEERNAIAEE
RE HMEBEEROEAFHEE
THREMEBEERNEERER
MEEMETE ABAKLENE
WHRIBAT TR - LHERE K&
BRZERATHAERIAES R
BRBEEESAEFISHCER
MERBEFERENEREBNMTE
BFHREGTNRSEFE -ZF
EEFTDRBEAUR &R BT
R E S 30 8 DAE B B 9 I BT M E o
P BRER &Y B A AR B ORI R
HEANER - BEFRBENETEN
EAEMDREHFBERET 2R



2.23

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting
pOliCies (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivables, and represents amounts receivable
for the render of services in the ordinary course of the Group’s
activities, stated net of returns, rebates and discounts.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group’s activities as described
below. The Group bases its estimates of return on historical
results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the
type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(@ Revenue from the provision of printing services and app
solutions is recognised when services are rendered.

(b) Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Rental income of office and machinery are recognised
on a straight-line basis over the terms of the respective
leases.

Management fee income, information technology (I.T.)
related service income, pre-press processing and
customer services income are recognised when the
related services are rendered.

Scrap sale income is recognised when the scrap
materials are delivered to the customers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B BRI 5T

2 Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCieS (Continued)

2.24 Employee benefits

(@) Employee leave entitlement
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.

(b) Bonus plans
The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as a
liability when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of services rendered by employees and a
reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.
Liabilities for bonus plans are expected to be settled within
12 months and are measured at the amounts expected to be
paid when they are settled.

(c) Pension obligations

The Group operates defined contribution retirement benefits
schemes for its employees. Contributions are made based
on certain percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are recognised as employee benefit expense as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the schemes.
The Group has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The assets of the schemes
are held separately from those of the Group in independently
administered funds.
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2.25

2.26

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting
pOliCies (Continued)

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the
consolidated profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment.
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group
has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at
the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair value of the
leased property and the present value of the minimum lease
payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance charges. The corresponding rental obligations, net of
finance charges, are included in other long-term payables.
The interest element of the finance cost is charged to the
consolidated profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period. The property, plant and
equipment acquired under finance leases is depreciated over
the shorter of the useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors, where
appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B P IR R Mt

3.1

(a)

156

Financial risk management

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow
and fair value interest rate risk.

Management regularly monitors the financial risks of the
Group. Because of the simplicity of the financial structure and
the current operations of the Group, no hedging activities are
undertaken by management.

Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from cash and cash
equivalents, held-to-maturity investments, trade receivables,
other receivables and amounts due from related companies.
The carrying amounts of these balances represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

Most of the Group’s sales are settled by cash or credit
cards. Trade receivables of the Group are mainly due from
credit sales. The Group’s exposure of concentration risk is
insignificant as no external customers contributed over 10% of
the Group’s trade receivables.
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3.1

(a)

(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial risk management (continueq)
Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk (continuead)

The Group assesses the credit quality of the issuers of the
held-to-maturity investments, taking into account their financial
positions, past experience, and other factors and considered
that the credit risk of the investments is low.

Based on the Group’s historical experiences in collection of
trade receivables, other receivables and amounts due from
related companies, the directors consider the Group’s credit
risk of these receivables to be low.

The Group considers that adequate provision for
unrecoverable trade receivables and amounts due from related
companies has been made in the relevant accounting periods
after considering the Group’s experience in collection of trade
receivables and amounts due from a joint venture.

Management does not expect any losses from non-
performance by these counterparties.

Liquidity risk

The liquidity risk of the Group is controlled by maintaining
sufficient cash flows of banking facilities, bank deposit and
cash and cash equivalents, which are generated from the
financing activities and the operating activities, respectively.

Taking into account the Group’s financial position, the
directors do not consider that it is probable that the banks will
exercise their discretion to demand immediate repayment.

The directors believe that such borrowings and obligations
under finance leases will be repaid in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.
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Xty ek

3 Financial risk management (conineq 3 HMBERREREw
3.1 Financial risk factors (continueq) 3.1 MBERBEE #)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) RBESREE &)

TEOMASENESBMEE IR
BERGEAHTATERBHFTE
YWEFARBEREEGIONZED

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities into
relevant maturity groups based on the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements with the consideration of

the effect of repayment on demand clause.

BRHEEIIEER -

Between Between

Within 1 1and 2 2and 5
On demand year years years Total
REX —FR —-ZME —EIf st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEX TET THET THET TET

As at 31 March 2018 RZE-N\F
=ZA=t+-H

Borrowings and interest

EERMEFRX

expenses 24,592 - - - 24,592
Obligations under finance HEMEETHEER

leases and interest FER%

expenses 6,812 233 - - 7,045
Trade payables ECAE S - 12,886 - - 12,886
Other payables' Hfth e 5008 - 1,258 593 593 2,444
Amounts due to related parties & B8 & 7 2B - 336 - - 336
Amounts due to directors ENEEHIE - 245 - - 245
As at 31 March 2017 RZE—+5

ZA=+-H

Borrowings and interest EERFIERS

expenses 38,343 = = = 38,343
Obligations under finance BEMEETHERR

leases and interest FER

expenses 11,741 2,123 233 = 14,097
Trade payables ECLE S - 7,948 = - 7,948
Other payables' Hfth e 3B - 1,826 = = 1,826
Amounts due to related parties &< B8 3& 7 2B - 9 - - 9
Amounts due to directors ERNEEHIE - 245 = = 245

i The balance excludes advanced receipts from customers and accrued

expenses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B I IERRMITE

3 Financial risk management conined) 3 HMKEKRERE®

3.1 Financial risk factors (continueq) 31 BERKBEE

(b) Liquidity risk (continuec) (b) REBELRE #)
The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities into TERAOMAEENEHEBE DR
relevant maturity groups based on the scheduled repayment EERBGEMEBECERBHAE
dates set out in the loan agreements and the effect of any WESFAEMNEEREZERANT
repayment on demand clause is ignored. BHEREBEDEER -

Between Between

Within 1 and 2 2and 5 Over 5
1 year years years years Total
—£R —EWF MELF EENE @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL AT FTAET TAEL FTAET
As at 31 March 2018 RZZ—N\¥
=R=+—H
Borrowings and interest BERFERY
expenses 4,176 1,441 4,325 19,581 29,523
Obligations under finance BEMEETHERR
leases and interest FER%
expenses 5,268 1,832 137 - 7,237
Trade payables ECE S 12,886 - - - 12,886
Other payables' Hqth e 5008 1,258 593 593 - 2,444
Amounts due to related parties &1 B83& 7 2B 336 - - - 336
Amounts due to directors ERNEEHIE 245 - - - 245
As at 31 March 2017 RZB—+%
=HA=+—H
Borrowings and interest BERMEFAX
expenses 14,579 3,971 4,408 21,023 43,981
Obligations under finance REMEETHERR
leases and interest FER%
expenses 7,384 5410 1,831 = 14,625
Trade payables ECLE S 7,948 = = = 7,948
Other payables' Hqth e 5008 1,826 - = - 1,826
Amounts due to related parties & B8 i /7 38 9 - - - 9
Amounts due to directors ERNESEHE 245 - = - 245
1 The balance excludes advanced receipts from customers and accrued i EHRTEEEREPNZEREER -
expenses.
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3 Financial risk management (continueq)

3.1

(c)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from borrowings,
obligations under finance leases, held-to-maturity investments,
bank deposits and cash at banks.

As at 31 March 2018 and 2017, the Group’s interest-bearing
assets were bank deposits and held-to-maturity investments,
which are of fixed interest rates, and cash at banks, which
bears variable interest rates.

The Group’s income and cash flows from operations were
substantially independent of changes in market interest rates
as the significant interest-bearing assets were either fixed or
not expected to fluctuate significantly.

As at 31 March 2018 and 2017, borrowings at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk which is
partially offset by cash and cash equivalents held at variable
rates.

For the year ended 31 March 2018, if interest rates on
borrowings had been 100 basis points higher/lower with all
other variables held constant, the Group’s profit before income
tax would have been approximately HK$315,000 lower/higher
(2017: HK$281,000 lower/higher). The sensitivity analysis has
been determined assuming that the change in interest rates
had occurred at the balance sheet date. The 100 basis point
increase/decrease represents management’s assessment of
reasonable possible change in the interest rate which has the
most impact on the Group over the period until the next year
end date.

As at 31 March 2018 and 2017, bank deposits, held-to-
maturity investments and obligations under finance leases at
fixed rates expose the Group to insignificant fair value interest
rate risk as the fixed rates approximate market interest rates.
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3.2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial risk management (continueq)

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives on managing capital are to finance
its operations with its owned capital and to safeguard the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders and
return capital to shareholders.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated
as total debt divided by total equity. Total debt is calculated as
borrowings and obligations under finance leases.

The gearing ratios as at 31 March 2018 and 2017 were as
follows:

3.2

BB ERR M

MERERER #
EXARBER

AEENEARAEREAR EUHEB
BEAEREELREAN DA M
BaB UnhREHRE®RESE
L 455 0 % 7 2R A 2% o

REFIABENGRE AEEA
HABRNTRRZEKECBANMEER
BREA

AEBEBTEEN REEES S
bR B A AR T o b K TR (&
T4 IR AP 2 MR A B o (T AR
EHREEERREREATWE
fEatE -

RZE-—NFR-_FT—LtF=H
St BEMEERBLXRZINNT

As at 31 March
R=A=+—8
2018 2017
—E—tF
HK$’000

TAET

—E2-N\F
HK$’000
THET

Borrowings (Note 28) 5 (fzE28) 24,592 38,343
Obligations under finance lease MEHEBETHNER

(Note 29) (FF7E29) 7,045 14,058
Total debt BERE 31,637 52,401
Total equity R BEE 231,666 207,520
Gearing ratio BEEARLX 14% 25%

The decrease in the gearing ratio during 2018 resulted
primarily from repayments of borrowings by the Group.

BEABLER _ZT-\FATRE
TEARAEBEEEEMK-
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3.3

162

Financial risk management (continueq

Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the Group’s current financial assets,
including cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, other
receivables and amounts due from related companies, current
financial liabilities, including trade payables, other payables,
amounts due to related parties and directors, obligations
under finance leases and borrowings approximate their fair
values due to their short maturities, and non-current liabilities,
including obligations under finance leases and borrowings as
their interest rates approximate market interest rates.

The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is
estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at
the current market interest rate that is available to the Group
for similar financial instruments.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial instrument
carried at fair value as at 31 March 2018 by level of the inputs
to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. Such
inputs are categorised into three levels within a fair value
hierarchy as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) (level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on

observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(level 3).
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3 Financial risk management continueq)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continueq)

The following table presents the Group’s financial assets that
are measured at fair value at 31 March 2018 and 2017.

Assets BE
Financial asset at fair value BREREAA
through profit or loss BE5IR
SREE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB ERR M

3 HERBERE @

N

N REEMEE 2

TREINAEER -_ZT—-N\FR_
E—t+F=A=+—HABLAEHE
AAEMERMEE-

2018
—E-N\E§
Level 2
-
HK$’000
TERT

3.3

Level 3 Total
F=R @ct
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT THET

Level 1

£
HK$’000
TET

12,746 12,746

Assets BE
Financial asset at fair value BREREAR
through profit or loss BE5IRZ
CTREE

2017
el
Level 2
F_&
HK$'000

Level 3 Total
FE=M Fh
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET

Level 1

F—&
HK$'000
TAT TAT

12,319 12,319
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B OB SRR

3 Financial risk management (conineq 3 HMBERREREw

3.3 Fair value estimation (continueq) 3.3 AREEMST ®)

(a) Financial instrument in level 3 (a) E=HLWMIA
The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments TE2HNHE—E—\E=H=—+—
for the year ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017. B ?ﬁgg:%—:‘tiiﬁ £+:g¢

FEF=RIA2E%-

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
At beginning of the year REH] 12,319 11,950
Gain recognised in profit or loss RiB R R
(Note 7) AF (HIzE7) 427 369
At end of the year RER 12,746 12,319
Total gain for the year included FRIEBZEENRFENR
in profit or loss for assets held Wem B EERT ABa
at the end of the year, under TIVEE b 518 — F 58
other losses — net 427 369
Changes in unrealised gain for REXRFTAEBREZ
the year included in profit or loss FRARER
at the end of the year U 2 & 427 369
4 Critical accounting estimates and 4 EBEESITEERHE
judgements
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are (et R HEFHE S G WER
based on historical experience and other factors, including BAEARKBELNHEMEZ BHEESE
expectations of future events that are believed to be ESR TS RARE 4~ FEHE -

reasonable under the circumstances.
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Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (continueq)

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

Estimated impairment of goodwill and property, plant and
equipment of banner printing segment

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in Note 2.8. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units
have been determined based on value-in-use calculations.
These calculations require the use of estimates (Note 17).

Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. The recoverable
amounts have been determined based on the higher of
value-in-use calculations or fair value less costs of disposal
calculations. The calculations require the use of judgements
and estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event
has occurred that may indicate that the related asset values
may not be recoverable; (i) whether the carrying value of an
asset can be supported by the recoverable amount, being
the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and net present
value of future cash flows which are estimated based upon
the continued use of the asset in the business; and (i) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash
flow projections including whether these cash flow projections
are discounted using an appropriate rate.

Changing the assumptions selected by the directors in
assessing impairment could affect the recoverable amount
determined by the directors and as a result affect the result of
the impairment reviews. Further details are set out in Note 17.

B H SRR M T

BA 52 S 5t fh 5t K H M o)

7N 6% B #OR R AF b AT RRER o P
ERZEAEN (BRER)ELHESE
REBERGER -HTEMBEE
NEBSIREEMBEREERE
ANEHBZERNAR 2 H5 REBRE
AIFANT e

BENRDBHEERDE BER
R hEHRE

AEBEFRENF2.8F7 2 25t
BRASHEESSHBETMBE:
ReELEEuUzAkeBEEER
FREEFE ZESHEAFERMG
B (HIzE17) o
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8 E) JRUR B (8 A RE SR W Bl
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Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (continueq)

Fair value of financial instruments

Where the fair value of financial instruments recorded in the
statement of financial position cannot be derived from active
markets, they are determined using valuation techniques
including the use of recent arm’s length transactions,
reference to other instruments that are substantially the
same, and discounted cash flow analysis. The inputs to these
models are taken from observable markets where possible,
but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required
in establishing fair values.

Estimated provision for impairment of receivables from third
parties and related companies

The Group makes provision for impairment of receivables from
third parties and related companies based on an assessment
of the recoverability of these receivables. Provisions for
impairment are applied to these receivables where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may not
be recoverable. The identification of doubtful debts requires
the use of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying amounts of receivables and doubtful debt
expense in the period in which such estimate is changed.

For the year ended 31 March 2018, there was no provision
for impairment of other receivables and trade receivables. If
the financial conditions of customers and related companies
of the Group were to change, resulting in an impairment of
their abilities to make payments, additional provision may be
required.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Management determines the estimated lives and related
depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment.
Management will revise the depreciation charge where useful
lives are different from those previously estimated, or it will
write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Useful lives of intangible assets

Management determines the estimated lives and related
amortisation charges for its intangible assets. Management will
revise the amortisation charge where useful lives are different
from those previously estimated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (continueq)

Income taxes

The Group is principally subject to income taxes in Hong
Kong. Significant judgement is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain for the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the current and deferred income tax assets and
liabilities in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying values in the financial
statements. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences and the carry
forward of unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilised,
based on all available evidence. Recognition primarily involves
judgement regarding the future financial performance of the
particular legal entity or tax group. A variety of other factors
are also evaluated in considering whether there is convincing
evidence that it is probable that some portion or all of the
deferred tax assets will ultimately be realised, such as the
existence of taxable temporary differences, group relief, tax
planning strategies and the periods in which estimated tax
losses can be utilised.

The ultimate realisation of deferred tax assets recognised
for certain of the Group’s businesses depends principally
on these businesses maintaining profitability and generating
sufficient taxable profits to utilise the underlying unused tax
losses. It may be necessary for some or all of the deferred
tax assets recognised to be reduced and charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income if there is
a significant adverse change in the projected performance
and resulting projected taxable profits of these businesses.
Judgement is required to determine key assumptions adopted
in the taxable profit or loss projections and changes to key
assumptions used can significantly affect these taxable profit
or loss projections.
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Segment information

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the Executive Directors of the Company. The chief operating
decision-maker has determined the operating segments
based on the reports reviewed by the Executive Directors of
the Company, that are used to make strategic decisions and
assess performance.

The chief operating decision-maker has determined the
operating segments based on these reports. The Group is
organised into two business segments:

(@) paper printing segment (mainly derived from the brand
“e-print”); and

(b)  banner printing segment (mainly derived from the brand
“e-banner”).

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker.

Management assesses the performance of the operating
segments based on a measure of gross profit less selling
and distribution expenses and administrative expenses that
are allocated to each segment. Other information provided is
measured in a manner consistent with that in the consolidated
financial statements.

Sales between segments are carried out at arm’s length basis.

The subsidiary incorporated in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”) provides |.T. support services within the Group.
The subsidiaries incorporated in Malaysia and Australia
generated immaterial external revenue during the year. Since
the Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and the Group’s
assets are mainly located in Hong Kong, no geographical
segment information is presented.

Information relating to segment liabilities is not disclosed
as such information is not regularly reported to the chief
operating decision-maker.

During the year ended 31 March 2018 and 2017, no external
customers contributed over 10% of the Group’s revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B I IERRMITE

DEER 2

TREINAEEREDHEE_F
—NER-_F-—tF=A=+—H
IEFEzWERDBRE -

Segment information (continueq 5

The following tables present revenue and segment results
regarding the Group’s reportable segments for the years
ended 31 March 2018 and 2017 respectively.

For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE-Z-N\F=A=+-HLEE

Paper Banner
printing printing  Eliminations Total
HEERI EELDR i @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT TERT TERT THER
Segment revenue LG
Revenue from external customers R BHMNEEE P Ui sd 308,780 94,523 - 403,303
Inter-segment revenue o E W e 364 65 (429) -
Total @t 309,144 94,588 (429) 403,303
Segment results NEERE 26,147 2,716 28,863
Finance income BMEKA 488
Finance costs BEKA (1,292)
Share of losses of associates FEfRE & DA (143)
Share of profit of a joint venture ~ fEIFA Z M EEF 777
Profit before income tax B& E 1S 4 A0 & A 28,693
Income tax expense Frisfif (5,599)
Profit for the year X5 Fl 23,094
Depreciation of property, M- HER
plant and equipment RIETE 11,702 6,781 18,483
Amortisation of intangible assets & E# i - 430 430
Impairment loss on intangible BYEEREBE
assets - 287 287
Capital expenditure BERFEY 1,457 246 1,703
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Segment information (continueq

5 o2#ER @

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE_T—+tH=A=+—HLEE

Paper Banner
printing printing Eliminations Total
R ENl & Z 1 e Feh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FTAT TAT FTExT
Segment revenue ok G
Revenue from external customers R B 9MEE&R P iz 314,486 76,152 = 390,638
Inter-segment revenue oW as 426 91 (517) =
Total st 314,912 76,243 (517) 390,638
Segment results DEEE 28,845 (14,499) 14,346
Finance income BEWA 466
Finance costs BMEKA (1,579)
Share of losses of associates 3=l (1,746)
Share of profit of a joint venture ~ FEIE A &£ 1,257
Profit before income tax BR BT S B A & A 12,744
Income tax expense s i f 2 (3,525)
Profit for the year F W@ A 9,219
Depreciation of property, plant ME BE R
and equipment HIEWE 11,750 6,600 18,350
Amortisation of intangible assets & & # i - 430 430
Impairment loss on property, ME BE R
plant and equipment HiEREEE - 699 699
Capital expenditure BARY 52,678 23,838 76,516
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5 Segment information (continue)

The following tables present segment assets as at 31 March
2018 and 2017 respectively.

B I IERRMITE
5 pIFER @
TRAJBIINR -E—NFR=

—tF=A=1+— EIZ’“*BﬁE

As at 31 March 2018
R-B—-NFE=ZA=+—8H

Paper

printing
K EED
HK$’'000
FHET

Banner
printing
& = EN Rl
HK$’000
FHET

Segment assets o ENE E 156,719

48,919 205,638

As at 31 March 2017
R-EBE—+tF=H=1+—H

Paper
printing
AL ED R
HK$’ 000
FHET

Banner
printing
& = EN
HK$’000
FHET

Segment assets DEBEE

175,192 55,253 230,445

Segment assets for banner printing segment mainly
represented property, plant and equipment and goodwill
amounting to approximately HK$34,871,000 (2017:
HK$42,287,000) and approximately HK$725,000 (2017:
HK$725,000).

A reconciliation of segment assets to total assets is provided
as follows:

BEORSTNOBEEETERS
%8 5 #934,871,0008 T (=T —+
4 : 42,287,000 T ) & #41725,000
BT (ZZF—+F 725,000 7T) 1
ME - -BEMEBEAREE-

DHMEERBEEHRNT

As at 31 March

R=A=+-—H
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Segment assets DEEE 205,638 230,445
Investments in associates BEAANIEE 2,977 2,962
Investment in a joint venture BETENKE 8,021 6,205
Cash and cash equivalents fﬁ@ rBE&EEIEE 89,524 68,220
Other unallocated segment assets Hi RN EEE 4,997 4,997
Total assets B8 E 311,157 312,829
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N A
6 Other income 6 HflkA
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
I.T. license fee income BAEEFERFTIERA 254 228
Sales of software HHHE 3,461 -
Scrap sales BEERHNE 1,456 1,581
Interest income from held-to-maturity FEEHIEE 2 F B KA
investments 1,324 3,226
Machinery rental income B e WA - 892
Sundry income IR 612 192
7,107 6,119
7 Other losses —net 7 HMEE - FE
2018 2017
—ZE-N\EF —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Loss on disposal of property, LEYE BE KREESE
plant and equipment (Note 32) (FF7E32) (4,720) (6,397)
Exchange (losses)/gains — net bE 3 (E518) W —F 58 (486) 4
Fair value gains on FRBEREAREBEIIEKRZ
financial assets at fair value through TREENAAEE
profit or loss Wz 427 369
Loss on disposal of financial assets tECREERE - (1,803)
Loss on partial disposal of an associate & B & A &) ZF D HEZE 2
(Note 12) &8 (fiE12) (111) -
Others Htb - 20

(4,890) (7,807)
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CXi b e
Expenses by nature 8 EBEMEIEMMEX
Expenses included in cost of sales, seling and distribution BEEHEKA HERDHEAXIA
expenses and administrative expenses are analysed as FITERTERNNRBI MO T
follows:
2018 2017
—E-NEF —ET—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHETT
Cost of materials I REBCAR 53,180 53,269
Auditor’s remuneration % BT B &
— Audit services —EFT R 1,566 1,521
— Non-audit services — B R 111 198
Employee benefits expense (Note 9) EERFMAEZ (M) 82,292 84,001
Depreciation of property, plant and W BERZETE
equipment (Note 16) (MF3E16) 18,483 18,350
Amortisation of intangible assets mEEESNE (MFE17)
(Note 17) 430 430
Impairment loss on property, plant and ~ #1% « B &R EREE B
equipment (Note 16) (MF3E16) - 699
Impairment loss on intangible assets B EEREBEER
(Note 17) (MFEE17) 287 —
Outsourced customer support expenses 9N & P X 1B 5 X 19,491 19,351
Subcontracting fee SNHE A 141,888 129,739
Operating lease rental of premises MERZBEBOKEHEERS
and equipment 20,430 23,327
Repairs and maintenance HERRE 3,386 4,274
Distribution costs 2 8B 13,971 13,697
Utility expenses NARBEEZ T 3,835 4,281
Provision for impairment of other oAt & WK TR (B B
receivables - 240
Write off of trade receivables HisH & 5 e W sRIE 3 23
Recovery of trade receivables W E AT MR E 5
previously written off JE WK IR (24) (24)
Others HAh 17,328 21,228
Total cost of sales, selling and HEKAN HERDHFAX
distribution expenses and AR AT 458
administrative expenses 376,657 374,604
Others mainly represent credit card handling charges, HMFZRERAFRFEE ES R
advertising and promotion expenses and telecommunication RERTREMAX -
expenses.
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BHMBHRAME

9 Employee benefits expense (including
directors and senior management’s

BERANAX (BEEER
BREEEHM)

emoluments)
2018
= s
HK$’000
FH T
Salaries and allowances e MoERE 69,546 71,723
Bonuses and commissions PN 8,275 6,991
Pension costs — defined contribution BIRE KA — R EHRETE
plans (Note a) (Fizxa) 3,751 3,997
Welfare and other benefits &8 A & H b F 2% 720 1,290
82,292 84,001

Notes:

Pension costs — defined contribution plans

The Group has arranged for its employees to join the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), a defined contribution
scheme managed by an independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme,
each of the Group’s subsidiaries (the employer) and its employees make
monthly contributions to the scheme generally at 5% of the employees’
earnings as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation.
The monthly contributions of each of the employer and the employees
are subject to a maximum contribution of HK$1,500 (2017: HK$1,500)
per month and thereafter contributions are voluntary. The Group has no
further obligation for post-retirement benefits beyond the contributions.

The Group is also required to contribute to an Employees Provident
Fund Scheme in Malaysia. Each of the employer and employee make
monthly contributions to the scheme generally at 13% and 11% of the
employees’ salaries respectively. The Group has no further obligation for
post-retirement benefits beyond the contributions.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC, the Group contributes
to state-administered retirement plans for employees in the PRC. The
employees contribute up to 8% (2017: 8%) of their basic salaries,
while the Group contributes approximately 13% to 14% (2017: 13%
to 14%) of such salaries. The Group has no further obligations for the
actual payment of pensions or post-retirements benefits beyond these
contributions. The state-administrated retirement plans are responsible
for the entire pension obligations payable to the retired employees.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Employee benefits expense (including 9

directors and senior management’s
emoluments) (continuea)

Notes: (Continued)

(@) Pension costs — defined contribution plans (Continuea)

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the amount of the Group’s
employer contributions to defined contribution plans was approximately
HK$3,751,000 (2017: HK$3,997,000). There were forfeited
contributions to the MPF Scheme of approximately HK$256,000 (2017:
HK$2,339,000) which has been utilised for the year ended 31 March
2018. As at 31 March 2018, contribution payable to the MPF Scheme
amounted to HK$493,000 (2017: HK$479,000).

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for
the year include one director (2017: one director), whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis shown in Note 37. The emoluments payable
to the remaining four (2017: four) individuals are as follows:

BB ERR M

EEEANHZ (BEEER
SREEEEHEN) «

MfsE: (&

(@ RASKA-FREHKTE (F)
HE-_Z-—-N\F=ZA=+—HLEE"
AEBREEIAATHAFERRD
3,751,000 7T ( =& — + £ : 3,997,000
BIL) BEZTE-NF=ZA=1+—HL
FECHAMNELIRABESTEHRA
#9256,0007% 7T ( — T — +4F : 2,339,000
BLT) R_ZBE—NEFE=ZA=+—8"
JE 7] 38 78 & 5T 204 5%493,0008 7T (=2
—+4F 1 479,000/ 7T ) °

hE&ZEFHAL

FAAEENEERRSHFALEE -
REZE(ZT—LF:—REF) %F
EZNHHMC R EI7T2IM D R
BReBMNBTHAEAL(ZE—LF: 10

B BB
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHE T FAT
Salaries and allowances & MoREL 3,763 3,345
Discretionary bonuses BB IEAL 835 90
Pension costs — defined contribution plans RIRE KA —REHRKAE 72 84
4,670 3,519

The emoluments of these individuals fell within the following bands:

ZEALTHOFHMNFATEER :

Number of individuals

A
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$500,000 to HK$1,000,000 500,000/ 7T 21,000,000/ 7T 1 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,00178 7T % 1,500,00078 7T 1
4 4

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors or other
members of the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join,
upon joining the Group, leave the Group or as compensation for loss of
office.

AEERENENEEFRAEREHA
THMEMKEX M ERRSI NS
AREE EMNBER BEFRAKERREK
TERBER R -
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BHMBHRAME

10 Finance costs - net

10

2018
= s

HK$’000
FEx

BERARN—FEHE

2017
—E—+F
HK$'000
THETT

Finance income BE A
— Interest income from bank deposits —RITF A EWA 488 184
— Unwinding of discounts on —REIHKERFED

held-to-maturity investments (FFzE22)

(Note 22) - 282
e e edaoo.... 88 466
Finance costs BhE AR
- Finance charges on obligations under — AR EAHEE &I

finance lease MEEH (375) (676)
— Interest expenses on borrowings —EEMERX (917) (903)
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 292 . (579
Finance costs — net A KA —F 5 (804) (1,113)

11 Subsidiaries 11 B AR
The following is a list of the subsidiaries at 31 March 2018: R—ZE—NF=ZA=+—8 KB
ATZEMT :

Place of incorporation and
kind of legal entity

MR LBHREEERER

Directly held:
EERER:
Promise Network
Holding Limited
Promise Network
Holding Limited

The British Virgin Islands (‘BVI"),
limited liability company

BEREERF

eprint Digital Holding The BVI, limited liability company

Limited
eprint Digital Holding ~ REEZES BREFRHE
Limited
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RERLEE ([(RBRZHE])

Proportion of
ordinary shares
held by the
Group

(%)

AEEER
EERLA
(%)

Particulars of
issued share capital

BRTRARE

2,887 ordinary shares of 100%
US$1 each

2,887 BREEIETTH
LEk

1 ordinary share of 100%

US$1 each

1RERAEIETHERR

Proportion

of ordinary
shares held by
non-controlling
interest

(%)
FERERRE
EERLA
(%)

Principal activities and
place of operation

FREREBN

Investment holding in
Hong Kong

Investment holding in
Hong Kong
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B I IERRMITE

11 B 2D =) =

11 Subsidiaries continuea)

Proportion
of ordinary
shares held by
held by the non-controlling
Particulars of Group interest Principal activities and
issued share capital (%) (%) place of operation
AEEREE FERERRS
EER LA EERLH FEXBEDR

Proportion of
ordinary shares

Place of incorporation and
kind of legal entity

E-print Group Limited

E-print Group Limited

eprint Holdings Limited
eprint Holdings Limited
e-print Trading Limited
e-print Trading Limited

Indirectly held:
BEEs:

Promise Network
Printing Limited

R e R 48 L ENR
BRAH

Invoice Limited

BREFIBERAF

Kimley Technology (HK)
Limited

SR (FH)
BRAT

Dajinlai Technology
(Shenzhen) Limited'

AERRE ORI
BARAF

Lucky Gainer Limited

FSERAA

Design Easy Limited

SRR AERERR

The BV, limited liability company

RBRIAES ARAEARHA

The BV, limited liability company
EERAHES FRAMEAA
The BV, limited liability company

RBRAHS ARAERA

Hong Kong, limited liability
company

A AREEAR

Hong Kong, limited liability
company

A AREEAR

Hong Kong, limited liability
company
BE BRAEAR

The PRC, limited liability company

HE BREEAR

Hong Kong, limited liability
company

BB BEREEAR

Hong Kong, limited liability
company

Rt (BB)VERAR BE FREEAR

BERTRARE

50,000 ordinary shares of
US$1 each

50,0008 & R E 17040
Lk

1 ordinary share of
US$1 each
1REREEIETHE AR

1 ordinary share of
US$1 each
1REREEIETHE AR

2,886 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

2,886 B RE BT
Limk

1,000 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

1,0008% & AR (B 178 T 49
EEk

2,775 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each
2,775l B IRE B T H)

1,000,000 ordinary shares of
RMB1 each

1,000,000 SR E{E
ARBATH T BR

2 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each
REREBIATH L AR

2,775 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

2, TSR G IREE1% A
Lk

(%)

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

(%)

Investment holding in
Hong Kong

Investment holding in
Hong Kong
BARARR

Investment holding in
Hong Kong

Provision of printing
services in Hong Kong

EEEREEIRIR

Provision of printing
services in Hong Kong

BB R AL ENRI R

Investment holding in
Hong Kong

Provision of I.T. services
in the PRC
BRI AR

Provision of management
services in Hong Kong

ERBREEERE

Provision of printing
services in Hong Kong

EEEREEIRIR
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11 Subsidiaries continuea)

Place of incorporation and
kind of legal entity

SRR AEREER

Indirectly held: (Continued)

BMERE: (4)

eprint Investment
Limited

The BVI, limited liability company

eprint Investment Limited REBRZEHE  BREMTA A

eprint Property
Investment Limited

eprint Property
Investment Limited

e-banner Limited

e-banner Limited

AppOne Esolution
Limited

AppOne Esolution
Limited

Digital Printing Centre
Limited
YWARIFOBRAR

Ebanner Australia Pty
Ltd

Ebanner Australia

Pty Ltd

Ebanner Solution Sdn.
Bhd.

Ebanner Solution
Sdn. Bhd.

E-BOSS CO. LIMITED

EZRBERAT

The BVI, limited liability company

KBRAEE BREAAR

Hong Kong, limited liability
company
BB BREEAF

Hong Kong, limited liability
company

BE EREEAR

Hong Kong, limited liability
company
A BREEAR

Australia, limited liability company

BN EREEAR

Malaysia, limited liability company
BRER EREEAR
Hong Kong, limited liability

company
B BREAEAH
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Particulars of
issued share capital

BRTRARE

1 ordinary share of
US$1 each
IREREEIZTHE AR

1 ordinary share of
US$1 each
1REREEIETHEBR

40,133,000 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

40,133,000k B R E1E1/E T H)
Eil

10 ordinary shares of
HK$430,000 each

108% 5 A% 430,000/ LAY
Tk

10,000 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

10,000/ GREE1BTH
LRk

1 ordinary share of
Australia dollar (‘AUD”)
1 each

1RBREETRT (NRT]) )
L

400,000 ordinary shares of
RM1 each

400,000k BREE1LE A
Tk

1 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each
1REREEIETHERR

11 B A 8=

Proportion

Proportion of
ordinary shares
held by the
Group

(%)

AEEREE
EER LA

(%)

100%

100%

51%

70%

100%

100%

100%

100%

of ordinary
shares held by
non-controlling
interest

(%)

FERBEERR
BB Ll
(%)

49%

30%

Principal activities and
place of operation

FREREDNR

Property investment in
Hong Kong
BRMERE

Property investment in
Hong Kong
BENERE

Provision of digital printing
services in Hong Kong

EEBREHFHRIRS

Provision of app solutions
in Hong Kong
EEBREEAEARA

em
VES

Investment holding in
Hong Kong

Inactive

TreE

Provision of printing
services in Malaysia

SRS SR EIRIART

Dormant

TEXY
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11 Subsidiaries continuea)

(@) Material non-controlling interests

The total non-controlling interests as at 31 March 2018
is HK$6,377,000 (2017: debit: HK$2,715,000), in which
the whole amount is attributed to e-banner Limited and its
subsidiaries (“e-banner Group”).

Summarised financial information on subsidiaries
with material non-controlling interests

Set out below is the summarised financial information for
the subsidiaries that have non-controlling interests that are

material to the Group.

Summarised statement of financial position

B H SRR M T

11 B2 =) (&)
(a) EXFEEZRER

R-ZZE-—NEFE=A=+—H 3k
fi% #E %5 48 %8 /56,377,000 0 ( — &
—+F:EFH:2,7150008 L) * &
/B P e-banner Limited & £t B A
A ([e-banner& @] ) o

BEEAFEZREZNNBELRZ
MBERBE

TG A BT S B E AR
BRBRERNNEAR M BE
HEE .

MBRRRBEE

e-banner Group
e-bannerf

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET

Current mED
Assets BE 13,661 11,033
Liabilities afE (18,708) (35,830)
Total current net liabilities M BEFEARE (5,047) (24,797)

e-banner Group
e-banner&

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —ET—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAEIT

Non-current IERH
Assets BE 19,546 26,777
Liabilities afE (1,935) (6,939)
Total non-current net assets IR EE TR 17,611 19,838
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/(Af)F8 12,564 (4,959)
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& I EmRERMIEE

11 Subsidiaries continueq) 11 f[fB A8 =)

(a) Material non-controlling interests (continued) (a) EXFERELS =)
Summarised statement of comprehensive income ZHNERYPE

e-banner Group
e-bannerf

2018 2017
—B-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FA&TT

Revenue W 2= 94,588 76,243

Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETB R AR, (BE) 1,990 (15,666)

Income tax (expenses)/credit i (AX) #%2 (857) 948

Profit/(loss) for the year FRmF, (EE) 1,133 (14,718)

12 Investments in associates 12 RBEE RTINKRE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT

At beginning of year NGl 2,962 4,196

Additions (Note i) NE (MIEE) 3 750

Disposal (Note i) & (P EEi) (112) -

Share of losses of associates FE(G B & A R B 1R (143) (1,7406)

Currency translation differences M N =58 267 (238)

At end of year TGS 2,977 2,962

Notes: B &

(i) On 3 April 2017, E-BOSS CO. LIMITED (“E-BOSS”), a wholly-owned (i) R-ZE—tFWOA=RA ARAZEH
subsidiary of the Company, invested in an associate, Sakura Japan BAREZEABRAR ([ZEM])IKE
Property (Hong Kong) Limited at consideration of HK$3,000 for 3,000 —EEERRBZAIBE (BB ERA
shares issued. On 2 June 2017, E-BOSS disposed 1,000 shares of 7]+ &2 X {83,000/ 7T 41 #E3,0008% B 31T
Sakura to the a third party at a consideration of HK$1,000. Loss of B -R_ZT—tFEA=-H ZEED
partial disposal of an associate amounted to approximately HK$111,000 EBZTHE 21,0001 HhF—2F=
was recognised “other losses — net” in the consolidated profit or loss 7 R AE B1,000/ T 25 HH & — BB
(Note 7). N A Z BEKI111,0008 TR & fHiE

(PH3E7) o [t Es 18 — %8R #ERR o
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12 Investments in associates (coninueq

(a)

(b)

Details of the Group’s investments in associates are as
follows:

Place of
business/country
of incorporation

350114

Name of company
ARER A S B R
2018

—E2-N\F

Shenzhen Yi Yun Hu PRC 30%
Wang Tong Technology
Company Limited"?

AYNEEERARRERAF 2 FE

Giant State Limited' The BVI 30%

EABRAR RERUES

Sakura Japan Property Hong Kong 20%
(Hong Kong) Limited'

BZABE (BE)BRAR &R

U The financial statements of these companies are not audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers.

2 English translation is for identification purpose only.
Commitments in respect of associates

The Group has commitment to investing in one of its
associate, Shenzhen Yi Yun Hu Wang Tong Technology
Company Limited of HK$4,686,000 (2017: HK$4,228,000).

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s
interest in the associates.

Summarised financial information for material
associate

Set out below are the summarised financial information for
Shenzhen Yi Yun Hu Wang Tong Technology Company Limited
which is accounted for using the equity method.

12

Effective interest
held as at 31 March

R=A=1t-ARAERER

2017

—tF

30%

30%

(a)

(b)

B I IERRMITE

REEENTNTRE 2

AEERBERANKEFBOT :

Measurement
method

Principal
activities

TEXRBED SHEAE

Provision of cloud  Equity
printing services

REZNRRSE  BRE

Investment holding ~ Equity
in Hong Kong

ERRERR ER%

Provision of real Equity

estate agency

services

RUFHERE  #RZE
R

NIRRT =2 2N % S ]
=Bl S AT E AR

B
Ax

@
=

2 XGRS

B N B R E

zt:;%la%*ﬁﬁ—ﬁﬁﬂ%%@ﬂ
FIBEEZEPBRITER QAR
%34,686,000,%75(_;—t$

4,228,000/ 7T ) ©

ZNEJE )i
BfE-

BRRZESBEIR

EZEHEQRAMBENBE

TX%@EIJ IR EERBHRAER
RAIMP B ER B E I AR
)\EE°
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&I R M aE
12 Investments in associates (continued 12 REEE R TINRE 2
(b) Summarised financial information for material (b) EEBREQNTAMEERBE »)

associate (continuea)

Summarised statement of financial position BBERRREE

Shenzhen Yi Yun Hu Wang Tong
Technology Company Limited
FYBEEEBREERAA

2018 2017

—B-NE Tt

HK$’000 HK$'000

FE T FHET

Non-current assets FERBEE 2,886 3,460

Current assets MENE E 5,013 6,504

Current liabilities MENBE (117) (92)

Net assets BEFE 7,782 9,872
Summarised statement of comprehensive income HEWERBE

Shenzhen Yi Yun Hu Wang Tong
Technology Company Limited
FYBEEEBREERAF

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Revenue W 1,109 161
Loss before income tax M ET1S AT &S 12 (2,980) (3,320)
Income tax expense FrigHif < - -
Loss for the year FAEE (2,980) (3,320)
The information above reflects the amounts presented in the LA & 8B BB & N R R B I IR R
financial statements of the associate, and not for the Group’s NEF R EEE WIERNEBFTEH
share of those amounts, adjusted for differences in accounting B WA A EEEEE QG ZHE
policies between the Group and the associate. BEBRENERELAE
Reconciliation of summarised financial information MEENBENHE
Reconciliation of the summarised financial information MHBERBENEERZY E R0 E
presented to the carrying amount of its interest in the NAIWERIREE -
associate.
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12 Investments in associates (coninueq

(b) Summarised financial information for material

13

associate (continuea)

Summarised financial information

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB ERR M

REBERNTNERE @
EEBREQNTVEERSE »)

12
(b)

MBEERBE

Shenzhen Yi Yun Hu Wang Tong
Technology Company Limited
RYNBEERBNEERLF

2018 2017
—E-NEF —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
Opening net assets FHEEFR 9,872 13,987
Loss for the year FAEE (2,980) (3,320)
Currency translation differences M N E%R 890 (795)
Closing net assets FREEFHE 7,782 9,872
Interest in associates REE R RIS 30% 30%
Share of net assets E(REEF5E 2,335 2,962
Investment in a joint venture 13 REELENRE
2018
—E-N\F
HK$’000
FExT
At beginning of year NG 6,205 5,655
Share of profit of a joint venture EIE & & EEF 777 1,257
Currency translation differences ME N =5 1,039 (707)
At end of year RELR 8,021 6,205
Details of the Group’s joint venture is as follows: KREBZAEDEFHBOT
Place of
business/country Percentage of Measurement
Name of company of incorporation ownership interest Principal activities method
E3 31
AL AR L B R BHEEOL FEXEKTE TERE
2018 2017
“E-N\F C"T+F
e-print Solutions Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 30% 30%  Provision of printing  Equity
services
e-print Solutions Sdn. Bnhd. BRAD T ED Rl AR %5 B#=%
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BHMBHRAME

13 REELENKRE @)
(a) E&ENEE
AEBYEEBE LD EMNAE-

13 Investment in a joint venture (continueq)

(@) Commitments in respect of joint venture

The Group has no commitments relating to its joint venture.

BMEAAAEERN -—HEEEEMN
REmHAREE

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s
interest in a joint venture.

N X &5l e-print Solutions Sdn. Bhd
N H KB A 7] [e-print Solutions |
MBI ERE  WIARREAR-

Set out below is the summarised financial information for
e-print Solutions Sdn. Bhd and its subsidiaries. (“e-print
Solutions”) which is accounted for using the equity method.

(b) BAEiRR R E

(b) Summarised statement of financial position

e-print Solutions

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FET FETT
Current assets mENEE
Cash and cash equivalents HeMkHELEFEMEER 5,253 5,919
Other current assets (excluding HMREEE (TRERS
cash and cash equivalents) K EEER) 7,597 6,635
Total currentassets  AaBAEL® 12850 12554
Current liabilities MEAE
Financial liabilities (excluding trade cHEBE(TEEEZES
payables) FERTRIE) (10,639) (7,858)
Other current liabilities (including Hhn#eE(REES
trade payables) FETRIE) (18,796) (10,151)
Total current liabilties ~ n®AMEM®E (29435 (18,009)
Non-current assets FEREEE
Assets  EE 79315 46,515
Non-current liabilities ERBEaE
Financial liabilities SRAE (32,847) (19,001)
Other liabilities HaBE (3,343) (1,544)
Total non-current liabilities ~ JFmBIAFA®R 0000000 (36,190 (20,545)
Net assets EEFR 26,540 20,515
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13 Investment in a joint venture (continueq)

(b) Summarised statement of financial position

(Continued)

BB ERR M

13 REELENEE »)

BERRRBE (2

e-print Solutions

Revenue

Depreciation

Finance cost

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense
Profit for the year

Y &

e

BB RN

B P 15 B¢ A )2t A
IR

F R A

2018 2017
—E-NEF —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
84,436 76,206
(4,250) (3,846)
(1,921) (1,317)
4,178 4,645
(1,588) (453)
2,590 4,192

The information above reflects the amounts presented in
the financial statements of the joint venture and not for the
Group’s share of those amounts, adjusted for differences in
accounting policies between the Group and the joint venture.

Reconciliation of summarised financial information

Reconciliation of the summarised financial information
presented to the carrying amount of its interest in a joint

venture.

NEEHRBEZERNM BT RE
W25 WIFAEE A
BURIAKTEESGLELRZE
S RERNERELAER-

MBERBENH R

MBERMEOHERZIEN —F
BECENESREREE
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BHMBHRAME

13 Investment in a joint venture (continueq

(b) Summarised statement of financial position

14
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(Continued)

Summarised financial information

13 REELENERE =
(b) B MRREKBE )

MBEMBE

e-print Solutions

2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—+EF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FHE T

Opening net assets FHEEFRE 20,515 18,661
Profit for the year F A5 A 2,590 4,192
Currency translation differences E X ZERE 3,435 (2,338)
Closing net assets FREEFH 26,540 20,515
Interest in a joint venture REeE&EPENER 30% 30%
Share of net assets EIEEEFR 7,962 6,155
Goodwill B 59 50
Carrying amount BRmEE 8,021 6,205

Income tax expense

14 FIBRHEX

2018 2017
—E-NF —ET—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
Current income tax =g

— Hong Kong profits tax —BBNER 5,747 7,989
- PRC corporate income tax —HBEPERSR 150 =

Under/(over)-provision in prior years BAEFEREBIRE
(HBEERE) 554 (1,239)
6,451 6,750
Deferred income tax (Note 30) EFEFTS R (P 7E30) (852) (3,225)
Income tax expense Frigfi M 5,599 3,525
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14 Income tax expense (continueq)

Subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong are subject to
Hong Kong profits tax at a rate of 16.5% on the estimated
assessable profits for the year (2017: 16.5%). Subsidiary
incorporated in the PRC is subject to PRC corporate income
tax based on the statutory income tax rate of 25% for the year
(2017: 25%) as determined in accordance with the relevant
PRC income tax rules and regulations. The Company has not
been subject to any taxation in the Cayman Islands as it does
not have any assessable profit since its incorporation.

The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using
the weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the
consolidated entities in the respective jurisdictions as follows:

BB ERR M

14 FIEFHBAX @

MNEBTMRIOHE QT ERE
FEMHETEZFEHEMIL16.5%0
R(ZE—LF:16.5% ) HNE B
FERM-RPRFMA LN B R
A AL B AR R B AT 1S R OE Al
MEREENTFEELITMBRME
25% (ZZE—+F:125% ) @ E
TEMGH AR e HFMAKLN
R EARERT SN AR T
BESMENRAESHSHE:

BN & B &) B BT 15 AT 5 ) 2B A
A B TE BB A @ R 2 A 4R 8 A
ERENEGHE BT & mEFE
HREFENERESBEMTR
BRBEREAT :

2018
—E2-N\EF
HK$’000
THEx
Profit before income tax B PR 15 250 A4 28,693 12,744
Tax calculated at a weighted average LR RA#E = ) hniE
tax rate in different tax jurisdictions B RAEFIE 5,022 981
Tax effects of: NTEENRIBELE :
— Share of losses of associates —E(REE N RIER 28 288
— Share of profit of a joint venture — e EREREN (153) (207)
— Income not subject to tax —BEHBHIA (639) (683)
— Expenses not deductible for tax — A
purposes 829 2,250
— Utilisation of previously unrecognised — — 2 F It BT R HE R B T I8
tax losses [Ei=! (401) -
— Recognition of previously unrecognised — & 52 1t Bl K #E R B £ 18
tax losses [Ei=! - 97)
— Tax losses and other temporary — W ERERELEFSHA
differences for which no deferred MIEEEREMERERE
income tax was recognised 359 2,232
— Under/(over)-provision in respect of —F—FERBTRS
prior year (FB%E) Bt 554 (1,239
5,599 3,625
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BHMBHRAME

14 Income tax expense (continueq) 14

The weighted average applicable tax rate for year ended
31 March 2018 was approximately 20% (2017: 27%). The
decrease is primarily due to changes in the profitability of the
subsidiaries in the respective jurisdictions of tax in current

year.
15 Earnings per share 15
(a) Basic (a)

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue for the years
ended 31 March 2018 and 2017.

EBiEX e

RBE_T-NF=_A=1T—L*#F
£ nfE 853 A B R 4 820% (=
T—tF:27%)  ZBPTIEBHR
RAFRESRIGAIAER ZHBA
BBV E B N #AC PR -

ZREF
B

BREXAFNTIIREARQ R # &R
BAREBEMNBEABE T —\F
RZZE—+tF=A=+—RILFE
EHRTERBRMETORE-

2018
—E-N\fF

HK$’000
FTRET

Profit attributable to equity holders of RABHERFAE A

the Company (HK$'000) FE1E = A (FET) 22,032 17,321
Weighted average number of ordinary B 217 & @R N F 19 &

shares in issue (thousands) (Fr%) 550,000 550,000
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) BREARRBF (BW) 4.01 3.15

(b) Diluted (b)

Diluted earnings per share is the same as the basic earnings
per share for the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017 as
there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding
during the years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B I IERRMITE

16 Property, plant and equipment 16 ME BERRE
Computer,
Leasehold Plant and  furniture and Motor
Buildings improvements machinery equipment vehicles
Ei RER
BE HEMXRE BEREW R RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FiET TR Tk TR
At 1 April 2016 RZZ—RE
mA—H
Cost A = 13,160 152,354 14,529 1,728 181,771
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE - (7,351) (52,260) (7,956) (737) (68,304)
Net book amount REFE - 5,809 100,094 6,573 991 113,467

Year ended 31 March 2017  EHE-F—+4

=R=t+—8H

HEFE
Opening net book amount FNERFE - 5,809 100,094 6,573 991 113,467
Additions R 67,850 2,771 3,274 1,592 1,029 76,516
Disposals (Note 32) e (HizEs2) B (630) (12,493) (76) (104) (13,303)
Depreciation (Note 8) & (FizEs) (922) (1,879) (13,072) (2,229 (260) (18,350)
Provision for impairment B R (f3E8)

(Note 8) - - (694) () - (699)
Currency translation differences [ 5 %= %8 - 62) (270) [107) © (442)
Closing net book amount R FREFE 66,928 6,015 76,839 5,754 1,653 157,189
At 31 March 2017 RZZ—t4F

=R=1+—8H
Cost A 67,850 14,605 124,288 15,732 2,043 224,518
Accumulated depreciation 2EtiE (922) (8,590) (46,789) (9,973) (390) (66,664)
Accumulated impairment ZERE - - (660) (5) = (665)
Net book amount REFE 66,928 6,015 76,839 5,754 1,653 157,189
Year ended 31 March 2018 ~ HZE-F—\F

=A=+-H

HFE
Opening net book amount FORAFE 66,928 6,015 76,839 5,754 1,653 157,189
Additions NE - 229 228 1,246 - 1,703
Disposals (Note 32) HE (PEEs2) - (1) (5,000) (63) (81) (5,145)
Depreciation (Note 8) e (fEE8) (2,212) (1,867) (11,662) (2,323) 419) (18,483)
Currency translation differences [ 5 %= %8 - 73 193 139 2 407
Closing net book amount FRE®FE 64,716 4,449 60,598 4,753 1,155 135,671
At 31 March 2018 RZE-N\F

=A=+-H
Cost A 67,850 14,929 117,787 16,989 1,771 219,326
Accumulated depreciation SR (3,134) (10,480) (56,426) (12,231) (616) (82,887)
Accumulated impairment S - - (763) (5) - (768)
Net book amount IREFE 64,716 4,449 60,598 4,753 1,155 135,671
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&I R M aE
16 Property, plant and equipment coninued) 16 V¥ BERZE =
Note: Bt 5
As at 31 March 2018, buildings with the carrying amounts of approximately R-ZE—N\NE=ZA=+—8 KREEAY
HK$64,716,000 (2017: HK$66,928,000) were pledged to banks to secure 64,716,000 7t ( = — £ 4 : 66,928,000/
bank borrowings of approximately HK$21,878,000 (2017: HK$22,815,000) T)NBFEERTRIT UEREBAL
(Note 28). 21,878,000/ 7T ( =ZF —+ 4 : 22,815,000/ 7T )
RIERT A 3K (P aE28) °
Depreciation of the Group’s property, plant and equipment AEBEMNYE BERSBZITE
has been charged to the consolidated profit or loss as follows: EREHEZT R ERBEBERLD
T
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FET
Cost of sales $H & AR 12,768 14,309
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAX 3,014 1,720
Administrative expenses THRAX 2,701 2,321
18,483 18,350
Property, plant and equipment includes the following amounts ME - BMEERIXEEEATHASE
where the Group is a lessee under finance leases (Note 29): REREHEFERABEAZERE
(KHisE29) -
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET
Cost — capitalised finance leases RA—BRERERESE 22,144 35,942
Accumulated depreciation AFtITE (12,409) (12,160)
Net book amount BREFE 9,735 23,782
The Group leases various machinery under non-cancellable AEBERBEIAURHEREHE RS
finance lease agreements. The lease terms are two to five PHZEKSE - AMEERSF
years, and ownership of the assets lie within the Group. BEEEREEBNASEE-
Impairment assessment of the property, plant and equipment EBEHEEENR o 26K EE LD
with the carrying amounts of approximately HK$34,871,000 in 34,871,000 L 2% WE k&
relation to banner printing segment is set out in Note 17. B2 RER AERH 7 -
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B I IERRMITE

17 B EE

17 Intangible assets

Other
intangible
Goodwill assets
HE HtEREE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHE T FABT
Year ended 31 March 2017 BE-_ZT—++F
—A=+—BLFE
Opening net book amount FYREFE 725 1,147 1,872
Amortisation charge (Note 8)  #$5E F (K{:E8) - (430) (430)
Closing net book amount FAREEFE 725 717 1,442
At 31 March 2017 RZZT—+F
=R=+—8H
Cost B AR 725 1,290 2,015
Accumulated amortisation R 5 - (573) (573)
Net book amount REFE 725 717 1,442
Year ended 31 March 2018 HE2—_2—N\&F
=A=+t—HBILEE
Opening net book amount FYRmEFE 725 717 1,442
Amortisation charge (Note 8)  #$5E F (KM{:E8) - (430) (430)
Provision for impairment RERE (H5E8)

(Note 8) - (287) (287)
Closing net book amount FREREFE 725 - 725
At 31 March 2018 RZZE—-N\F

=B=+—8H
Cost B AR 725 1,290 2,015
Accumulated amortisation RET#H - (1,003) (1,003)
Accumulated impairment RETEE (287) (287)
Net book amount R FE 725 - 725

2T \FE=A=+—HI#F
fE - #8H R X 49430,0008 T (= F
— 4+ : 430,000 L) E RN A HE
mATSEERA] AR -

For the year ended 31 March 2018, amortisation expense of
approximately HK$430,000 (2017: HK$430,000) has been
charged to ‘cost of sales’ in the consolidated profit or loss.
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B I TFRRMITE

BELEE#)

17 Intangible assets (continueq

Impairment test for goodwill and property, plant
and equipment of banner printing segment

Management reviews the business performance of the
Group based on the products and services the respective
business provide. Goodwill is monitored by management
at the operating segment level. The Group’s goodwill was
arisen from the acquisition of additional 11% equity interests
in e-banner Limited on 1 April 2015 and it is allocated to the
banner printing segment.

Management reviews annually whether the carrying amount
of a CGU is higher than the recoverable amount which
results in impairment of goodwill and/or property, plant and
equipment. The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined
based on value-in-use calculation. The calculation use pre-tax
cash flow projections based on financial budget approved by
management covering a five-year period with the first year
growth rate of 13% (2017: 13%) and ranged from 5% to 8%
(2017: 5% to 8%) for the subsequent four years. Gross profit
margin are assumed to remain constant at 42% (2017: ranged
from 37% to 43%) for the forecast period. Cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using the estimated
growth rate of 2% (2017: 2%) and discount rate of 15% (2017:
15%).

Management determined the revenue growth rate based on
past performance and expectations on market and operational
development. The discount rate applied by the Group is rate
that reflect current market assessment of the time value of
money and the risk specific to the CGU.

Impairment assessment was performed on the goodwill and
property, plant and equipment and the recoverable amount of
the CGU in which goodwill has been allocated is higher than
the aggregate carrying amounts of goodwill and property,
plant and equipment totalling approximately HK$35,596,000
as at 31 March 2018. As a result, no impairment loss was
charged for the year ended 31 March 2018.
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18 Financial instruments by category

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB ERR M

18 REHETHEMTA

Assets at
Held-to- fair value
Loans and maturity through
receivables investments profit or loss Total
ERR DMAREE
BUWHRE BHZEIHRE JEREZEE Y
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Assets BE
As at 31 March 2018 RZE—)N\F
=A=+—H
Trade and other receivables B 5 R H e
(excluding prepayments) HE (T REHE
) 14,484 - - 14,484
Amounts due from related FEUL BE & N B RIR
companies 10,191 - - 10,191
Held-to-maturity investments REHKE - 15,000 - 15,000
Financial assets at fair value FBREBEREDRL
through profit or loss BEIIEZ
TREE - - 12,746 12,746
Cash and cash equivalents RekBe%E
1HE 89,524 - - 89,524
114,199 15,000 12,746 141,945
Assets BE
As at 31 March 2017 RZT—LF
=R=+-—H
Trade and other receivables 85 REHMEK
(excluding prepayments) R (T BE
BRRE) 8,158 - - 8,158
Amounts due from related & i B8 58 1 B 5UIE
companies 5,849 - - 5,849
Held-to-maturity investments BREIHEE - 25,000 - 25,000
Financial assets at fair value BRBREAR
through profit or loss EBEME2SH
BE - - 12,319 12,319
Cash and cash equivalents RekieEE
1HH 68,220 - - 68,220
82,227 25,000 12,319 119,546
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BHMBHRAME

18 BB E s E/M I A @

18 Financial instruments by category (continueq)

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
% 8 85 A A 51 BR
ZEmEE
HK$’000
FHET
Liabilities BfE
As at 31 March 2018 RZZE-—NF=A=+—H
Amounts due to related parties FET B iE 75 ;RIE 336
Amounts due to directors JETE = FKIE 245
Borrowings (excluding finance lease liabilities) BE(TEEREHERE) 24,592
Obligations under finance leases MEMESEBETHEE 7,045
Trade and other payables B REMENFIE(TEERK
(excluding advanced receipts from BPHIERESF)
customers and accrued expenses) 15,330
47,548
As at 31 March 2017 RZE—tF=A=+—8H
Amounts due to related parties JE T A3 75 SRR 9
Amounts due to directors FERZEENRIE 245
Borrowings (excluding finance lease liabilities) BE(TEEREHERRE) 38,343
Obligations under finance leases BMEMHEBETHERM 14,058
Trade and other payables 25 REMERMNFIE (TEEEK
(excluding advanced receipts from EFPFIEKEGTHAY)
customers and accrued expenses) 9,774
62,429
19 Inventories 19 78
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Raw materials JR# 5,531 4,685
Work-in-progress £ & m 34 143
Finished goods RIAK oh 486 581
6,051 5,409

22— N\F=ZA=+—HI#F
B -BRAERIILI ATHEEK K]
B M BB AN A #953,180,000/%8 7T ( —
T —+ 4 : 53,269,000 7T ) °

The cost of materials recognised as an expense and included
in ‘cost of sales’ amounted to approximately HK$53,180,000
for the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017: HK$53,269,000).
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B I IERRMITE

20 Trade receivables 20 B 5 EWFIE
2018 2017
—2-N\fF —E—F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FTET FHET
Trade receivables E 5 e WG IE 7,895 4,533
Less: provision for impairment of BB 5 W IERE R
trade receivables (15) (15)
Trade receivables — net B S EWGIE— 55 7,880 4,518
The directors of the Company consider that the carrying ARREERAEE S Féf W 5% 38 | BR
amounts of trade receivables approximate their fair values. HEEEQAAREBEES
Payment terms granted to customers are mainly cash on AEPREHNONRIEREZREE
delivery and on credit. The average credit period ranges NREEE - FHEEHN FI0H
from 30 days to 60 days. The ageing analysis of the trade ZO0B - ZBEFZEHHE > NEZE
receivables based on invoice date is as follows: WHRIEBRER DT 0T ¢

HK$’000
FExT
0 — 30 days 0&30H 4,977 2,983
31 - 60 days 31£260H 1,530 713
Over 60 days @60 H 1,373 822
7,880 4,518
As at 31 March 2018, trade receivables of approximately RZFE-NF=ZA=+—H8 85
HK$3,609,000 (2017: HK$1,886,000) were past due but not JE W X I8 493,609,000 L (= &
impaired. These relate to certain customers with no recent —+t 4 :1,886, 000% 7T )E @ e
history of default. Based on historic low default rate, the NP R R (B o Lt B AT HA 3 A HE R RE 8%
Group believes that no impairment provision is necessary. The NETEFPFER-ERBEREFH
past due ageing analysis of these receivables is as follows: REREK RNEBHEEHBEELR
BEEE - ZZERFIBEN SRR
W
—E-NF
HK$’000
FExT
0 - 30 days 0&30H 2,038 990
31 - 60 days 31£260H 1,167 605
Over 60 days 218600 404 291
3,609 1,886
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BHMBHRAME

20 EZEWFEIE @

20 Trade receivables (continueq)

As at 31 March 2018 and 2017, no trade receivable was
considered to be impaired.

The maximum exposures of the Group to credit risk are the
carrying value of trade receivables mentioned above.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables of the Group are
mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

The Group does not hold any collateral as security for trade
receivables.

Movements on the provision for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

R-B-\FER-F—t5=]
=+ — B PR R
48 &R (8 -

AEBEAZONEREERRT) Lt
B 5 RU AN REE -

AEEREZERFENEAETIR
AT E

AEBEYENEHEBAHAFEE
A 9 dm A AR AR o

BHRU IR RERENZEHMNT

2018
= s

HK$’000
FHEx

REY,/FR

At beginning of year/end of year

15 15

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables
have been included in ‘administrative expenses’ in the
consolidated profit or loss. Amounts charged to the allowance
account are generally written off, when there is no expectation
of recovering additional cash.

The maximum exposures of the Group to credit risk are the
carrying value of trade receivables mentioned above.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables of the Group are
mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

The Group does not hold any collateral as security for trade
receivables.
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21 Deposits, prepayments and other 21
receivables

BB ERR M

BE FENREREMGER

I

2018 2017
2N\ T
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Deposits and prepayments B RTERMRIE 18,570 16,801
Other receivables H b & W RIE 335 1,317
Deferred expenses EER X - 1,102
Interest receivables from held-to- REIHEEEEFE
maturity investments 1,044 1,220
19,949 20,440
Less: non-current portion B IEMBER S
Deposits and prepayments Be RERMHKIEA (4,913) (4,940)
Deposits, prepayments and e BRFIBEREMEY
other receivables — current portion RE-RHH D 15,036 15,500

Amount mainly represents rental deposits, and prepayments
for utility, insurance expenses and sub-contracting fee.
Deferred expenses represent capitalised expenses to be
recognised in cost of sales upon the revenue recognition from
the provision of app solutions.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of other receivables and prepayments approximate
their fair values.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s deposits, prepayments
and other receivables are mainly denominated in Hong Kong
dollars.

ZeRIBEHERE 2RARK
BENRE - RRAXERIBER &
FER 2 35 fR B AR T\ AR OR 5 R T
BRABRRERNEERANERNE
TMER X -

RRBEFERR EMBKKER
BENRENREEEERAABEMR
%,

AREENZEE FBNRENREME
WHRIERBREEE ZIAB LA
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&I R M aE
22 Held-to-maturity investments 22 FEIHPRE
2018 2017
—E-NF —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Unlisted bond securities at FLETEFES
amortised costs (R HEKAFTE) 15,000 25,000
Less: current portion BB E D (15,000) (10,000)
Non-current portion EMENE D - 15,000
The movement in held-to-maturity investments is summarized REINHKENESHE AN T :
as follows:
2018
—B-NE
HK$’000
FTET
At beginning of the year REH] 25,000 40,295
Additions NE - 15,000
Redemptions fE o (10,000) (30,584)
Unwinding of discount on held-to- REIHKREMNE
maturity investments (Note 10) g (K3E10) - 282
Currency translation differences fE N =58 - 7
At end of the year RER 15,000 25,000
There were no provision of impairment of held-to-maturity RZE—-—NERZZE—EF=A
investment as at 31 March 2018 and 2017. e = U 2 ?é’f B EAE B 1E
R E R o
The fair values of unlisted securities are based on cash flows HE_T— )\$ A=+—HBLt%F
discounted using a rate based on the market interest rate E-LEmESFNAREBE Ty i
and the risk premium specific to the unlisted securities at 9% ® A %EA i iﬁ FERIIELETMESFD
(2017: 9%) for the year ended 31 March 2018. FrERRREMNLEIR (T —+t

F:9% )MRMBEREFTE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Held-to-maturity investments (continueq)

Held-to-maturity investments are denominated in the following
currencies:

B H SRR M T

22 FEIHERE @

FEIHRERATEE B E:

2018
=

HK$’000

Hong Kong dollars BT

TE&ET

15,000 25,000

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date
is the carrying value of the debt securities classified as
held-to-maturity investments.

Financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss

RBEEERZAEERARSDSER
FREIMRENEBESFREE

BRERERD
ZERMEE

REES R

2018

—E-N\E

HK$’000

FET
Fair value of insurance policy investment {REREK DA BE 12,746 12,319
Less: current portion BB E D (12,746) -
Non-current portion EMENE - 12,319

The insurance policy investment is an insurance contract
provided to a director with underlying investment on a capital
fund.

Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss is presented
within investing activities in the consolidated statement of
cash flows.

Changes in fair value of financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss are recorded in ‘other losses — net’ in the
consolidated profit or loss (Note 7).

RERERRNEZRREZRREH
BEANESHNHEBAKRE -

FRBREARBEIEKRZEHE
EEIREHBERERIEEE
A

BBBERRARBEIKISME

ENARBEESHHNSHHEZRTH
fthEs B —F 5] (KisE7) -
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23

24

200

Financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss (Continued)

The fair value of the insurance policy investment is based on
the unobservable inputs and classified within level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy (Note 3.3).

As 31 March 2018, the investment is classified as a current
financial asset at fair value through profit or loss as the
investment is expected to be redeemed within one year after
the reporting date.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents represents cash and short-term
bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or
less.

23

24

ZRBEZERALEBEYIER
CEMEE @

REIZLEN AR BEIIBRIETE
R A ASBEAEERERAAEBE
[E&HE =F A (K5E3.3) -

R-ZZE-NF=ZRAR=+—H A
ZREFHARBEAHER—FAE
B ZREESBRREBBERIR
REEIRZABDEMEE -

RehBEEEEEE

AekReFERBEB=EA KA
TRHEIBPZEAE REHRITER-

%

A

5

2018 2017

—Z2—N\F —E—+F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FATT

Cash at banks and on hand RITEERFHIAS 46,982 36,161
Short — term bank deposits HSRITIA X 42,542 32,059
Cash and cash equivalents HekBEEFMEEE 89,524 68,220

Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposits rate.

The conversion of Renminbi denominated balances into
foreign currencies and the remittance of such foreign
currencies denominated bank balances and cash out of PRC
are subject to the relevant rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.

eprint Group Limited Annual Report 2017/18
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Xt kR
25 Share capital and share premium 25 BARRMDEE
Nominal value
Number of of ordinary
shares shares Share premium Total
BRH#A EEREE R4 ERE Azt
(thousands) HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(FR&) TAET BT BT
Authorised capital - ordinary EERA—
shares of HK$0.01 each RZE—RF
At 1 April 2016, mA—A-
31 March 2017, —T+F
1 April 2017 and =A=t+—H"
31 March 2018 —T+F
HA—B &
—T-N\E
=A=+—H
BREE0.01
BITHL AR 10,000,000 100,000 - 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEIRHR:
At 1 April 2016, RZZ—RF
31 March 2017, MA—AR-
1 April 2017 and “E—+F
31 March 2018 =A=+—-8"
—T+F
MA—B X
—E-N\E
=R=+—H 550,000 5,500 132,921 138,421
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26 Hib{#E

26 Other reserves

Capital Other Exchange Retained
reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
EXRfFE HitfEE SHNERE KRBERF Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS000 HKS 000
FHET FHET FHET FHT FHET
As 1 April 2016 RoT— N
mA—H 6,593 (21) (1,220) 63,255 68,607
Profit for the year F Nz A - - - 17,321 17,321
Currency translation I N E%8
differences
— Group —AEH - = (619) - (519)
- Joint venture -G - - (945) - (945)
Dividends (Note 31) AR B (HMTEE31) - - - (12,650) (12,650)
At 31 March 2017 MRZT—+F
=A=+—0 6,593 (1)  (2,684) 67,926 71,814
Profit for the year F A5 A - - - 22,032 22,032
Currency translation M N E58
differences
— Group —AREE - - 516 - 516
— Joint venture —aE ¥ - - 1,306 - 1,306
Dividends (Note 31) i& 8 (KI5E31) - - - (8,800) (8,800)
At 31 March 2018 RNZZE—\F
=A=+—0 6,593 21) (862) 81,158 86,868
27 Trade payables, accruals and other 27 BESREIFIE Bt RER
payables HifEFRIE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Trade payables 2 SN RIE 12,886 7,948
Accruals and other payables JE & 3R I8 % H 4th FE < 5RIB
Accrued expenses JEET R X 16,067 15,879
Advanced receipt from customers AW EF A 7,945 10,593
Other payables H fh FE T R 2,444 1,826
26,456 28,298
Less: non-current portion other B IEMBNER S
payables b T 3B (1,186) =
Accruals and other FEETRRIE K
payables-current portion E N RIE—REE D 25,270 28,298
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B H SRR M T

27 Trade payables, accruals and other 27 ESEMNFIE Bt RER
payables (continue) H b FE S FE (2)
Payment terms granted by suppliers are mainly on credit. The HEFRENNREREEREE -
credit period ranges from 30 to 90 days. EEHN FI0HE0H -
The ageing analysis of the trade payables based on invoice REZAHEI>NE FHEMNKIER
date was as follows: oM mT:
2018 2017
—E-NF —ET—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
0 - 30 days 0% 30H 9,720 5,476
31 - 60 days 31%260H 2,250 2,175
61 — 90 days 61%290H 916 277
Over 90 days H@@90H - 20
12,886 7,948
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables, accruals AEEWE S ENKIE - BT HIE
and other payables are mainly denominated in Hong Kong MEMENFRENREEABEEZZEN %
dollars. JLEH{E e
28 Borrowings 28 &
2018 2017
—E2-NF —ET—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHETT
Current Bl EA
Trust receipt loans EFrEBIRE R 1,679 1,058
Bank overdrafts RITHEX - 8,882
Bank loans IRITER 1,035 5,588
Mortgage loans BHER 21,878 22,815

24,592 38,343
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28 Borrowings (continued) 28 fHE (#)

The table below analyses the Group’s borrowings into relevant
maturity groups based on the scheduled repayment dates
set out in the loan agreements and ignore the effect of any
repayment on demand clause:

TERAMAEENEE HREE
RBEMHEETERBYPFE A
Bt ACAZERERGRROZE
DRRBEBIEER

&

2018

—E-N\F

HK$’000

FERT
Within 1 year —FR 3,674 13,904
Between 1 and 2 years —EMF 981 3,437
Between 2 and 5 years MEEZRF 3,079 3,094
Over 5 years FFELE 16,858 17,908
24,592 38,343

Bank borrowings contained a repayment on demand clause
which enables the bank to exercise at its sole discretion.
Accordingly, the entire balance was classified under current
liabilities.

The carrying amounts of borrowings are secured and
denominated in Hong Kong dollars as at 31 March 2018 and
2017.

The weighted average effective interest rates per annum were
as follows:

RITERBERITAIZEITEZIRE
SRIEE G - Bt 28 EHD R
mBRE-

Trust receipt loans ERBEBEER
Bank overdrafts RITEX

Bank loans RITER

Mortgage loans EIHRER

—B-N\f
HK$000
THET
2.80% 2.42%
- 5.25%
3.50% 3.25%
2.25% 2.25%

The fair values of the borrowings approximate to their carrying
amounts as at 31 March 2018 and 2017 as all the borrowings
carry interests which are benchmarked against Hong Kong
Dollar prime rate and Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
(“HIBOR”), where relevant.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Borrowings (continueq)

The borrowings of the Group are subject to financial
covenants and the Group is in compliance with the financial
covenants as at 31 March 2018 and 2017.

As at 31 March 2018, the borrowings of the Group were
secured by personal guarantees provided by a related party
of the Group. Mortgage loans are secured by properties
of the Group of approximately HK$64,716,000 (2017:
HK$66,928,000) (Note 16).

Obligations under finance leases

Certain plant and machinery of the Group were held under
finance leases. No arrangements have been entered into for
contingent rental payments. The Group’s obligations under
finance leases were repayable as follows:

Minimum lease

28

29

BB IS ERR M 5
A=A )
R_E—NEFEFER_FT—+F=H
—t+t— B AEEMNEEEXSA
ZUHBRHEAEE —FHETER
4 o

R-ZE-—NEF=ZA=+—H K&
ENEETHASENBEES IR
HHOEABRBREAER - KHBER
EASBREMWERER BHEEAR
#)64,716,0008 L (=& — £ & :
66,928,000/ T) (HIzE16) o

MEHERTSME

AEBEETHERESRARERE
B - ASEMETLEMALAM
ENKL-AEEREHERT
MEERN T HEEER:

Present value of minimum

payments lease payments
BEASER BEESARRE
2018 2017 2018 2017
—2-\F T t% —B-N\F T %
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAETT FET FATT
Amounts payable under REMEETH
finance leases: e FR0E
Within one year —FR 5,268 7,384 5,110 7,013
Later than one year but not — & BTG
more than five years HF 1,969 7,241 1,935 7,045
7,237 14,625 7,045 14,058
Less: Future finance charges il : KRB E & (192) (567) - -
Present value of lease HESEMIRE
obligations 7,045 14,058 7,045 14,058
Less: Amount due within BRI B ERR
twelve months shown R+-@AR
under current liabilities W\ eH= (51100 (7,013)
Amount due after Rt+—@EA%
twelve months 2| Hf 2 FRI8 1,935 7,045
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29 Obligations under finance leases continveg) 29

The Group’s obligations under finance leases are secured
by the lessor’s charge over the leased assets with net
carrying amount of approximately HK$9,735,000 (2017:
HK$23,782,000) (Note 16).

The weighted average effective interest rates per annum were
as follows:

MmEMRAEENET @

AEEzHEREBRETECALERA
ASHREEE B EERR  HREMA
E{E A #9,735,0008 L (&2 —+
% :28,782,0008 L) (KizE16) °

MEEFABERFEMNERMT :

2018
—B—N\f

HK$’000

Obligations under finance leases MEMEEBBTEME

3.52% 3.55%

As at 31 March 2018, the obligations under finance leases of
the Group were secured by personal guarantee provided by a
related party of the Group (Note 35(c)).

30 Deferred income tax 30

The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
are as follows:

R-_E-NF=A=+—H K&
ERRMEHEBE ITNET IHASE
B AR E T IR A E A ER (K
35(c) ) fERE A -

i SE Fr & 51

EEH EEEREERE S &S
m -

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FATT
Deferred tax assets EETHIEE E
— Deferred tax assets to be recovered — —#A:@+ — 1 A & U [@ #Y
____aftermore than 12 months BREBEEE 2402 3250
Deferred tax liabilities EEFHIEAR
— Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered —7Bi8+ — & A % Y 21 #Y
after more than 12 months ELEFIEAE (7,768) (9,477)
Deferred liabilities — net BEBE—F58 (5,366) (6,218)
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30 Deferred income tax continueq)

The gross movements on the deferred income tax account are
as follows:

BB ERR M

30 IEEMEBH =)

2018

—E-N\F

HK$’000

FExT
At beginning of year REA] (6,218) (9,443)

Credited to the consolidated profit or REHFBERPETA

loss (Note 14) (KIEE14) 852 3,225
At end of year RER (5,366) (6,218)

The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
for the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of
balances with the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

BEMSMEERABRFEAN(K
ZERA—HBEERZEHRIEE) HE
Z;Han T

Accelerated tax depreciation

EBIEHTE
2018 2017
—E-NEF —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT F& T
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBBAE
At beginning of year RE ) (11,353) (13,392)
Credited to the consolidated REeHERPTA
profit or loss 1,956 2,039
At end of year RER (9,397) (11,353)
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&I R M aE
30 Deferred income tax (continueq) 30 IELEMEHR =
Tax losses
RIEFE
2018
—E-N\F
HK$’000
TET
Deferred tax assets EETRIBEE
At beginning of year REH] 5,135 3,949
(Charged)/credited to the consolidated W& HfEzH
profit or loss ($0BR) EF A (1,104) 1,186
At end of year RER 4,031 5,135
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses BEXEMEHEEDREMBBNIER
carry-forwards to the extent that the realisation of the A S E R KR RE RN G A&
related tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable. Mg s MIEREEEDR
The Group did not recognise deferred income tax asset of ReoAREEIW EERETIHEE
HK$3,112,000 (2017: HK$3,155,000) in respect of tax losses 14,787,000 Tt (=& — & &F:
amounting to HK$14,787,000 (2017: HK$14,236,000). These 14,236, ooo/%E)ﬁFéa BB IE FT 5 A0
unrecognised tax losses can be carried forward to offset & ES3,112,0008 T (= F ‘t$
against future assessable profits and have no expiry date 3,155, OOO/%E) KT —N\F-
in 2018. (2017: Tax losses amounting to HK$1,516,000 will 5K BE R0 B TH B 4R A A R 45 B AR ﬁréj
expire within 1-5 years and the remaining the tax losses have RREARB N B EEmBH -
no expiry date.) (ZZE—+F:FIEEE1,516,000
BRI E5FRNE R MR T
BEBYEERBEH-)
31 Dividends 31 BE
The dividends paid in 2018 was HK$8,800,000 (2017: RZF-A\FRHZKRER
HK$12,650,000). A dividend in respect of the year ended 8, 800 0008 L (ZF — L &
31 March 2018 of HK2.40 cents per share, amounting to a 12,650, 000/% L) o & $:§H\\:g
total dividend of HK$13,200,000, was proposed by the Board —NERNRAZTABRERNMNE
of Directors on 29 June 2018 and to be recommended to E-FT-NF=ZA=+— E' Ik %
the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting. E 8 Kk2.407 W2 B & - /jiigﬂ;]%f%
These financial statements do not reflect this dividend payable. 13,200,0007 7T * I 1% Bl % £ 17 2
BREBFASLRABREEZ -ZF
MBHRERTERBRZEMRKRE -
2018
—E2-N\F
HK$’000
FTET
Proposed final dividend of HK2.40 B AHREER
cents (2017: HK1.60 cents) per 3 2. 407811
ordinary share (ZZ—+tF:1.60%10) 13,200 8,800
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32 Notes to the consolidated statement of

(a)

cash flows

Cash generated from operations

32

(a)

BB ERR M

EHASRERME

LHRERE

2018
—E-N\EF
HK$’000
FTET
Profit before income tax B BT 15 250 Al g A 28,693 12,744
Adjustments for: MATEBETHFAE:
Depreciation of property, ME - -BMEREEZITE
plant and equipment 16 18,483 18,350
Amortisation of intangible assets 2 & &= # §4 17 430 430
Loss on disposal of property, HEME  BE R&ERN
plant and equipment E518 7 4,720 6,397
Loss on disposal of financial assetsit & & & & 2= # &5 18 7 - 1,803
Loss on partial disposal HE—EEE AR HER
of an associate Z B 7 111 -
Impairment loss on intangible B EAEREEE
assets 17 287 -
Provision for impairment of M- BB Rk
property, plant and equipment BB RERE 16 - 699
Fair value gain on financial FRBRBRANEE
assets at fair value through TRz eMEER
profit or loss DR BEERE 7 (427) (369)
Provision for impairment of H b FE WU IE R (B B
other receivables - 240
Recovery of trade receivables Yz [B] 5 i 55 &) B 5 e 1K
previously written off IR 8 (24) (24)
Trade receivables written off W 8E A AT B FRIE 2
as uncollectable 2 5 e IE 3 23
Interest income from BEIHEENF EWMA
held-to-maturity investments 6 (1,324) (8,226)
Finance income BE WA 10 (488) (466)
Finance costs B & KA 10 1,292 1,579
Share of losses of associates JE(EE: N R 2 B8 12 143 1,746
Share of profit of a joint venture ~ JE{E & &% 2% F 13 (777) (1,257)
Changes in working capital LEELEE
— Inventories —F8 (642) (218)
— Trade receivables — & Z WA (3,341) (946)
— Other receivables and — H {th fE W RIE K
prepayments TET RIE 1,558 (8,489)
— Amounts due from related — R E R A FKIE
companies (4,342) 4,277
— Trade payables —B 5 ENKIE 4,938 (7,326)
- Accruals and other payables —FERT R IE R B A FE AT
=18 (1,842) 1,523
— Amounts due to related — FET BRE 7 ;IR
parties 327 11
— Amount due to directors —ENESKE - (20)
Cash generated from operations & & TSR & 47,778 27,481
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32 Notes to the consolidated statement of
cash flows continueq)

32 EHBEERERMMETE @

(a) Cash generated from operations (continued) (a) REFBHEE »)
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from ReEHFBReERERT HEWE K
disposal of property, plant and equipment comprise: B RFBEOMERIBEE:
2018
—B-NE
HK$’000
FET
Net book amount (Note 16) AR FE (MIsE16) 5,145 13,303
Loss on disposal of property, HEME  BEME&EEE
plant and equipment (Note 7) (FFET) (4,720) (6,397)
Currency translation differences M N ER - 5
Proceeds from disposal & P 1S 3K 38 425 6,911
(b) Net debt reconciliation (b) EBFEYHER

This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the
movements in net debt for each of the years presented.

RENIERFE 20T REHF
BREMRFREZES-

2018
—E-N\F
HK$’000
FHERT
Net cash He F5
Cash and cash equivalents BeMkBE2EFMEER 89,524 68,220
Borrowings and obligations under BREMEHEE TEE
finance lease — repayable —-RN—FRNEE
within one year (29,702) (45,356)
Borrowings and obligations under BREMEHEETEE
finance lease — repayable —N—F&ER
after one year (1,935) (7,045)
Net cash e FHE 57,887 15,819
Cash and liquid investments Re Rt E 89,524 68,220
Gross debt — fixed interest rates 48 (BT — [E T FI =X (7,045) (14,058)
Gross debt — variable interest rates RIER— B = (24,592) (38,343)
Net cash & F5E 57,887 15,819
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BB ERR M

32 Notes to the consolidated statementof 32 §HBREFRERHET »

cash flows (continveq)
(b) B FHEEER @

Liabilities from
financing activities
METHELENER

Obligations Obligations
under under
finance finance
lease due lease due

(b) Net debt reconciliation continuea)

Borrowings
due within
1 year

R—FR

within after

1 year
R—FR
Hfz

1 year
R—%%
Hfz

B
HK$'000

MEHEE
BT EHE
HK$'000

mEEE
BTEE
HK$'000

Bz
BN

HK$'000

st
HK$'000

THET THET TET THET TET

Net cash as at 1 April 2017 RZE—tEMA—AZ

Be T8 68,220 (7,013 (7,045) (38,343) 15,819
Cash flows Ben= 21,005 7,013 - 13,751 41,769
Foreign exchange adjustments ~ JME % 299 - - - 299
Other non-cash investments ~ E i 3F3H 2% & = (5,110) 5,110 = =
Net cash as at 31 March 2018 R=Z—\F=A
=+-RAZBAEFE 89,524 (5,110) (1,935) (24,592) 57,887
33 Contingencies 33 HIAREH
Other than those financial guarantee contracts as disclosed BR B sES5(C)FT B B Z F I IF &R
in Note 35(c), the Group and the Company did not have any BRI REBRARQ G WL EEMA
material significant contingent liabilities. BAIABE-
34 Commitments 34 EIE
(a) Capital commitment (a) EXREE
Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the year but FREFTHEHREENEARA
not yet incurred is as follows: m

2018
=E-N\F

2017
—E—+tF
HK$’000
FHE T

HK$’000
FHET

Property, plant and equipment Y% BB k& E 994 224
o

Investments in an associate 4,686 4,228
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34 FiE

34 Commitments continued)

(b) Operating lease commitments - Group as lessee (b) B&HERKE - KEBIEB X
HA

The Group leases various stores and premises under
non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The lease terms
are between 1 and 5 years. The future aggregate minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as
follows:

AEBERBEIARMELEHE R &
A% REE & HE RS
—ERFAF-REIAMBELE
HE ARKXEEERBRLBOT :

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+tF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FATT

Not later than 1 year —FLAR 19,496 17,752
Later than 1 year and not later than —FUE-RAEUTR

5 years 8,498 18,997

27,994 36,749

The Group leases machinery, office equipment and billboard
under non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The
lease terms are between 1 to 5 years. The future aggregate
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases are as follows:

AEERBEITARELCEHEN R
EEMEE MAERERESE M
HANF—ZRF - RETATHIEL
EHE ARENZKEHESLTN
T

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+tF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTERT FHET

Not later than 1 year —F A 36 268
Later than 1 year and not later than —FUE-RAFUTR

5 years 51 75

87 343
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34 Commitments continueq)

(c) Operating lease rental receivables — Group as
lessor

The Group leases out machinery and a property under
non-cancellable operating lease. The lease terms are between
1 to 2 years. The future minimum lease payments receivable is

BB ERR M

34 EIE »)

(c) FLEMERVES-FEER
HAE A

AEBERBIABELEHERH
BEkWE-BRSE—EMF-RXK
Rl e ZEAEMRBEMT :

as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
Not later than 1 year —FE R 180 108

Later than 1 year and not later than —FUE-RAEUT
5 years - 108
180 216
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BT BERRMTE

35 Related party transactions

Parties are considered to be related to the Group if the party
has the ability, directly or indirectly, to exercise control or
significant influence over the Group in making financial and
operating decisions, or vice versa. Related parties may be
individuals (being members of key management personnel,
significant shareholders and/or their close family members)
or other entities and include entities which are under the
significant influence of related parties of the Group where
those parties are individuals. Parties are also considered to be
related if they are subject to common control.

The directors of the Company are of the view that the
following individuals and companies were related parties that
had transactions or balances with the Group:

Name of related party

BRELER

EAKEREF

35 BETRS

el & — 77 B B 4% 2K R 3R 4F I BE
REERARBREPHANEEITRIE
HEXEAFEN ABRZTER
SEERE RZNTHA-BETAL
BEABIE2ZEEEAE TEHER
&/Yﬁi%kﬁ%f&%)ﬁ Lfth
TEE- @%x%%ﬂAm$%l%
BHERY \*m°xAHTﬂ
MRETWﬁ%ﬁ%

ARBEFERL THEARRTA
RBEAKEETIHUFELEH
BREDT

Relationship with the Group

Mr. Chan Kong Hung Chris
PSR M 2 o2 A4

Non-controlling interests of a subsidiary of the Group

AEBM B AR IHERERTA A

Mr. Foo Pei Pan
18 1 X, 5t A&

Non-controlling interests of a subsidiary of the Group

AEBEWNBARFFERERITAA

Mr. Yau Kin Hung
BB 2 4 55 A

Non-controlling interests of a subsidiary of the Group

AEBEWNBARFFERERITAA

Mr. Cheng Sze Tok
HRESLE

Non-controlling interests of a subsidiary of the Group

AEBENBARFFERERITAA

Ms. Wong Man Yee
FHBELL

Non-controlling interests of a subsidiary of the Group

AEBENBARFFERERITAA

AppOne Mobile Solution Controlled by non-controlling interests of a subsidiary of the Group

RN SR =PNSIE b Fae e ]

BSSF Group Limited Controlled by non-controlling interests of a subsidiary of the Group

F 7N 5% (5 B /B 2 ) 122 S A i 2 o
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AU SR M T
35 Related party transactions coninueq) 3B BEARS @

Name of related party Relationship with the Group
BELSEH BEA K BRI R
CTP Limited Controlled by the directors of the Company

AR B E S
e-print Solutions Sdn. Bhd. Joint venture of the subsidiary of the Group

AEERB ARG ERE
eprint Limited Ultimate holding company (Note i)

REERA R (K

Fitness World (Group) Limited Controlled by an associate of the Group
fEEXRM (£E)FGR DA 7N S B B N m 4 1
FW (HK) In Lo Wu Development Controlled by an associate of the Group

Center Limited

EERERMBENERIERRDF B ARKEE QRS

Fitness World (Shenzhen) Limited Controlled by an associate of the Group

=R ORI FR QA SN SEN R /NI p ek

Giant State Limited Associate of the subsidiary of the Group

EHBRAT] N BB A RIAV B A A

Montana Capital Sdn Bhd Controlled by an joint venture of the Group
MAKES L hEES

Protoss IT Sdn Bhd Controlled by an joint venture of the Group
MAEES L hEES

Profit More Rich Limited Controlled by the directors of the Company

BEZARRAA AR A ESES

Promise Properties Limited Controlled by the directors of the Company

RaRWEBR AT AR A ESES
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CXciliuEy = E kR
35 Related party transactions coninueq) 3B BEAIRS @
Name of related party Relationship with the Group
BEEL AW BEA K BRR
Shenzhen Yi Yun Hu Wang Tong Associate of the subsidiary of the Group
Technology Company Limited
AYEBEEEHEBREERA NE BB A RIAYEE = A A
Sakura Japan Property Associate of the subsidiary of the Group
(Hong Kong) Limited
B2ABE (FE)BRAA REEMNE QR B E QA
TBC Group Limited Non-controlling interests of a subsidiary of the Group

AR B E QR IR S

VWV Limited Controlled by the directors of the Company
AR B E E
Wab2 Group (HK) Limited Controlled by non-controlling interests of

a subsidiary of the Group (Note ii)
7N 5= (B P B 8 A SR AR a2 o) (Bf =i )

Notes: Bt 5

i. The Company is controlled by eprint Limited, which owns 56.9% of the i. AR A]Heprint Limitedf2 il o 1 = ZF — N\
Company’s shares as at 31 March 2018 and 2017, and is beneficially FR-ZZE—EF=F=+—H eprint
owned by Mr. She Siu Kee Wiliam, Mr. Chong Cheuk Ki, Mr. Lam Limited#E B 28 2 7] 2 56.9% {7 * I B &
Shing Kai, Mr. Leung Wai Ming, and Mr. Leung Yat Pang. The directors BESE HEHEE MERERE R
consider eprint Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI, being the FHEERR - BEEEREB -EF
immediate and the ultimate holding company. R Beprint Limited (7% 8 & Z B & 7+ i

K2R REEREREERAR

i. Mr. Chan Kong Hung Chris, Mr. Foo Pei Pan, Mr. Cheng Sze Tok and i. EA —tENA=1T—8B BRREI%L
Ms. Wong Man Yee, non-controlling interests of a subsidiary of the 1?1%7%‘655 HBELEEREHEL
Group, transferred all their interests in WAB2 Group (HK) Limited to + ( AEBH B AR A IEERER) 151
independent third parties on 31 August 2017. Since then, WAB2 Group ZAWAB2 Group (HK) Limited#y B A #
(HK) Limited is no longer a related party. @HEETEVE =7 HEWAB2 Group

(HK) Limited ™~ & & B E T ©
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35 Related party transactions (continueq) 35

(@) Transactions with related parties (a)

The following transactions were undertaken by the Group with
related parties. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the related party transactions were carried out in the normal
course of business and at terms negotiated between the
Group and the respective related parties.

B H SRR M T

BERRS &)
HEESFNRS

AEFEHBEFBETUATRS -
ARRAEZRE BEIRIRIE
%%%ﬂﬁ¢ﬁ$%§ﬁ%@%ﬁ
7 T MR SRE ST ©

2018 2017
—E-NEF —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHET
Rental expense of plants and ERNSHEMREENRE X
machinery, premises, stores and W2s BT S RIFES
carparks in Hong Kong payable HeRX
or paid
— CTP Limited —CTP Limited 4,815 6,160
— Profit More Rich Limited —RBEZERRAF] 660 600
— Promise Properties Limited —REREMERR AR 1,817 1,654
- VWV Limited —VVV Limited 2,110 2,401
— King Profit International Limited —ZEHNEEREER AR 439 396
— Wab2 Group (HK) Limited —Wab2 Group (HK)
Limited 390 822
— e-print Solutions Sdn. Bhd —e-print Solutions
Sdn. Bhd - 83
10,231 12,116
Emolument payable or paid JE 1 5 B 15 37 B
— Mr. Chan Kong Hung Chris — PR WY 5 A 798 701
— Mr. Foo Pei Pan —EER L L 798 738
— Mr. Yau Kin Hung — R R MR 415 498
- Ms. Wong Man Yee —EHEL T - 266
— Mr. Cheng Sze Tok —EBERE 798 646
2,809 2,849
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BHMBHRAME

35 BEAIRH &)

(a) HEBREFNRS (#)

2018
—E-N\F

35 Related party transactions continueq)

(@) Transactions with related parties (continued)

HK$°000
FTERx

Outsourced retail store services
expense payable or paid
— e-print Solutions Sdn. Bhd.

ENHEMINHEER
A% B <

—e-print Solutions

Sdn. Bhd. - 1,468
Consultancy fee expense payable ERs B ERZE A
or paid
— BSSF Group Limited —BSSF Group Limited - 120
Expenses paid for purchase of goods BEftBEBEEMREX
— e-print Solutions Sdn. Bhd. —e-print Solutions
Sdn. Bhd. 6 32
.T. license fee income receivable or FE Sk B B AR
received FEEIE=-3 /N
— e-print Solutions Sdn. Bhd. —e-print Solutions
Sdn. Bhd. 254 228
— Protoss IT Sdn Bhd —Protoss IT Sdn Bhd 4,945 -
5,199 228
Revenue from sales of goods and EWHEWHEEm &
services receivable or received PR 75 W 25
— AppOne Mobile Solution —AppOne Mobile Solution - 52
— e-print Solutions Sdn. Bhd. —e-print Solutions
Sdn. Bhd. 11 -
— Sakura Japan Property B2 IHE(HH)
(Hong Kong) Limited BRAA] 107 -
— Fitness World (Group) Limited —fREXM (£H)
NG 18 -
136 52
Rental income of store in Hong Kong FEY = B R BB
receivable or received S e
— Sakura Japan Property —BZ2TEBE(BE)
(Hong Kong) Limited BR AT 144 -
Management fee income JE W S B U E IR B WA
receivable or received
— Sakura Japan Property —BZAHE (D)
(Hong Kong) Limited ERAF] 200 =
Purchase of properties BEME
— CTP Limited —CTP Limited - 62,000
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35 Related party transactions (continueq)

(b) Key management compensation

Details of the key management compensation are disclosed in
Note 37.

(c) Guarantees and securities provided by related
parties

Guarantees and securities provided by related parties for
borrowings (Note 28) and obligations under finance leases
(Note 29) were as follows:

Guarantees provided by a director of

BB ERR M

35 BERIRH &)
(b) EEEE A E Frif

(c)

HAEE-—HNEBARZ

TEEBAEBTFMZHEBHREERN
SF37 o

AELREHERMNEK A
BEAMEE (Ma2s) MEHE
T8 T & E (M 5E29) Fr 12 it 2 1R F1 K
R

2018
—B-N\%F

2017
—E—tF
HK$’000
FHET

HK$’000
FHEx

a subsidiary of the Group EERMER 47,460 47,460
Guarantee provided by a director of MASEE cESREER
the Group 105 354
Guarantee provided by a spouse of AL E—EHE QA
non-controlling interests of a subsidiary FEIERREZSIHFE A Z
of the Group Ao B IR B R 19,025 19,025
66,590 66,339
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&I R M aE
35 Related party transactions (continueq 35 BELRS ®
(d) Balances with related parties (d) EEREE F &%
2018 2017
—E_N\&E —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Amounts due from related PEW B E A R K IE
companies
Giant State Limited EHERAA 4,997 4,997
Sakura Japan Property (Hong Kong) B TEE (FH) 1 -
e-print Solutions Sdn. Bhd. e-print Solutions Sdn. Bhd. 5,193 829
AppOne Mobile Solution AppOne Mobile Solution - 23
10,191 5,849
Certain directors of the Company and the following related AARIGETESNHANUNTHEERTF
companies are in common. Pursuant to the Hong Kong ZEZ-REBEFEQAEHFE383(1)
Companies Ordinance Section 383(1)(d), the maximum (O R AREEREBLT

amount outstanding are as follows:

2018
—®-NF
HK$’000
FET
Giant State Limited EMERAA 4,997 4,997
Sakura Japan Propety (Hong Kong) B TEE (BH)BRAT
Limited 1 -
Shenzhen Yi Yun Hu Wang Tong FIEEEBBEEHE
Technology Company Limited BRAT] - 4,508
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B H SRR M T

35 Related party transactions coninueq) 35 BEAFIRS @
(d) Balances with related parties (continveq) (d) EEBER &tk @)
The amounts due from related companies are unsecured, ERBEAFREREKE 28
interest-free and are repayable on demand. The fair values of RiRBEREE- EZ EEHNLONE
these balances approximate their carrying values. BEREHEREEES -
2018
—E-N\F
HK$’000
FHExT
Amounts due to related parties FE{SRAE S RIE
Fitness World (Group) Limited fEEX (SE)BRAF] - 9
Sakura Japan Property (Hong Kong) BZTHE (FEF)BRAA
Limited 36 -
Mr. Yau Kin Hung ER 2 7 5t A4 300 -
336 9
Amounts due to directors ERAEERE
Mr. She Siu Kee %Z”%?EE 50 50
Mr. Chong Cheuk Ki HEHEA 35 35
Mr. Lam Shing Ki 7%7?(1%5‘6% 35 35
Mr. Leung Wai Ming REREE 35 35
Mr. Chi Man Shing Stephen 3B S A - 22
Mr. Poon Chun Wai % ¥R B T A 30 30
Mr. Ma Siu Kit BIkNELE 30 30
Mr. Fu Chung EhELE 30 8
245 245
The payable balances with related parties and directors HEERMES 2 EMNEHRH B
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, unsecured, interest TEtE - BEAREER RERIE %i
free and are repayable on demand. The fair values of these BE-ZEEBRN LA BEEER
balances approximate their carrying values. HEEE -
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BHMBHRAME

36 Statement of financial position and

36 ARBMBIRRKRE B

reserve movement of the Company 2 E
Statement of financial position of the Company APQ T BB RF
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FET
Assets BE
Non-current assets EMEBEE
Investments in subsidiaries BB AR ARE 73,897 73,897
Financial assets at fair value FRBmEARBEIEZ
through profit or loss TREE - 12,319
Prepayments TE FRIR 18 45
e . 73915 86,261
Current assets BN & E
Prepayments and other TE A FRIE 2 HL th fE U SR IE
receivables 308 90
Financial assets at fair value FRBEmnEARBEIEKZ
through profit or loss EREE 12,746 =
Amount due from a subsidiary EW—FEH B A IE 19,530 19,528
Amounts due from fellow FEWRRRHEA T,
subsidiaries 120,015 117,776
Cash and cash equivalents HekReFEIEE 501 246
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 153,100 187,640
Total assets BER 227,015 223,901
Equity and liabilities R KkEE
Capital and reserves attributable  RNRAGERFA A
to the equity holders of EIEER R FE
the Company
Share capital fi& 7R 5,500 5,500
Share premium & 10w E 132,921 132,921
Other reserves H At {7 87,660 84,543
Totalequity . Wm®® 226,081 222,964
Liabilities af&
Current liabilities MEAE
Accruals FEET IR 425 463
Amounts due to directors EREEHIE 245 245
Current income tax payable FE & BRFT 15 %R 264 229
Total liabiities ~~~~~ =~ffes 934 937
Total equity and liabilities mRkBEER 227,015 223,901
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Xt kR
36 Statement of financial position and 36 AR MBMRRRKFE
reserve movement of the Company BE =
(Continued)
Note: B &
(@)  Reserve movements of the Company (@ ARAAEBES
Capital reserve Retained earnings Total
=& N REBEF et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT F&T FHIT
At 1 April 2016 R=ZT—X"FHA—H 73,508 8,888 82,396
Profit for the year F R - 14,797 14,797
Dividends (Note 31) & 2 (KizES1) - (12,650) (12,650)
At 31 March 2017 WZZT—tF=A=+—H 73,508 11,035 84,543
Profit for the year F = - 11,917 11,917
Dividends (Note 31) & 2 (BizEST) - (8,800) (8,800)
At 31 March 2018 RZE-N\F=RA=+—H 73,508 14,152 87,660
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BHMBHRAME

37 Benefits and interests of directors 37 ESFERERS

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEFH
Mr. She Siu Kee William is the chief executive officer of the RBETEBINEBNITEHBE-
Group. The emoluments of each director of the Company for AARBEZTE—N\F=ZA=+—
the year ended 31 March 2018 is set out as below. BIEFESES2HMEAINMAT-

Other

emoluments

paid or

receivable

in respect

of director’s

other services

in connection

with the

management

Estimated Employer's of the affairs of

money value of  contribution to the Company

Performance other benefits a retirement Share-based or its subsidiary
Salaries bonuses (Notei)  benefit scheme payments undertaking
HESZEE

ERARE

HEARER

AR EE

A REEE £ BASELRE

(W) BREEER RERF EfbHe

Executive Directors €S

Mr. She Siu Kee William KBERE 600 2,580 1,178 88 18 - - 4,464
M. Lam Shing Kai HAEEEE 420 360 - - 18 - - 798
Non-executive Directors FHTES

Mr. Chong Cheuk Ki Hetis 420 - - - - - - 420
Mr. Deng Xiaen HEREE - - - - - - - -
Mr. Leung Wai Ming REHEE 420 - - - - - - 420

Independent Non-executive ~ BIFHTEE

Directors
Mr. Poon Chun Wai BRELE 120 - - - - - - 120
Mr. Ma Siu Kit SkA%E 120 - - - - - - 120
Mr. Fu Chung Chiyta 120 - - - - - - 120

2,220 2,940 1,178 88 36 - - 6,462
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BB ERR M

37 Benefits and interests of directors coninvesy 37 EEBFZRERS »

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) EEHFM =)
Mr. She Siu Kee William is the chief executive officer of the RBEXERAEBNITHER -
Group. The emoluments of each director of the Company for AARBEZ_TE—+tF=A=+—
the year ended 31 March 2017 is set out as below. BIEFESES2HMEINDAT-

Other emoluments

paid or receivable

in respect

of director's other

Services

in connection with

the management

of the affairs

Employer's of the

Estimated money  contribution to a Company or

Performance value of other  retirement benefit Share-based its subsidiary
Salaries bonuses  benefits (Note | scheme payments undertaking
HESER

RARA

Executive Directors HIES

Mr. She Siu Kee Wiliam KBEEE 600 2,580 942 86 18 = = 4,226
Mr. Fung Hong Keung (Note ) B34 (B 184 444 - - 9 - = 587
Mr. Lam Shing Kai WRERE 420 111 - - 4 - - 53
Non-executive Directors F417ES

Mr. Chong Cheuk Ki Hedis 420 - - - - - - 40
Mr. Deng Xiaen HEREE - - - - - - - -
Mr. Leung Wai Ming 2EMEE 420 - - - - - - 420

Independent Non-executive ~ BUFHTES

Directors
Mr. Chi Man Shing Stephen 3t SR o 4 (Fai)

(Note i) 112 = = o = = = 112
Ms. Luk Mei Yan (Note iv BEXBLL (M) 90 - - - - - - 90
Mr. Poon Chun Wai BREALE 75 - - - - - = 75
Dr. Lung Cheuk Wah (Note ) =&+ (Fizv) 45 - - - - - - 4
Mr. Ma Siu Kit (Note vi) BRALAE (i) 31 - - - - - - 31
Mr. Fu Chung (Note vi) BB (Hvi) 8 - - - - - - 8

2,35 3,135 942 86 31 = = 6,549
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B P IR R Mt

37 Benefits and interests of directors continueq)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

(b)

Notes:
(i)
(ii)

(i)

(v)

Other benefits include insurance premium and medical allowances.

Mr. Fung Hong Keung resigned as executive director and chief financial
officer respectively on 30 September 2016.

Mr. Chi Man Shing, Stephen was resigned as independent non-
executive director on 8 March 2017.

Ms. Luk Mei Yan resigned as independent non-executive director on
30 December 2016.

Dr. Lung Cheuk Wah resigned as independent non-executive director on
15 August 2016.

Mr. Ma Siu Kit was appointed as independent non-executive director on
30 December 2016.

Mr. Fu Chung was appointed as independent non-executive director on
8 March 2017.

No Directors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments in
any of the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017.

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination
benefits

No Directors’ retirement benefits or termination benefits were
paid during the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017.
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(b)

EENERERS
BEEHTMN o)

B A
(i) Hofth ) 55 B 5 AR B 0 B OB

(ii) RZTE—RELA=Z+H BEBRLE
DRBERITES R R ISRE -

iy RK=T—tF=ANA MBXBREERH
BB EMITES -

ivy R-ZZTE—ARE+-_A=+8 EXBEL
TEHEBVIERITES-

vy RZZE-—X"FNATHHA EEEHL
BEBERTES -

V) RZZE-—AREFET_A=+B BERE
ERRERBIFRNITES-

vi) RZZT—tF=ANA BRATEEZR
EABIERITES-

BE T N\FR-_ZT—LtF=H
ST HALEERFE HEEERE
SEEREEFBE -

EERNEBIARESRLERE
& A
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37 Benefits and interests of directors continueq)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available Directors’ services

The Company did not pay consideration to any third parties
for making available Directors’ services during the years ended
31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017.

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of Directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
Directors

No loans, quasi-loans and other dealings were made available
in favour of Directors, body corporates controlled by and
connected entities with such Directors subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the years ended 31 March 2018
and 2017.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company was a
party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

37

(c)

(d)

(e)

BB ERR M

EEFBZREZRE @)

RRUEERBAF=T%H
KR E

BE_ T \F=ZA=t—HBE-F
—tF=A=1t—HILFE FXRA
WEFR IR E F R RE =77 M E
Al LB -

EE - ZZRSEEEHFMNEAN
EENZESEENHEETR 2
%%ﬁ‘ﬁﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁf&ﬁ%Zﬁ

BE_T-N\Fh-_T—tF=H
=t+—HIEFEAEAREERFER
TERAES ZZFEFEHAEA
BErZEESTNEETBREATM
B3 EEFAEREMR S -

EERXE REFIEGHNHH
EXER

AN BB B AT S 6 R 35 AR fT B
B WHRAEEZEB AR E
EXERRHAEEETHAEAER
ZEARS RHRAEHK -
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Five-year Financial Summary

T FERBEBRE

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
BN\ B+t ZE—AF ZB-HF —E-NOF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FAT TAT TAT FATT
Result ES
Year ended 31 March EHZE=HA=+—H
LtFEE
Profit attributable to RATERFTRA
equity holders of JE A5 4
the Company 22,032 17,321 26,053 32,335 21,577

Assets and liabilites ZBERAES

As at 31 March R=B=+—8H

Total assets BEE 311,157 312,829 299,158 237,849 253,070
Total liabilities FE=REy (79,491)  (105,309) (92,327) (76,850) (88,276)
Net assets FEE 231,666 207,520 206,831 160,999 164,794

228 eprint Group Limited Annual Report 2017/18



.e-print.com.hk i

eprint Group Limited

eprint & @ % (R 4 5

www.eprintgroup.com.hk

T

T~
M~

.

—




	封面
	目錄
	公司資料
	財務摘要
	主席報告
	管理層討論及分析
	企業管治報告
	環境、社會及管治報告
	董事及高級管理層之簡歷
	董事會報告
	獨立核數師報告
	合併綜合收益表
	合併財務狀況表
	合併權益變動表
	合併現金流量表
	合併財務報表附註
	五年財務概要
	封底



